CHUBB CORP Form 4 May 09, 2005

FORM 4

OMB APPROVAL

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

OMB Number: 3235-0287

Check this box if no longer subject to Section 16. Form 4 or Washington, D.C. 20549

Expires: January 31, 2005

Form 4 or Form 5 obligations STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF SECURITIES

Estimated average burden hours per response...

obligations may continue.

See Instruction

Filed pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Section 17(a) of the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935 or Section 30(h) of the Investment Company Act of 1940 esponse... 0.5

1(b).

(Print or Type Responses)

1. Name and Address of Reporting Person * KRUMP PAUL J			2. Issuer Name and Ticker or Trading Symbol CHUBB CORP [CB]	5. Relationship of Reporting Person(s) to Issuer (Check all applicable)					
(Last)	(First)	(Middle)	3. Date of Earliest Transaction	(Check all applicable)					
			(Month/Day/Year)	Director 10% Owner					
15 MOUNTA BOX 1615	15 MOUNTAIN VIEW ROAD, P.O.		05/05/2005	X Officer (give title Other (specify below)					
BOX 1013				Executive Vice President					
	(Street)		4. If Amendment, Date Original	6. Individual or Joint/Group Filing(Check					
			Filed(Month/Day/Year)	Applicable Line) _X_ Form filed by One Reporting Person					
WARREN, NJ 070611615		5		Form filed by More than One Reporting Person					

(City)	(State) (Z	Table	I - Non-De	rivative S	ecurit	ies Acqui	red, Disposed of,	or Beneficial	ly Owned
1.Title of Security (Instr. 3)	2. Transaction Date (Month/Day/Year)	2A. Deemed Execution Date, if any (Month/Day/Year)	3. Transaction Code (Instr. 8)	4. Securi or(A) or D (Instr. 3,	ispose 4 and (A) or	d of (D) 5)	5. Amount of Securities Beneficially Owned Following Reported Transaction(s) (Instr. 3 and 4)	6. Ownership Form: Direct (D) or Indirect (I) (Instr. 4)	7. Nature of Indirect Beneficial Ownership (Instr. 4)
COMMON	05/05/2005		Code V X	Amount	` '	Price \$	· ·	D	
COMMON	05/05/2005		Λ	5,967	A	46.05	24,968	D	
COMMON	05/05/2005		X	5,966	A	\$ 46.05	30,934	D	
COMMON	05/05/2005		F	6,605	D	\$ 83.2	24,329	D	
COMMON	05/05/2005		F	2,315	D	\$ 83.2	22,014	D	
COMMON							3,106.44	I	By ESOP

Reminder: Report on a separate line for each class of securities beneficially owned directly or indirectly.

Persons who respond to the collection of information contained in this form are not (9-02)

required to respond unless the form displays a currently valid OMB control number.

Table II - Derivative Securities Acquired, Disposed of, or Beneficially Owned (e.g., puts, calls, warrants, options, convertible securities)

1. Title of Derivative Security (Instr. 3)	2. Conversion or Exercise Price of Derivative Security	3. Transaction Date (Month/Day/Year)	e 3A. Deemed Execution Date, if any (Month/Day/Year)	Code	5. Numb or Derivation Securities Acquired Disposed (Instr. 3, 5)	ive les ed (A) or ed of (D)	6. Date Exercisable and Expiration Date (Month/Day/Year)		7. Title an Underlyin (Instr. 3 an
				Code V	(A)	(D)	Date Exercisable	Expiration Date	Title
STOCK OPTION (1)	\$ 46.05	05/05/2005		C		5,967	03/06/2004	03/06/2013	COMM
STOCK OPTION $\underline{^{(1)}}$	\$ 46.05	05/05/2005		С		5,966	03/06/2005	03/06/2013	COMM
STOCK OPTION (1)	\$ 83.2	05/05/2005		A	8,920		05/05/2005	03/06/2013	COMM
PERFORMANCE SHARES 2004 (2)	\$ 0 (3)						(2)	(2)	COMM
PERFORMANCE SHARES 2005 (4)	\$ 0 (3)						<u>(4)</u>	<u>(4)</u>	COMM
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT 2004 (5)	\$ 0 (3)						<u>(5)</u>	(5)	COMM
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT 2005 (5)	\$ 0 (3)						<u>(5)</u>	<u>(5)</u>	COMM
STOCK OPTION (1)	\$ 60.75						03/06/1999	03/05/2007	COMM
STOCK OPTION (1)	\$ 78.97						03/05/2000	03/04/2008	COMM
STOCK OPTION (1)	\$ 59.78						03/11/2001	03/10/2009	COMM
STOCK OPTION (1)	\$ 57.69						11/10/2002	11/10/2009	COMM
STOCK OPTION (1)	\$ 57.69						11/10/2003	11/10/2009	COMM
STOCK OPTION (1)	\$ 47.97						03/02/2002	03/02/2010	COMM

STOCK OPTION (1)	\$ 70.85	03/01/2003	03/01/2011	COMM
STOCK OPTION (1)	\$ 73.68	03/07/2003	03/07/2012	COMM
STOCK OPTION	\$ 73.68	03/07/2004	03/07/2012	COMM

Reporting Owners

Reporting Owner Name / Address	Relationships									
•	Director	10% Owner	Officer	Other						
KRUMP PAUL J 15 MOUNTAIN VIEW ROAD P.O. BOX 1615			Executive Vice President							

Signatures

WARREN, NJ 070611615

By: Patricia S. 05/09/2005 Tomczyk, POA

**Signature of Reporting Person

Explanation of Responses:

- If the form is filed by more than one reporting person, see Instruction 4(b)(v).
- Intentional misstatements or omissions of facts constitute Federal Criminal Violations. See 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 15 U.S.C. 78ff(a).
- (1) All Stock Options are granted in tandem with tax withholding rights.
- Represents 200% of the target performance share award, which is the maximum number of shares issuable under this award for the performance cycle ending December 31, 2006.
- Variable Pricing
- Represents 200% of the target performance share award, which is the maximum number of shares issuable under this award for the performance cycle ending December 31, 2007.
- Restricted Stock Units generally cliff vest on the third anniversary of the grant date.

Note: File three copies of this Form, one of which must be manually signed. If space is insufficient, see Instruction 6 for procedure. Potential persons who are to respond to the collection of information contained in this form are not required to respond unless the form displays a currently valid OMB number. s designate the position or positions to be held by the executive officer. None of the executive officers are related to one another or to any of the members of the Board of Directors.

Thomas A. McDonnell, age 66, has served as director of the Company since 1971. He has served as Chief Executive Officer of the Company since October 1984, and he served as President of the Company from 1973 through mid-2009 (except for a 30 month period beginning in 1984 and ending in 1987). He served as Treasurer of the Company beginning in 1973 and ending in 1995 and as Vice Chairman of the Board beginning in 1984 and ending in 1995. He is a director of Euronet Worldwide, Inc. and Kansas City Southern Industries, Inc. Within the past five years, he was also a director of Blue Valley Ban Corp., Garmin Ltd. and Commerce Bancshares, Inc.

Stephen C. Hooley, age 48, joined the Company in mid-2009 as its President and Chief Operating Officer. His responsibilities include Shareowner accounting and retirement solutions, Automated Work Distributor products, DST Brokerage Solutions, DST Insurance Solutions, information systems, product sales and marketing, data centers, and human resources. He served from 2004 through mid-2009 as President and Chief Executive Officer of Boston Financial Data Services ("Boston Financial"). In 2009, he began serving as non-executive Chairman of Boston Financial. Beginning in 2007, he has served as Chief Executive Officer of IFDS, L.P.

Reporting Owners 3

Jonathan J. Boehm, age 51, joined the Company in 1977. He became an Executive Vice President during 2009. Prior to his current position, he served since 1997 as Group Vice President Mutual Funds Full Service. He is responsible for DST HealthCare Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries DST Health Solutions and Argus Health Systems.

Robert L. Tritt, age 56, joined the Company in 1977. He became Executive Vice President of DST's U.S. Investment Recordkeeping Solutions business in 2009. Prior to his current position, he served since 1989 as Group Vice President with responsibility for product development and customer relationships for remote processing mutual fund customers. He is responsible for the development and operations of the company's proprietary applications supporting recordkeeping for mutual fund shareholders. Additionally, he is responsible for both ASP (Remote) and Full Service customer operations using such applications.

Table of Contents

Thomas R. Abraham, age 60, began serving in 2007 as Chief Executive Officer of DST Global Solutions, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Abraham served at Citibank, N.A. from 2001 as Managing Director and Head of Strategic Solutions Global Transaction Services.

Edmund J. Burke, age 51, is the President of ALPS Holdings, Inc., which provides asset servicing and gathering solutions to the investment management industry and became a wholly-owned Company subsidiary during 2011. He joined ALPS in 1991, has served as President since 2000 and is responsible for ALPS' advisory, distribution, mutual fund and hedge fund services. As part of his responsibilities for the ALPS group of companies, Mr. Burke is President and Trustee of Clough Global Allocation Fund, Clough Global Equity Fund and Clough Global Opportunities Fund; Trustee of Liberty All-Star Equity Fund; Director of Liberty All-Star Growth Fund, Inc., and Chairman of the Board and President of Financial Investors Trust. Each of these funds operates as a registered investment company pursuant to the Investment Company Act of 1940.

Steven J. Towle, age 54, has served since 2004 as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company's subsidiary DST Output. Prior to joining the Company, he was Boston Financial's President and Chief Operating Officer during 2000 through 2003 and its Senior Vice President during 1997 through September 2000.

Gregg Wm. Givens, age 51, joined the Company in 1996 as an officer and has served as Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer since 1999.

Kenneth V. Hager, age 61, began serving the Company in 1988 as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and in 1995 as Treasurer. He is responsible for the financial function of the Company.

Randall D. Young, age 55, joined the Company as a Vice President in 1995 and has served as Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of the Company since 2002.

PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The Company's common stock trades under the symbol "DST" on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE"). As of February 21, 2012, there were approximately 23,900 beneficial owners of the Company's common stock.

The Company has historically retained its earnings for use in its business and did not pay dividends from its formation in 1995 through 2009. In 2010, the Company began paying cash dividends on its common stock. Future cash dividends will depend upon financial condition, earnings and other factors deemed relevant by DST's Board of Directors. Payment of dividends is subject to applicable laws and to restrictions in applicable debt agreements. On February 24, 2012, DST's Board of Directors declared

Table of Contents

a cash dividend of \$0.40 per share on its common stock. The dividend will be payable April 10, 2012, to shareholders of record at the close of business on March 16, 2012.

	Dividend]	High	Low
2011					
1st Quarter	\$	0.35	\$	52.57	\$ 44.09
2nd Quarter				54.70	46.31
3rd Quarter		0.35		55.68	42.18
4th Quarter				50.77	40.92
2010					
1st Quarter	\$	0.30	\$	45.62	\$ 37.44
2nd Quarter				44.40	35.91
3rd Quarter				44.55	35.45
4th Quarter		0.30		46.37	41.79

The prices set forth above do not include commissions and do not necessarily represent actual transactions. The closing price of the Company's common stock on the NYSE on December 30, 2011, was \$45.52.

Stock Repurchases

The following table sets forth information with respect to shares of Company common stock purchased by the Company during the quarter ended December 31, 2011.

				Maximum Number
			Total Number of	of
			Shares Purchased	Shares That May
			as Part of	Yet
	Total		Publicly	Be Purchased
	Number	Average Price	Announced	Under
	of Shares	Paid Per	Plans or	the Plans or
Period	Purchased	Share	Programs	Programs
October 1 - October 31	477,492(1)	\$ 47.01	129,870	49,500
November 1 -				
November 30	20,348(1)	\$ 47.06		49,500
December 1 - December 31	4,440(1)	\$ 48.08		49,500
Total	502,280	\$ 47.02	129,870	49,500(2)

For the three months ended December 31, 2011, the Company purchased, in accordance with the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (formerly the 1995 Stock Option and Performance Award Plan), 372,410 shares of its common stock for participant income tax withholding in conjunction with stock option exercises or from the vesting of restricted stock shares, as requested by the participants. These purchases were not made under the publicly-announced repurchase plans or programs, but were allowed by the rules of the Compensation Committee of the DST Board of Directors. Of these shares, 347,622 shares were purchased in October 2011, 20,348 shares were purchased in November 2011, and 4,440 shares were purchased in December 2011.

DST's Board of Directors increased its share repurchase authorization by 2.0 million shares in the fourth quarter of 2011. This additional share repurchase authorization became effective January 1, 2012 and will expire on December 31, 2013. The Company may enter into one or more plans with its brokers or banks for pre-authorized purchases within defined limits pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 to effect all or a portion of such share repurchases.

Stock Performance Graph

The following performance graph and related information shall not be deemed "soliciting material" or to be "filed" with the Securities and Exchange Commission, nor shall such information be incorporated

Table of Contents

by reference into any future filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amended, except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates it by reference into such filing.

The following graph shows the changes in value since December 31, 2006 of an assumed investment of \$100 in: (i) DST Common Stock; (ii) the stocks that comprise the S&P 400 MidCap index(1); and (iii) the stocks that comprise a peer group of companies ("Peer Group")(2). The table following the graph shows the dollar value of those investments as of December 31, 2011 and as of December 31 for each of the five preceding years. The value for the assumed investments depicted on the graph and in the table has been calculated assuming that cash dividends, if any, are reinvested at the end of each quarter in which they are paid.

Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return

	As of December 31,												
	2006 2			2007	2008			2009		2010	2011		
DST Systems, Inc	\$	100.00	\$	131.81	\$	60.64	\$	69.54	\$	71.82	\$	74.72	
S&P MidCap 400 Index		100.00		107.98		68.86		94.60		119.80		117.72	
Peer Group		100.00		100.36		72.78		90.13		100.79		110.60	

(1) Standard & Poor's Corporation, an independent company, prepares the S&P 400 MidCap Index.

(2)
The companies included in the Peer Group are Alliance Data Systems Corp, Automatic Data Processing, Inc., Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc., Convergys Corp, CSG Systems International, Inc., Fiserv, Inc., NCR Corp, Paychex, Inc, SEI Investments Co., TeleTech Holdings, Inc., and Total System Services, Inc.

Also included in the Peer Group data for earlier years of the five year period are the following companies: Affiliated Computer Services Inc. (included through 2009 as it was acquired by Xerox in February 2010), Ceridian Corporation (included through 2006 as it was acquired by Thomas H. Lee Partners in November 2007), Choicepoint Inc. (included through 2007 as it was acquired by Reed Elsevier in September 2008), First Data Corp. (included through 2006 as it was acquired by Kohlberg Kravis in September 2007), IMS Health Inc. (included through 2009 as it went private in February 2010), and Perot Systems Corporation (included through 2008 as it was acquired by Dell in 2009).

DST selected the Peer Group based on comparable company information for DST's industry developed by an independent compensation consultant with the input of the CFO.

Table of Contents

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth selected consolidated financial data of the Company. The selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with and are qualified by reference to "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" included in Item 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the Company's audited consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereto, and the report of the independent registered public accounting firm thereon and the other financial information included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

	Year Ended December 31,									
	2	2011(1)	2	2010(2)	2	2009(3)	2	2008(4)	2	2007(5)
			(doll	ars in milli	ons,	except per	shar	e amounts)		
Operating revenues	\$	1,744.0	\$	1,713.6	\$	1,595.4	\$	1,675.5	\$	1,695.4
Out-of-pocket reimbursements(6)		644.7		614.9		622.5		609.9		607.1
Total revenues		2,388.7		2,328.5		2,217.9		2,285.4		2,302.5
Costs and expenses		1,997.0		1,848.5		1,813.2		1,813.6		1,828.0
Depreciation and amortization		131.6		135.4		130.4		125.3		130.6
Income from operations		260.1		344.6		274.3		346.5		343.9
Interest expense		(46.5)		(46.1)		(42.2)		(55.4)		(60.3)
Other income (expense), net		38.7		141.7		85.1		(15.5)		45.0
Gain on sale of Asurion										998.0
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates		21.7		36.4		37.3		34.7		62.6
Income before income taxes and non-controlling interest		274.0		476.6		354.5		310.3		1,389.2
Income taxes		95.8		159.1		112.9		67.4		514.5
Net income		178.2		317.5		241.6		242.9		874.7
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest		4.9		1.0						
Net income attibutable to DST Systems, Inc.	\$	183.1	\$	318.5	\$	241.6	\$	242.9	\$	874.7
Basic earnings per share	\$	4.01	\$	6.78	\$	4.87	\$	4.53	\$	13.80
Diluted earnings per share	\$	3.95	\$	6.73	\$	4.84	\$	4.21	\$	12.14
Cash dividends per share of common stock	\$	0.70	\$	0.60	_		-		т.	
Non-GAAP diluted earnings per share(7)	\$	4.09	\$	4.43	\$	3.59	\$	3.71	\$	3.48
Total assets	\$	3,428.6	\$	3,339.4	\$	2,912.8	\$	2,509.4	\$	3,395.9
Total debt	\$	1,380.3	\$	1,209.4	\$	1,221.9	\$	1,435.3	\$	1,061.1
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges(8)		5.2		8.6		7.6		5.1		18.1

(1)

The Company recognized \$7.3 million of restructuring costs associated with amending sales/marketing agreements of acquired business, which were included in costs and expenses. The aggregate income tax benefit associated with this cost was approximately \$2.9 million. The Company recognized employee termination expenses of \$6.4 million associated with reductions in workforce, which were included in costs and expenses. The aggregate income tax benefit associated with these expenses was approximately \$2.4 million. The Company recognized \$3.5 million of contract termination payment operating revenues resulting from the early termination of a client processing agreement. In connection with the contract termination, the Company recorded \$1.5 million of costs and expenses. The aggregate income tax expense associated with the net contract termination payment was approximately \$0.8 million. The Company recognized \$3.3 million of business development expenses associated with 2011 business acquisitions, which were included in costs and expenses. The aggregate income tax benefit associated with these expenses was approximately \$1.4 million. The Company recognized \$1.8 million of business

Table of Contents

advisory expenses, which were included in costs and expenses, associated with an action by the DST Board of Directors to retain advisors to assist the Board with its ongoing review of DST's business plan, assets and investment portfolio. The aggregate income tax benefit associated with these expenses was approximately \$0.7 million. The Company recorded a loss accrual of \$3.5 million, included in costs and expenses, associated with a regulatory inquiry related to the processing of certain pharmacy claims during 2006 - 2009. There was no income tax benefit attributable to this expense. The Company recorded \$17.2 million of net gain on securities and other investments, which were included in other income, net. The aggregate income tax expense associated with this net gain was approximately \$6.7 million. The Company recognized a net loss, in the amount of \$1.2 million, associated with the repurchase and extinguishment of senior convertible debentures, which was included in other income, net. The income tax benefit associated with this net loss was approximately \$0.4 million. The Company recognized \$2.6 million in employee termination expenses at an unconsolidated affiliate, associated with a reduction in workforce, which is included in equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates. The income tax benefit associated with these expenses was approximately \$0.3 million. The Company recognized a \$0.7 million impairment of an unconsolidated affiliate, which is included in equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates. The aggregate income tax benefit associated with this expense was approximately \$0.2 million.

- (2) In 2010, the Company recognized \$73.4 million of contract termination payment operating revenues resulting from the early termination of two client processing agreements. In connection with the contract terminations, the Company recorded \$3.1 million of costs and expenses and asset impairment charges of \$3.1 million which were recorded in depreciation and amortization expense. The aggregate income tax expense associated with the net contract termination payments was approximately \$26.2 million. The Company recognized employee termination expenses of \$20.9 million associated with reductions in workforce, which were included in costs and expenses. The aggregate income tax benefit associated with these costs was approximately \$8.2 million. The Company incurred expenses and net gains related to securities and other investments dispositions in 2010. Expenses were associated with a charitable donation of marketable securities in the amount of \$10.2 million by the Investments and Other Segment, which was included in costs and expenses. The Company recorded \$70.8 million of net gains on securities and other investments, which were included in other income (expense), net. The aggregate income tax expense associated with the expenses and net gains was approximately \$19.7 million. The Company recognized dividend income from a private equity investment of \$54.7 million which was included in other income (expense), net. The income tax expense associated with this dividend was approximately \$12.6 million. The Company recognized a net loss, in the amount of \$6.4 million, associated with the repurchase and extinguishment of senior convertible debentures, which was included in other income (expense), net. The income tax benefit associated with this net loss was approximately \$2.4 million. The Company recognized an income tax benefit of approximately \$2.3 million related to the release of a valuation allowance previously established on deferred income tax assets of DST Output Limited (U.K.) resulting from the acquisition of dsicmm Group. Innovative Output Solutions Limited ("IOS") was the beneficiary of this income tax benefit, and accordingly DST's share of the benefit was 70.5% or \$1.6 million. The remaining portion of the income tax benefit (29.5% or \$0.7 million) was attributed to the non-controlling interest.
- In 2009, the Company recognized a \$41.7 million gain in other income (expense), net associated with the purchase of the remaining 50% equity interest of Argus on March 31, 2009 for \$57.0 million in cash. The income tax benefit associated with this transaction was approximately \$0.9 million related to the elimination of deferred tax liabilities previously established for equity in earnings of Argus. In accordance with authoritative accounting guidance for income taxes, no income taxes were recorded on the \$41.7 million gain. The Company recognized a \$5.9 million gain in other income (expense), net associated with the repurchase of senior convertible

Table of Contents

debentures. The income tax expense associated with this gain was approximately \$2.2 million. The Company recorded an income tax benefit of approximately \$5.7 million resulting from a reduction in income tax related liabilities principally associated with the completion of an IRS examination for the tax years ended December 2002 through 2005. The Company recorded net gains on securities and other investments of \$17.2 million in other income (expense), net. The income tax expense associated with this investment gain was approximately \$6.9 million. The Company recorded a \$4.5 million gain in equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates associated with the consolidation and change in value of an equity method investment held by an unconsolidated affiliate. The income tax expense associated with this gain was approximately \$1.8 million. The Company recorded interest expense associated with financing costs from the 2009 convertible senior debenture exchange transactions in the amount of \$4.7 million. The income tax benefit associated with this expense was approximately \$1.9 million.

- In 2008, the Company recognized a \$10.8 million gain in other income (expense), net associated with the repurchase of senior convertible debentures. The income tax expense associated with this gain was approximately \$4.2 million. During 2008, the Company recorded an income tax benefit of approximately \$48.2 million associated with a reduction in income tax related liabilities in accordance with accounting guidance for uncertain income tax positions. In addition, the Company recorded net losses on securities and other investments of \$41.8 million in other income (expense), net during 2008. The income tax benefit associated with this investment loss was approximately \$15.5 million.
- In 2007, the Company recognized a \$998.0 million net gain from sale of Asurion on July 3, 2007. The income tax expense associated with this gain was approximately \$381.7 million. Also included in 2007 is a net gain resulting from the sale of office buildings, in the amount of \$12.4 million, that was recorded as a reduction in costs and expenses. The income tax expense associated with this net property gain was approximately \$4.9 million.
- (6)
 The Company's significant Out-of-Pocket ("OOP") expenditures include postage and telecommunication costs which are reimbursed by the customer. OOP expenses are included in costs and expenses.
- Non-GAAP diluted earnings per share have been calculated by taking into account the impact of certain items that are not necessarily ongoing in nature, do not have a high level of predictability associated with them or are non-operational items. Management believes the exclusion of these items provides a useful basis for evaluating underlying business unit performance, but should not be considered in isolation and is not in accordance with, or a substitute for, evaluating business unit performance utilizing GAAP financial information. A reconciliation of diluted earnings per share and non-GAAP diluted earnings per share is included below. In addition, a detailed description of the items removed from net income for the three years ended December 31, 2011 are included in Item 7, Use of Non-GAAP Financial Information.
- For purposes of calculating the ratio of earnings to fixed charges, earnings consists of pretax income less equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates, plus distributed earnings of unconsolidated affiliates, plus consolidated fixed charges, plus amortization of capitalized interest, less capitalized interest. Fixed charges include gross interest expense, amortization of deferred financing expenses and an amount equivalent to interest included in rental charges. The Company has assumed that one-third of rental expense is representative of the interest factor.

Table of Contents

Reconciliation of Reported Diluted Earnings per Share to non-GAAP Diluted Earnings per Share

	Year Ended December 31,									
	2011 2010			2010		2009	2	2008		2007
GAAP Diluted Earnings per Share	\$	3.95	\$	6.73	\$	4.84	\$	4.21	\$	12.14
Contract termination payments, net		(0.03)		(0.87)						(0.03)
Employee termination expenses		0.08		0.27						
Business development/advisory expenses		0.06								
Restructuring cost to amend sales/marketing agreements		0.10								
Loss accrual		0.08								
Gain on sale of property								(0.01)		(0.10)
Net (gains) losses on securities and other investments		(0.23)		(0.87)		(0.21)		0.46		(0.02)
Loss (gain) on repurchase of convertible debentures		0.02		0.09		(0.07)		(0.11)		
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates items		0.06				(0.05)				0.04
Dividends from private equity investment				(0.89)						
Financing fee on the convertible debentures exchange and other debenture related										
interest costs						0.05				
Gain on disposition of business (Asurion) and acquisition of business (Argus)						(0.85)				(8.56)
Other										0.06
Income tax items				(0.03)		(0.12)		(0.84)		(0.05)
Non-GAAP Diluted Earnings per Share	\$	4.09	\$	4.43	\$	3.59	\$	3.71	\$	3.48
50										

Table of Contents

Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The discussions set forth in this Annual Report on Form 10-K contain statements concerning potential future events. Such forward-looking statements are based upon assumptions by the Company's management, as of the date of this Annual Report, including assumptions about risks and uncertainties faced by the Company. In addition, management may make forward-looking statements orally or in other writings, including, but not limited to, in press releases, in the annual report and in the Company's other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, (i) all statements, other than statements of historical fact, that address activities, events or developments that we expect or anticipate will or may occur in the future or that depend on future events, or (ii) statements about our future business plans and strategy and other statements that describe the Company's outlook, objectives, plans, intentions or goals, and any discussion of future operating or financial performance. Whenever used, words such as "may," "will," "would," "should," "potential,", "strategy," "anticipates," "estimates," "expects," "project," "predict," "intends," "plans," "believes," "targets" and other terms of similar meaning are intended to identify such forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are uncertain and to some extent unpredictable, and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied in, or reasonably inferred from, such forward-looking statements. If any of management's assumptions prove incorrect or should unanticipated circumstances arise, the Company's actual results could materially differ from those anticipated by such forward-looking statements. The differences could be caused by a number of factors or combination of factors including, but not limited to, those factors identified in Item 1A, "Risk Factors" of this Form 10-K. Readers are strongly encouraged to consider those factors when evaluating any forward-looking statements concerning the Company. The Company undertakes no obligation to update any forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to reflect new information, future events or developments, or otherwise.

Introduction

Originally established in 1969, the Company is a leading global provider of sophisticated information processing and computer software services and products. The Company's business units are reported as two operating Segments (Financial Services and Output Solutions). In addition, investments in the Company's real estate subsidiaries and affiliates, equity securities, private equity funds and other financial interests have been aggregated into the Investments and Other Segment.

The Company's Financial Services Segment provides technology based solutions using its own proprietary systems. The principal industries serviced include mutual fund / investment management, brokerage, retirement life and property / casualty insurance and healthcare payer industries. The Financial Services Segment's revenues are derived primarily from remote or full service transfer agency or third party administration product offerings that utilize the Company's proprietary software applications being processed at the Company's data centers. The Financial Services Segment's revenues are generally based on the number of accounts/members/participants or transactions processed. The Company's mutual fund revenues are dependent upon the number of accounts or transactions processed. ALPS derives revenue from asset servicing and asset distribution activities, which are generally based on a percentage of assets for which services are provided. The Financial Services Segment's healthcare administration processing revenues are generally earned on a per member, per month basis for BPO services and ASP agreements. Argus derives revenue from pharmacy claims processing services and from investment earnings related to client balances maintained by Argus. The Company also derives revenues from transfer agency asset balances invested and investment earnings related to customer cash balances maintained in Company investment accounts. The Company also licenses its business process management ("BPM") software, healthcare administration processing systems software, certain investment management and, outside the U.S., certain mutual fund shareowner accounting systems. Revenues for licensed software products are primarily comprised

Table of Contents

of: (i) license fees; (ii) consulting and development revenues based primarily on time and materials billings; and (iii) annual maintenance fees. The license fee component of these revenues is not significant. The Company provides data processing services to certain clients who utilize the Company's AWD products. Revenues are primarily based upon data center capacity utilized, which is significantly influenced by the volume of transactions or the number of users. The Financial Services Segment records investment income (dividends, interest and net gains (losses) on investment securities) within Other income, net.

The Financial Services Segment derives part of its income from its pro rata share in the earnings (losses) of certain unconsolidated affiliates, including BFDS, IFDS U.K. and IFDS L.P.

The Output Solutions Segment's revenues are derived from presentation and delivery (either printed or electronic) and archival of customer documents, and are based generally on the number of images processed and the range of customization and personalization options chosen by the client. Formatting and custom programming revenues are based on time and materials billings or on the number of images produced.

The Investments and Other Segment's revenues are derived from rental income from Company owned and third party real estate leases. Rental income from Company owned real estate is recorded as revenue when earned, which is based on lease terms, but is eliminated in consolidation for the portion that relates to real estate leased to the Company's other consolidated subsidiaries. The Investments and Other Segment records investment income (dividends, interest and net gains (losses) on investment securities) within Other income, net. The Investments and Other Segment derives part of its income from it pro rata share in the earnings (losses) of certain unconsolidated affiliates.

Significant Events

Acquisition of ALPS Holdings, Inc.

On October 31, 2011, DST completed the acquisition of ALPS Holdings, Inc. ("ALPS"), a provider of a comprehensive suite of asset servicing and asset gathering solutions to open-end mutual funds, closed-end funds ("CEFs"), exchange-traded funds ("ETFs") and alternative investment funds.

ALPS' solutions fall into two major areas: asset servicing and asset gathering. Asset servicing clients include:

	Open-ena mutuai funas
	Exchange traded funds
	Closed-end mutual funds
	Hedge funds
ALPS' fund servicii	ng platform offers:
	Fund administration
	Tax administration
	Fund accounting
	Transfer agency

Legal and compliance	
Creative services	
Medallion distribution	
Hedge fund administration	

Table of Contents

ALPS' asset gathering solutions include:

Marketing and wholesaling services

Closed-end fund IPO launch platform providing product sales, road show and marketing support

Proprietary open-end, closed-end and Exchange Traded funds under ALPS Advisors

ALPS has approximately 340 employees and recorded \$14.6 million of operating revenues for the two months ended December 31, 2011. As of December 31, 2011, ALPS had Assets Under Administration of \$93.6 billion and Assets Under Active Distribution of \$51.9 billion.

The acquisition broadens the range of products and services DST will offer to the investment management and brokerage industries. ALPS' comprehensive solution set allows DST to service market segments DST was previously unable to service, positions DST to service hedge funds and ETFs and expands DST's offerings beyond transfer agency. ALPS's financial results have been consolidated with those of DST beginning October 31, 2011, and are reported as part of DST's Financial Services Segment. At closing, DST paid \$251.9 million funded from cash, existing credit facilities and a new term loan credit facility.

Acquisition of Lateral Group Limited

On August 5, 2011, DST's Innovative Output Solutions ("IOS") subsidiary acquired the outstanding stock of Lateral Group Limited ("Lateral"), a U.K. company engaged in integrated, data driven, multi-channel marketing. The acquisition of Lateral complements the existing IOS business in terms of services offered and business outlook. In addition, this acquisition allows IOS to extend and develop its service/product offerings by further integrating communications through print, data and e-solutions and providing additional solutions such as data insight and online marketing to the IOS client base.

Acquisition of IntelliSource Healthcare Solutions

On July 1, 2011, DST acquired, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, DST Health Solutions, LLC, the assets of IntelliSource Healthcare Solutions ("IntelliSource"), whose principal product is CareConnect which provides an automated care management system. The addition of the IntelliSource suite of solutions broadens DST Health Solutions' product offering for integrated care management, providing DST Health Solutions' health plan clients access to an array of valuable solutions including integrated care management, workflow and analytics that will enable them to collaboratively facilitate proactive care and optimize resources at all levels of the healthcare system. DST is integrating CareConnect into its proprietary claims offerings.

Acquisition of Newkirk Products, Inc.

On May 2, 2011, DST acquired the outstanding stock of Newkirk Products, Inc. ("Newkirk"), an industry leader in the development and deployment of communications, education, and investment information for clients in the retirement planning, managed care, and wealth management industries. Newkirk is operated as a unit of the Output Solutions Segment and its results will be reported in that segment from the date of acquisition. DST believes the acquisition of Newkirk broadens the solution set available to multiple DST business units. Newkirk's innovative on-demand publishing and marketing solutions complement DST Output's breadth of transactional and digital fulfillment solutions, making it easier for companies to craft effective customer communications across print, mobile, and electronic channels. It also enables clients of DST Retirement Solutions to access a more fully integrated offering that leverages Newkirk's capabilities geared to the needs of plan sponsors and participants, including communication and education materials, financial planning tools and plan documents. The acquisition of Newkirk also extends DST Output's capabilities in the healthcare industry enabling the Company to produce pre-enrollment communications, including information designed to help a participant personalize their health care plan.

Table of Contents

Acquisition of Finix Business Strategies, LLC, Finix Converge, LLC and Subserveo Inc.

On April 29, 2011, DST acquired, through a newly formed subsidiary, DST Brokerage Solutions, LLC, the assets of Finix Business Strategies, LLC ("Finix"), a financial services consulting firm with extensive brokerage and technology expertise. DST Brokerage Solutions also acquired the assets of Finix Converge, LLC ("Converge"), a technology firm that develops and distributes an enterprise social networking and media platform to enable firms to connect and collaborate with their constituents more effectively online. By combining Finix Business Strategies' extensive knowledge and brokerage expertise with DST's breadth and depth of technology and services, DST plans to address broker-dealers' unique challenges through an expanded suite of products and solutions. DST Brokerage Solutions, LLC is part of the Financial Services Segment.

On June 20, 2011, DST acquired Subserveo Inc. ("Subserveo"), a provider of automated compliance and surveillance solutions to broker-dealers and investment advisors throughout the U.S. and Canada. Subserveo's solutions perform daily analysis of transactions, orders and account holdings and provide detailed compliance alerts and case management. Subserveo is operated as part of DST Brokerage Solutions.

Finix, Converge and Subserveo along with DST TASS, the Company's subsidiary that provides full service subaccounting services, will be operated as a single business unit. This business unit will be DST's channel to provide products to the broker/dealer market and will manage the distribution of the Company's AWD, Vision Professional and print/mail products to that market. Finix, Converge and Subserveo are development stage companies. DST anticipates additional investment in these companies and DST's retirement and insurance processing businesses will be required for them to reach their full potential.

DST invested approximately \$365.4 million in acquisitions in 2011, from which the Company expects to record approximately \$270.0 million of operating revenue in 2012. DST views investment management, brokerage, retirement, insurance and healthcare as key vertical markets for the Company and plans to market and enhance its comprehensive solution sets for each of these vertical markets.

Formation of DST Insurance Solutions, LLC

IFDS Ireland, a subsidiary of IFDS L.P., a joint venture of DST and State Street Corporation, acquired Percana Ltd., an outsourcing services and software provider to the global life and pensions industry headquartered in Dublin. Percana has proprietary software for the processing of life and annuity products. Percana licenses its software and also provides policy processing administration services and hosting. As part of a strategy to provide these services on a broader basis, Percana products will be offered through IFDS U.K. in the United Kingdom and continental Europe. To address the North American market, DST has licensed the software from the joint venture and will offer a remote service ("ASP") and, in partnership with BFDS, a full service ("BPO") product. DST has formed DST Insurance Solutions, LLC ("DSTIS") to support this effort and will be responsible for the costs to adapt the product to the North American market. DSTIS has been established to bring a contemporary, flexible solution to the insurance industry that is well-suited for the rapid introduction of new products and to provide processing solutions to DST's client base as products are introduced to meet the customer needs for payout (retirement) products as investors transition from the accumulation phase of investment.

Acquisition of dsicmm Group Limited

On July 30, 2010, DST, through its wholly-owned U.K. subsidiary, IOS, acquired dsicmm Group Limited ("dsicmm") for \$3.7 million in cash and the issuance of IOS stock. Prior to closing the transaction, IOS held DST's debt-free U.K. print/mail operations. After completion of the transaction, DST owns approximately 70.5% of IOS and the remaining 29.5% was owned by a group of the former

Table of Contents

stockholders of dsicmm. DST has consolidated the financial results of the combined IOS business from the closing date and has reflected the 29.5% owned by former stockholders of dsicmm as a non-controlling interest. In January 2012, DST acquired the remaining shares of IOS for approximately \$17.7 million, making IOS a wholly owned subsidiary.

dsicmm provides integrated print and communication solutions in the U.K. DST believes that the acquisition of dsicmm complements its existing Output Solutions business in the U.K., increases the overall size of the business, broadens the service/product offerings and expands and diversifies the client base.

Debt activities

The Company entered into a new \$600 million revolving credit agreement in April 2010 and renewed and increased its revolving promissory note with BFDS from \$100 million to \$140 million in October 2010. During 2011, the Company amended its revolving syndicated bank facility. The amendment extended the maturity date to July 1, 2015 and lowered the interest rate spreads and facility fees to reflect then-current market conditions. In addition, the aggregate commitments under the facility were increased from \$600 million to \$630 million. In August 2010, the Company issued \$370 million of Senior Notes with a weighted average interest rate and life of 5.06% and 8.25 years, respectively. After issuing the Senior Notes, the Company called and redeemed the Series A and Series B senior convertible debentures, fully retiring these series of debentures. During 2010, the Company paid \$498.5 million to repurchase or redeem Series A, B and C senior convertible debentures.

In May 2010, the Company decreased the maximum size of its accounts receivable securitization program from \$175 million to \$150 million. On May 19, 2011, the Company renewed its accounts receivable securitization program. In connection with the renewal, the maturity date became May 17, 2012, and the interest rate spreads were decreased to reflect then-current market conditions. The Company entered into a new \$50 million equipment credit facility with a vendor that can be used for equipment, software and service purchases from the vendor during the draw period, which ends on December 31, 2012. DST's IOS subsidiary entered into a loan agreement denominated in British Pounds with International Financial Data Services Limited ("IFDS UK"). The agreement provides for unsecured revolving borrowings by IOS and matures on December 31, 2015. IFDS UK may demand a prepayment of the loan by IOS at any time upon completion of a notice period. IOS also entered into a real estate agreement in the amount of \$9.3 million and denominated in British Pounds, which is secured by real estate in the U.K. and matures in July 2018.

Loss of Output Solutions client

An Output Solutions telecommunications client, representing approximately 6.6% of 2009 annual Output Solutions Segment operating revenues, terminated its contract and internalized its bill production processing on April 30, 2010. DST received a contract termination payment of approximately \$63.0 million in connection with this termination.

Acquisition of Argus Health Systems, Inc.

Prior to March 31, 2009, DST owned a 50% equity interest in Argus, which provides pharmacy claims processing and other related services to help clients manage pharmacy benefit programs. On March 31, 2009, DST purchased the remaining 50% interest of Argus for \$57.0 million in cash. As a result, Argus is no longer an unconsolidated affiliate, but rather is a wholly owned subsidiary resulting in DST consolidating the results of Argus after March 31, 2009 rather than recording equity in earnings of Argus. The acquisition of the remaining 50% of Argus was treated as a step acquisition. Accordingly, DST remeasured its previously held equity interest in Argus to fair value, in the amount of

Table of Contents

\$57.0 million, and recorded a gain of \$41.7 million, which is included in Other income, net in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Workforce Reduction

On January 29, 2010, DST implemented a plan to reduce its workforce during 2010. This plan was necessitated by the extended economic downturn which negatively impacted the financial services industry. The plan resulted in a reduction of approximately 7% of the employee workforce, affecting all DST domestic and international business units. As a result of this workforce reduction, the Company incurred a pre-tax charge in 2010 of approximately \$20.9 million in connection with its payment of related employee termination expenses. The plan was completed in December 2010.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

An off-balance sheet arrangement is any transaction, agreement or other contractual arrangement involving an unconsolidated entity under which a company has (1) made guarantees, (2) a retained or a contingent interest in transferred assets, (3) an obligation under derivative instruments classified as equity, or (4) any obligation arising out of a material variable interest in an unconsolidated entity that provides financing, liquidity, market risk or credit risk support to the company, or that engages in leasing, hedging or research and development arrangements with the company.

The Company believes that its guarantee arrangements will not have a material current or future effect on its financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, capital expenditures, capital resources, liquidity or results of operations. These arrangements are described in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report.

In January 2009, the Company entered an interest rate swap with a bank to fix the interest rate on its syndicated real estate credit agreement at approximately 4.49% (includes 1.75% applicable margin rate) beginning January 2010. This interest rate swap qualifies as a derivative instrument.

The Company's interest rate swap is a cash flow hedge of future interest payments under the Company's real estate credit agreement and uses a pay-fixed, receive-variable, forward starting interest rate swap. The Company's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking this hedge is to eliminate the variability of interest cash flows related to the Company's floating-rate real estate credit agreement. Changes in the cash flows of the interest rate swap are expected to offset the changes in cash flows attributable to fluctuations in the one-month LIBOR benchmark interest rate. The derivative instrument is a receive floating, pay 2.74% fixed, forward starting interest rate swap with an effective date of January 4, 2010 and a maturity date of September 16, 2013. Effectiveness of the hedge relationship is assessed on a quarterly basis both prospectively and retrospectively using the "cumulative dollar offset" method, in which the cumulative changes in the value of the hedging instrument are directly compared with the cumulative change in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item. A dollar offset ratio of between 0.80 and 1.25 is required in order to qualify for hedge accounting treatment. At inception of the hedge, the cumulative dollar offset ratio is 1.00 since the terms of the perfect hypothetical swap match those of the actual swap. The derivative accounting guidance indicates that hedge effectiveness occurs only if the cumulative gain or loss on the derivative hedging instrument exceeds the cumulative change in the expected future cash flows of the hedged transaction. At December 31, 2011, the fair value of the Company's pay-fixed, receive-variable, forward starting interest rate swap was a liability of \$4.3 million, which is included in other non-current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company determined there was no ineffectiveness during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, which resulted in the changes in fair value of this swap being recorded in other comprehensive i

Accounting and reporting guidance for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and hedging activities requires that an entity recognize all derivatives as

Table of Contents

either assets or liabilities in the balance sheet and measure those instruments at fair value, and that the changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each period in current earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on whether a derivative is designated as part of a hedge transaction and, if it is, the type of hedge transaction.

The Company may have obligations arising out of variable interests in unconsolidated entities. See the discussion included in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report.

In addition, the Company has \$86.5 million of convertible senior debentures outstanding at December 31, 2011. The debentures are convertible under specified circumstances into shares of the Company's common stock.

New Authoritative Accounting Guidance

Comprehensive Income

In June 2011, the FASB issued an accounting standard update that modifies the presentation of comprehensive income in the financial statements. The standard requires an entity to present the total of comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. This standard eliminates the current option to report other comprehensive income and its components in the statement of changes in equity. This new accounting guidance is effective for annual and interim periods after January 1, 2012. Because there is no change to the determination of comprehensive income, the Company believes the adoption of this guidance will not have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Testing Goodwill for Impairment

In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued new authoritative guidance related to testing goodwill for impairment, intended to simplify how entities test goodwill for impairment. The guidance permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more than likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test. The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as having a likelihood of more than 50 percent. The guidance is effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company believes the adoption of this new accounting guidance will not have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure

In May 2011, the FASB issued new authoritative guidance related to fair value measurement and disclosure requirements. The guidance is intended to improve the comparability of fair value measurements presented and disclosed in financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards. The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company believes the adoption of this new accounting guidance will not have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Earnings per Share Proposed Accounting Standard

In August 2008, the FASB issued a revised exposure draft, that would amend current earnings per share accounting guidance to clarify guidance for mandatorily convertible instruments, the treasury stock method, contingently issuable shares, and contracts that may be settled in cash or shares. The final authoritative accounting guidance has yet to be issued. In April 2009, the FASB decided to pause the earnings per share project.

Table of Contents

The proposed guidance, which is designed for convergence with international accounting standards, would require the use of the "if-converted" method from the date of issuance of the convertible debentures. The proposed guidance would remove the ability of a company to support the presumption that the convertible securities will be satisfied in cash and not converted into shares of common stock. Under this "if converted" method, GAAP diluted earnings per share would have been \$3.85 and \$5.95 (versus GAAP reported earnings of \$3.95 and \$6.73) for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Accordingly, the Company's stated intention to settle conversions of its convertible debentures with cash for the principal and accrued and unpaid interest and issue common stock for any conversion value amount over the principal and accrued and unpaid interest amounts would no longer be accepted under the proposed guidance. Retrospective application would be required for all changes, except that retrospective application would be prohibited for contracts that were either settled in cash prior to adoption or modified prior to adoption to require cash settlement. For DST, adoption of this accounting guidance, as proposed, will require retroactive restatement of the Company's diluted earnings per share calculations subsequent to the issuance of the convertible debentures. The revised exposure draft also contains other EPS computational changes (e.g., treasury stock method considerations) that may have an effect on the Company's diluted earnings per share calculation. DST is continuing to monitor the FASB's progress towards finalizing this proposed accounting guidance.

The proposed change in accounting principle would affect the calculation of diluted earnings per share during the period the debentures are outstanding, but would not affect DST's ability to ultimately settle the convertible debentures in cash, shares or any combination thereof.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The Company's discussion and analysis of its financial condition, results of operations and cash flows are based upon its consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires the Company to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

The Company believes the following critical accounting policies affect its more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements: revenue recognition; software capitalization and amortization; depreciation of fixed assets; valuation of long-lived and intangible assets and goodwill; accounting for investments; and accounting for income taxes.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when it is realized or realizable and it is earned. The majority of the Company's revenues are computer processing and services revenues and are recognized upon completion of the services provided. Software license fees, maintenance fees and other ancillary fees

Table of Contents

are recognized as services are provided or delivered and all customer obligations have been met. The Company generally does not have customer obligations that extend past one year. Revenue from equipment sales is recognized as equipment is shipped. Revenue from operating leases is recognized monthly as the rent accrues. Billing for services in advance of performance is recorded as deferred revenue. Allowances for billing adjustments and doubtful account expense are estimated as revenues are recognized and are recorded as reductions in revenues, and the annual amounts are immaterial to the Company's consolidated financial statements.

The Company recognizes revenue when the following criteria are met: 1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; 2) delivery has occurred or services have been rendered; 3) the sales price is fixed or determinable; and 4) collectability is reasonably assured. If there is a customer acceptance provision in a contract or if there is uncertainty about customer acceptance, the associated revenue is deferred until the Company has evidence of customer acceptance.

Revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables are evaluated to determine if the deliverables (items) can be divided into more than one unit of accounting. An item can generally be considered a separate unit of accounting if all of the following criteria are met: 1) the delivered item(s) has value to the customer on a standalone basis; 2) there is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered item(s); and 3) if the arrangement includes a general right of return relative to the delivered item(s), delivery or performance of the undelivered item(s) is considered probable and substantially in the control of the Company. Once separate units of accounting are determined, the arrangement consideration should be allocated at the inception of the arrangement to all deliverables using the relative selling price method. New revenue recognition accounting guidance adopted prospectively by the Company on January 1, 2011 eliminated the use of the residual method of allocation for multiple element arrangements. For multiple element revenue arrangements entered prior to January 1, 2011, in cases where there was objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered item(s) in an arrangement but no such evidence for the delivered item(s), the residual method was used to allocate the arrangement consideration. For units of accounting which include more than one deliverable, the Company generally defers all revenue for the unit of accounting until the period over which the last undelivered item is delivered. The adoption of this new authoritative accounting guidance did not have a significant impact to the Company's results during the year ended December 31, 2011.

Software license revenues are recognized at the time the contract is signed, the software is delivered and no future software obligations exist. Deferral of software license revenue billed results from delayed payment provisions, disproportionate discounts between the license and other services or the inability to unbundle certain services.

The Company recognizes revenues for maintenance services ratably over the contract term, after collectability has been assured.

The Company derives over 90% of its revenues as a result of providing processing and services under contracts. The majority of the amount is billed on a monthly basis generally with thirty-day collection terms. Revenues are recognized for monthly processing and services upon performance of the services. In the event a portion of the Company's revenues are due 12 months or more from the invoice date, the Company accounts for the revenue as not being fixed and determinable. In these cases, the revenue is recognized as it becomes due.

The Company's standard business practice is to bill monthly for development, consulting and training services on a time and materials basis. In some cases the Company bills a fixed fee for development and consulting services. For fixed fee arrangements, the Company recognizes revenue on a "percentage of completion" basis.

Table of Contents

The Company derives less than 10% of its revenues from licensing products. The Company licenses its asset management products and its AWD (BPM) product generally to non-mutual fund customers and international customers, its healthcare administration processing software solutions to domestic customers and its customer billing software solution products to international and domestic customers. Perpetual software license revenues are recognized at the time the contract is signed, the software is delivered and no future software obligations exist. Deferral of software license revenue billed results from delayed payment provisions, disproportionate discounts between the license and other services or the inability to unbundle certain services. Term software license revenues are recognized ratably over the term of the license agreement.

The Company has entered into various agreements with related parties, principally unconsolidated affiliates, to utilize the Company's data processing facilities and computer software systems. The Company believes that the terms of its contracts with related parties are fair to the Company and are no less favorable than those obtained from unaffiliated parties.

The Company assesses collection based on a variety of factors, including past collection history with the customer and the credit-worthiness of the customer. The Company generally does not request collateral from its customers. If it is determined that collection of revenues is not reasonably assured, revenue is deferred and is recognized at the time it becomes reasonably assured, which is generally upon receipt of cash. Allowances for billing adjustments are determined as revenues are recognized and are recorded as reductions in revenues. Doubtful account expense for the Company is immaterial.

Software capitalization and amortization

The Company makes substantial investments in software to enhance the functionality and facilitate the delivery of its processing and services as well as its sale of licensed products. Purchased software is recorded at cost and is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic lives of three to five years. The Company also develops a large portion of its software internally. The Company is required to capitalize software development costs under the authoritative accounting guidance related to accounting for the costs of computer software developed or obtained for internal use, which requires capitalization of certain development costs after the design has been approved and management is committed to funding the project. The authoritative accounting guidance related to accounting for the costs of computer software to be sold, leased or otherwise marketed applies to software that will be sold or delivered to third parties and requires capitalization of research and development costs after technological feasibility has been established and management is committed to funding the project. The capitalized software development costs are generally amortized on a straight-line basis, based on an estimated economic life, which is dependent on the nature of the project. The Company has assigned lives of three to five years for capitalized software development.

Significant management judgment is required in determining what projects and costs associated with software development will be capitalized and in assigning estimated economic lives to the completed projects. Management specifically analyzes software development projects and analyzes the percentage of completion as compared to the initial plan and subsequent forecasts, milestones achieved and the commitment to continue funding the projects. Significant changes in any of these items may result in discontinuing capitalization of development costs, as well as immediately expensing previously capitalized costs. The Company reviews, on a quarterly basis, its capitalized software for possible impairment.

Depreciation of fixed assets

The Company's approach on personal property, specifically data processing, printing and inserting equipment, is to own the property as opposed to leasing it where practicable. The Company believes this approach provides it better flexibility for disposing or redeploying the asset as it nears the

Table of Contents

completion of its economic life. The Company depreciates data processing equipment using accelerated depreciation methods over the following lives: (1) non-mainframe equipment three years; (2) mainframe central processing unit four years; and (3) mainframe direct access storage devices and tape devices five years. The Company depreciates furniture and fixtures over estimated useful lives, principally three to five years, using accelerated depreciation methods. The Company depreciates large printing and inserting equipment used by the Output Solutions Segment over a five to seven year life using accelerated depreciation methods. The Company depreciates leasehold improvements using the straight-line method over the lesser of the term of the lease or life of the improvements. Management judgment is required in assigning economic lives to fixed assets. Management specifically analyzes fixed asset additions, remaining net book values and gain/loss upon disposition of fixed assets to determine the appropriateness of assigned economic lives. Significant changes in any of these items may result in changes in the economic life assigned and the resulting depreciation expense.

Valuation of long-lived and intangible assets and goodwill

The Company assesses the impairment of goodwill at least annually and assesses identifiable intangibles, long-lived assets and related assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Factors that are considered important which could trigger an impairment review include the following: significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results; significant changes in the manner of the Company's use of the acquired assets or the strategy for the overall business; and significant negative industry or economic trends. When it is determined that the carrying value of intangibles, long-lived assets and related goodwill may not be recoverable based upon the existence of one or more of the above indicators of impairment, the Company assesses actual impairment based on gross cash flows.

The Company and its unconsolidated affiliates do not amortize goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, instead these assets are tested for impairment annually (as of October 1) and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. No impairments have been identified as a result of these annual tests. The fair value of the reporting units was estimated using the expected present value of future cash flows.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had \$1,218.1 million of long-lived and intangible assets and goodwill on its Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Accounting for investments

The Company has three significant types of investments that require accounting judgment: 1) investments in available-for-sale securities, which are comprised principally of investments in State Street, Computershare and Euronet Worldwide, Inc.; 2) investments in unconsolidated affiliates, which is comprised principally of BFDS, IFDS U.K., IFDS L.P. and certain real estate joint ventures; and 3) investments in private equity funds and other investments accounted for under the cost method.

The Company accounts for investments in corporations, for which it owns less than 20% and does not have significant influence, in accordance with authoritative guidance related to accounting for certain investments in debt and equity securities, which requires the Company to designate its investments as trading or available-for-sale. At December 31, 2011, the Company had approximately \$773.0 million of available-for-sale securities. Available-for-sale securities are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and recorded net of deferred taxes directly to stockholders' equity as accumulated other comprehensive income. At December 31, 2011, the Company's available-for-sale securities had gross unrealized holding gains of \$438.3 million, gross unrealized holding losses of \$4.3 million and unrealized gains from foreign currency exchange rates of \$23.4 million.

The impact of a 10% change in fair value of the Company's available-for-sale investments would be approximately \$47.2 million to comprehensive income. The Company records an investment impairment

Table of Contents

charge for an investment with a gross unrealized holding loss resulting from a decline in value that is other than temporary. Future adverse changes in market conditions or poor operating results of underlying investments could result in losses or an inability to recover the carrying value of the investments that may not be reflected in an investment's current carrying value, thereby possibly requiring an impairment charge in the future, which could have a material effect on the Company's financial position.

The equity method of accounting is used for investments in corporations in which the Company or its subsidiaries have at least a 20% voting interest and significant influence but does not control, and for all investments in partnerships and similar interests which the Company has at least 5% ownership and does not control. The Company classifies these investments as unconsolidated affiliates. Under the equity method, the Company recognizes income or losses from its pro-rata share of these unconsolidated affiliates' net income or loss, which changes the carrying value of the investment of the unconsolidated affiliate. In certain cases, pro-rata losses are recognized only to the extent of the Company's investment and advances to the unconsolidated affiliate.

Partnership and similar investment interests (including investments in private equity funds where the Company is a limited partner) in which the Company has at least a 5% ownership are accounted for on an equity method basis based on the Company's pro-rata ownership; the cost method of accounting is used for these investments when the Company has a de-minimus ownership percentage and no ability to exercise significant influence. The Company's cost method investments are held at the lower of cost or market.

Accounting for income taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with authoritative accounting guidance. The objectives of accounting for income taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in an entity's financial statements or tax returns. Judgment is required in addressing the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our consolidated financial statements or tax returns (e.g., realization of deferred tax assets, changes in tax laws or interpretations thereof).

In addition, the Company is subject to the continuous examination of its income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities. A change in the assessment of the outcomes of such matters could materially impact the consolidated financial statements. The calculation of tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax regulations. In accordance with authoritative accounting guidance related to accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, the Company recognizes liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on its estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional taxes may be required. If the Company ultimately determines that payment of these amounts is unnecessary, then it reverses the liability and recognizes a tax benefit during the period in which it determines that the liability is no longer necessary. The Company also recognizes tax benefits to the extent that it is more likely than not that its positions will be sustained if challenged by the taxing authorities. To the extent the Company prevails in matters for which liabilities have been established, or is required to pay amounts in excess of its liabilities, the Company's effective tax rate in a given period may be materially affected. An unfavorable tax settlement would require cash payments and may result in an increase in the Company's effective tax rate in the year of resolution. A favorable tax settlement would be recognized as a reduction in its effective tax rate in the year of resolution. The Company reports interest and penalties related to uncertain income tax positions as income taxes.

Table of Contents

Results of Operations

The following table summarizes the Company's operating results (millions, except per share amounts):

	Year Ended December 31,						
	2011	2010			2009		
Revenues							
Operating revenues							
Financial Services	\$ 1,138.4	\$	1,156.7	\$	1,115.2		
Output Solutions	609.8		564.1		482.3		
Investments and Other	56.3		57.8		59.4		
Elimination Adjustments	(60.5)		(65.0)		(61.5)		
	1,744.0		1,713.6		1,595.4		
% change from prior year	1.8%		7.4%		(4.8)%		
Out-of-pocket reimbursements	1.070		7.170		(1.0) //		
Financial Services	42.1		44.6		54.3		
Output Solutions	607.0		575.8		571.5		
Investments and Other	1.6		0.4		0.7		
Elimination Adjustments	(6.0)		(5.9)		(4.0)		
Dimination / tojustinonts	(0.0)		(3.7)		(1.0)		
	644.7		6140		622.5		
	044.7		614.9		622.5		
% change from prior year	4.8%		(1.2)%		2.1%		
Total revenues	\$ 2,388.7	\$	2,328.5	\$	2,217.9		
% change from prior year	2.6%		5.0%		(3.0)%		
Income from operations							
Financial Services	\$ 237.9	\$	273.6	\$	248.6		
Output Solutions	21.2		78.8		22.7		
Investments and Other	8.9		0.1		10.7		
Elimination Adjustments	(7.9)		(7.9)		(7.7)		
	260.1		344.6		274.3		
Interest expense	(46.5)		(46.1)		(42.2)		
Other income, net	38.7		141.7		85.1		
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	21.7		36.4		37.3		
1 ,							
Income before income taxes and non-controlling interest	274.0		476.6		354.5		
Income taxes	95.8		159.1		112.9		
nicone wice	75.0		107.1		112.9		
Net income	170 2		217.5		241.6		
- 100	178.2		317.5		241.0		
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest	4.9		1.0				
No. 1	400.4		240 =	_			
Net income attributable to DST Systems, Inc.	\$ 183.1	\$	318.5	\$	241.6		
Basic earnings per share	\$ 4.01	\$	6.78	\$	4.87		
Diluted earnings per share	\$ 3.95	\$	6.73	\$	4.84		
Non-GAAP diluted earnings per share	\$ 4.09	\$	4.43	\$	3.59		
Cash dividends per share of common stock	\$ 0.70	\$	0.60	\$			
Consolidated revenues							

Consolidated total revenues (including Out-of-Pocket ("OOP") reimbursements) increased \$60.2 million or 2.6% during the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared December 31, 2010 and increased \$110.6 million or 5.0% during the year ended December 31, 2010 as

Table of Contents

December 31, 2009. Consolidated operating revenues increased \$30.4 million or 1.8% in 2011 as compared to 2010 and increased \$118.2 million or 7.4% in 2010 as compared to 2009.

In 2011, the Company received a \$3.5 million contract termination payment for a subaccounting client. In 2010, the Company received a contract termination payment of \$10.4 million payment for a subaccounting client (\$9.1 million in the Financial Services Segment and \$1.3 million in Output Solutions Segment). In addition, an Output Solutions telecommunications client, representing approximately 6.6% of 2009 annual Output Solutions operating revenues, terminated its contract and internalized bill production processing in April 2010, which resulted in a contract termination payment to the Company of approximately \$63.0 million.

Consolidated operating revenues increased during 2011 as a result of an increase in Output Solutions Segment revenues of \$45.7 million, which was partially offset by a \$18.3 million decrease in Financial Services Segment revenues. Excluding the contract termination payments mentioned above from 2011 and 2010, consolidated operating revenues for 2011 increased \$100.3 million or 6.1%. On this basis, Output Solutions operating revenues increased \$110.0 million or 22.0% and Financial Services operating revenues decreased \$12.7 million or 1.1% during 2011 as compared to 2010. The increase in Output Solutions is attributable to operating revenues from the acquisitions of Lateral Group on August 5, 2011, Newkirk Products on May 2, 2011 and a full year of operating revenues from dsicmm Group which was acquired on July 30, 2010, partially offset by the loss of revenues from the telecommunications and subaccounting clients that terminated their processing contracts in mid-2010. The decrease in Financial Services results is from lower mutual fund shareowner processing revenues and lower DST Health Solutions processing revenues, partially offset by operating revenues from the acquisitions of ALPS on October 31, 2011, which contributed \$14.6 million of revenues, revenues from other 2011 Financial Services business acquisitions (Intellisource, Subserveo, Finix and Converge) and higher DST Global Solutions operating revenues.

The increase in consolidated operating revenues during 2010 was primarily attributable to increases of \$41.5 million in Financial Services and \$81.8 million in Output Solutions, both as compared to 2009. Excluding the client contract termination payments mentioned above from 2010, consolidated operating revenues for 2010 increased \$44.8 million or 2.8%. On this basis, Financial Services operating revenues increased \$32.4 million and Output Solutions operating revenues increased \$17.5 million. The increase in Financial Services operating revenues is from the March 31, 2009 consolidation of Argus Health Systems ("Argus") for a full year in 2010 versus nine months in 2009, which increased operating revenues by approximately \$26.0 million, and from changes in foreign currency rates which increased operating revenues by approximately \$10.2 million and higher DST Global Solutions operating revenues. These Financial Services increases were partially offset by lower revenues from DST Health Solutions and lower mutual fund shareowner processing revenues from lower levels of accounts serviced. The increase in Output Solutions operating revenues to the Output Solutions Segment post acquisition, partially offset by the loss of revenues from a terminated telecommunications client in April 2010, lower volumes from existing clients and lower revenue per unit (images produced and items mailed) processed.

Consolidated OOP reimbursements increased \$29.8 million or 4.8% in 2011 as compared to 2010 and decreased \$7.6 million or 1.2% in 2010 as compared to 2009. The net increase in consolidated OOP reimbursements in 2011 was primarily from a \$31.2 million increase in the Output Solutions Segment associated with the acquisitions of dsicmm, Lateral and Newkirk. The net decrease in consolidated OOP reimbursement revenue in 2010 was primarily due to a \$9.7 million reduction in Financial Services OOP reimbursements due to lower volumes, partially offset by an increase in Output Solutions OOP reimbursements of \$4.3 million, attributable to \$15.2 million of dsicmm revenues, which were partially offset by lower processing volumes and the client loss described above.

Table of Contents

Income from operations

Consolidated income from operations decreased \$84.5 million or 24.5% to \$260.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to 2010 and increased \$70.3 million or 25.6% to \$344.6 million during the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to 2009. The \$84.5 million decrease in consolidated income from operations in 2011 is primarily attributable to declines of \$35.7 million in Financial Services and \$57.6 million in Output Solutions, both as compared to 2010. The \$70.3 million in Course in consolidated income from operations in 2010 is primarily attributable to increases of \$25.0 million in Financial Services and \$56.1 million in Output Solutions, both as compared to 2009.

U.S. income from operations decreased \$69.7 million or 20.3% as compared to 2010 and increased \$43.3 million or 14.4% in 2010 as compared to 2009. International income from operations decreased \$14.8 million in 2011 as compared to 2010 and increased \$27.0 million in 2010 as compared to 2009.

As mentioned in the consolidated revenues section above, the Company received client contract termination payments in both 2011 and 2010 resulting from clients early terminating their processing agreements. The favorable increase to income from operations, net of operating costs incurred in connection with the contract termination, was \$2.0 million in 2011 (Financial Services Segment) and \$67.2 million in 2010 (\$7.5 million in Financial Services and \$59.7 million in Output Solutions). In addition, the Company incurred employee termination expenses during 2011 and 2010 to restructure and reduce its workforce, which reduced income from operations. Costs associated with these employee termination actions in 2011 were \$6.4 million (\$1.3 million in Financial Services and \$5.1 million in Output Solutions) and \$20.9 million in 2010 (\$14.3 million in Financial Services and \$6.6 million in Output Solutions). In 2011, the Financial Services Segment incurred \$7.3 million of costs to amend and restructure a sales / marketing agreement of an acquired business, which decreased income from operations. In 2011, the Company incurred business development expenses such as legal, accounting, investment banking and other professional fees to complete the 2011 business acquisitions of \$3.3 million (\$3.1 million in Financial Services and \$0.2 million in Output Solutions), which reduced income from operations. The Financial Services Segment incurred \$1.8 million of business advisory expenses in 2011, which decreased income from operations, associated with the DST Board of Directors retaining advisors to assist the Board with its ongoing review of DST's business plan, assets and investment portfolio. In 2011, the Company recorded a \$3.5 million loss accrual associated with a regulatory inquiry regarding the processing of certain pharmacy claims during 2006 to 2009, which decreased income from operations. In 2010, the Investments and Other Segment incurred \$10.2 million of costs associated with a charitable donation of appreciated marketable securities, which decreased income from operations.

Excluding the income from operations effects of the items described in the preceding paragraph, consolidated income from operations in 2011 decreased \$28.1 million to \$280.4 million as compared to 2010. On this basis, the \$28.1 million decrease in consolidated income from operations is primarily attributable to declines of \$27.5 million in Financial Services and \$1.4 million in Investments and Other, and an increase of \$0.8 million in Output Solutions, each as compared to 2010. On this basis, the decrease in Financial Services income from operations is attributable to lower operating revenues and higher costs associated with new business initiatives, partially offset by lower deferred compensation costs of \$3.8 million (the effect of which is offset as unrealized appreciation on trading securities in other income, net). The new business initiatives include business development and start-up costs for DST's insurance, brokerage and retirement businesses. The Company expects to continue to make investments in these business initiatives in 2012 and anticipates it will incur \$0.60 to \$0.65 of after tax expense per diluted share associated with these investments. On the same basis described above, Output Solutions income from operations increased in 2011 as compared to 2010 from higher North America operating income, partially offset by higher operating losses in the United Kingdom. On the same basis described above, Investments and Other income from operations decreased in 2011 as

Table of Contents

compared to 2010 from lower operating revenues and \$0.6 million of costs from vacating a leased office building.

Excluding the income from operations effects of the items described in the above paragraph, consolidated income from operations in 2010 increased \$34.2 million or 12.5% to \$308.5 million as compared to 2009. On this basis, the \$34.2 million increase in consolidated income from operations is primarily attributable to increases of \$31.8 million in Financial Services and \$3.0 million in Output Solutions, partially offset by \$0.4 million decrease in Investments and Other, each as compared to the same period in 2009. On this basis, the increase in Financial Services income from operations is attributable to higher revenues and lower operating expenses. On this basis, the increase in Output Solutions income from operations during 2010 as compared to 2009 is from lower operating expenses, partially offset by lower operating revenues in North America and the consolidation of \$5.1 million of operating losses from the United Kingdom operations in 2010, mostly associated with dsicmm.

Interest expense

Interest expense was \$46.5 million, \$46.1 million and \$42.2 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Interest expense increased during 2011 from a full year of interest expense on debt assumed in the acquisition of dsicmm on July 30, 2010, a new \$125.0 million term loan facility used to complete the ALPS acquisition on October 31, 2011, higher weighted average interest rates from the Company's privately placed senior notes issued in August 2010 that were used to repurchase senior convertible debentures and higher debt amounts outstanding at IOS associated with the issuance of new debt in 2011 and debt assumed in the Lateral Group acquisition, partially offset by lower weighted average amounts outstanding in the U.S. and lower interest rates on the Company's revolving credit agreements and accounts receivable securitization program, which were amended in April 2011 and May 2011, respectively. Interest expense increased during 2010 primarily from higher weighted average interest rates on the Company's syndicated revolving credit facility which was renewed on April 16, 2010 and the privately placed senior notes issued in August 2010, and from recording accounts receivable securitization program costs as interest expense beginning January 1, 2010, partially offset by lower average debt balances during 2010.

Other income, net

The components of other income (expense) are as follows (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31,					
	2011		2010		2	2009
Net realized gains from the disposition of available-for-sale securities	\$	21.8	\$	67.0	\$	46.0
Other than temporary impairments / unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities		(3.8)		(1.3)		(27.3)
Net gains (losses) on private equity funds and other investments		(0.8)		5.1		(1.8)
Net gains (losses) on extinguishment of senior convertible debentures		(1.2)		(6.4)		5.9
Dividend income from a private equity investment				54.7		
Dividend income		16.5		10.1		10.4
Interest income		4.2		5.6		5.7
Gain on equity interest in Argus Health Systems						41.7
Miscellaneous items		2.0		6.9		4.5
Other income, net	\$	38.7	\$	141.7	\$	85.1

Table of Contents

Other income, net was \$38.7 million, \$141.7 million and \$85.1 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Net realized gains from disposition of available-for-sale securities were \$21.8 million, \$67.0 million and \$46.0 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Included in the \$67.0 million of net realized gains during 2010 is a \$42.5 million gain from the disposition of approximately 7.3 million shares of Computershare Ltd and \$24.5 million of net realized gains from the disposition of other securities. Included in the \$46.0 million of net realized gains during 2009 are \$31.5 million of gains from the disposition of approximately 7.3 million shares of Computershare Ltd. and \$14.5 million of net realized gains from the disposition of other securities. The Company holds 15.0 million shares of Computershare Ltd. at December 31, 2011.

The Company records investment impairment charges for available-for-sale securities with gross unrealized holding losses resulting from a decline in value that is other than temporary. During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company recorded impairments of \$3.8 million, \$1.3 million and \$27.3 million, respectively. The decrease in impairments compared to 2009 is from improved financial market conditions.

The Company recorded a net loss on private equity funds and other investments of \$0.8 million and \$1.8 million during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2009, respectively, and recorded a net gain on these investments of \$5.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2010. The Company recorded \$1.7 million, \$1.7 million and \$1.8 million of net impairments on private equity funds and other investments related to adverse market conditions and from poor performance of the underlying investments during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Future adverse changes in market conditions or poor operating results of underlying investments could result in losses or an inability to recover the carrying value of the investments that may not be reflected in an investment's current carrying value, thereby possibly requiring an impairment charge in the future, which could have a material effect on the Company's financial position.

The Company recorded \$1.2 million and \$6.4 million in net losses on the repurchase of senior convertible debentures during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, and \$5.9 million in net gains on the repurchase of senior convertible debentures during the year ended December 31, 2009.

The Company recorded dividend income from a private equity investment of \$54.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2010. The gross amount of the cash dividends was \$57.7 million, but approximately \$3.0 million of the dividend was applied to the Company's cost basis investment.

The Company receives dividend income from certain investments held, including its investments in State Street and Computershare common stock. Dividend income was \$16.5 million, \$10.1 million and \$10.4 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Dividends from State Street common stock were \$7.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 and \$0.4 million for both 2010 and 2009. State Street Corporation increased its quarterly dividend from \$0.01 per common share in both 2010 and 2009 to \$0.18 per common share beginning in first quarter 2011. The sale of approximately 7.3 million shares of Computershare Ltd. in 2010 and 2009 had a negative impact on the Company's 2011 dividend income.

Interest income was \$4.2 million, \$5.6 million and \$5.7 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The decrease in interest income in 2011, as compared to 2010 and 2009 is attributable to lower amounts of cash and short-term investments and lower weighted-average interest rates on invested amounts.

The Company recorded a gain of \$41.7 million during 2009 related to its purchase of the remaining 50% interest of Argus for \$57.0 million. In accordance with authoritative accounting guidance on business combinations, the acquisition of the remaining 50% of Argus on March 31, 2009 was treated

Table of Contents

as a step acquisition. Accordingly, DST remeasured its previously held equity interest in Argus to fair value, in the amount of \$57.0 million, and recorded a gain of \$41.7 million.

Miscellaneous items include unrealized gains and losses on marketable securities designated as trading securities, program fees related to the Company's accounts receivable securitization program during 2009, realized foreign currency gains and losses, amortization of deferred non-operating gains and other non-operating items. Miscellaneous items had income of \$2.0 million, \$6.9 million and \$4.5 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The decrease in Miscellaneous items from 2011 to 2010 is primarily attributable to decreases in unrealized appreciation on marketable securities designated as trading (the effect of which is offset in Financial Services Segment as a decrease in costs and expenses), foreign currency exchange losses and a reduction in other non-operating gains. The increase in Miscellaneous items from 2010 to 2009 is primarily attributable to the absence of accounts receivable securitization program costs which are now recorded in interest expense beginning January 1, 2010, partially offset by lower unrealized appreciation on marketable securities designated as trading (the effect of which is offset in Financial Services Segment as an decrease in costs and expenses).

Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates

Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates, net of income taxes provided by the unconsolidated affiliates is as follows (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31,							
	2	2011		2010		009*		
BFDS	\$	9.9	\$	14.8	\$	12.1		
IFDS U.K.		12.0		15.9		9.2		
IFDS L.P.		3.7		6.2		10.9		
Argus Health Systems, Inc.						(1.5)		
Other unconsolidated affiliates		(3.9)		(0.5)		6.6		
	\$	21.7	\$	36.4	\$	37.3		

Equity in losses of Argus Health Systems, Inc. is for the period January 1, 2009 through March 31, 2009, the date DST acquired the remaining 50% equity interest and consolidated Argus.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, DST's equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates was \$21.7 million, a decrease of \$14.7 million as compared to 2010, primarily attributable to lower earnings of BFDS, IFDS, U.K., IFDS, L.P. and other unconsolidated affiliates. For the year ended December 31, 2010, DST's equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates was \$36.4 million, a decrease of \$0.9 million as compared to 2009, primarily attributable to lower equity in earnings of other unconsolidated affiliates and IFDS, L.P., partially offset by higher equity in earnings of IFDS U.K. and BFDS. DST acquired the remaining 50% equity interest in Argus on March 31, 2009 and no longer records equity in earnings of Argus, but consolidates Argus' results into DST's consolidated financial statements.

DST's equity in earnings of BFDS decreased \$4.9 million during the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to 2010. The decrease in BFDS earnings resulted primarily from lower revenues associated with reduced levels of accounts serviced resulting from subaccounting conversions and from employee termination expenses, which together reduced DST's equity in earnings of BFDS by approximately \$2.6 million. The reduction in the BFDS workforce occurred in September 2011 and represented approximately 8% of the total BFDS workforce. DST's equity in earnings of BFDS increased \$2.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to 2009. The increase is attributable to lower occupancy costs from vacating a facility in 2009, lower bank fees, improvements in

Table of Contents

operations and the release of a previously established income tax valuation allowance, partially offset by decreased revenues from lower levels of shareowner accounts serviced. Average daily balances invested by BFDS were \$1,113.9 million, \$997.3 million and \$856.2 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. While average balances were higher, the average interest rates earned on the balances declined from 0.22% in 2009 to 0.18% in 2010 and 0.10% in 2011, a rate which is not sufficient to cover banking and transaction fees. The aggregate effect of these fluctuations resulted in a minimal impact in interest earnings by BFDS during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

DST's equity in earnings of IFDS U.K. decreased \$3.9 million during the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to 2010. The decrease in IFDS U.K. earnings was from higher client conversion costs, higher costs associated with new business development initiatives, and the release of an income tax valuation allowance that increased 2010 earnings, partially offset by higher processing revenues from increased account volumes. DST's equity in earnings of IFDS U.K. increased \$6.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2010, as compared to 2009. The increase in equity in earnings is primarily attributable to higher levels of shareowner accounts serviced from both new and existing clients, improvements in operations and earnings from the release of an income tax valuation allowance at an unconsolidated affiliate of IFDS U.K. Accounts serviced by IFDS U.K. were 8.1 million at December 31, 2011, an increase of 1.0 million accounts or 14.1% from December 31, 2010. IFDS U.K. is in the process of converting two new clients with approximately 0.8 million accounts by December 31, 2012 and its earnings in 2012 will be negatively impacted by costs associated with these conversion activities. Accounts serviced by IFDS U.K. were 7.1 million at December 31, 2010, an increase of 0.5 million accounts or 7.6% from December 31, 2009.

DST's equity in earnings of IFDS L.P. (which includes IFDS Canada, IFDS Ireland, Percana Ltd. and IFDS Luxembourg) decreased \$2.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2011, as compared to 2010. The decrease in DST's equity in earnings of IFDS L.P. is attributable to reduced earnings at IFDS Ireland and IFDS Canada. The decrease in IFDS Ireland earnings is associated with increased investments in Percana Ltd., IFDS Ireland's insurance processing subsidiary, to support projected future growth. The decrease in IFDS Canada earnings is attributable to new business development initiatives and higher client conversion related costs. DST's equity in earnings of IFDS L.P. decreased \$4.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2010, as compared to 2009. Absent a \$4.5 million gain (DST's share) in 2009 from the consolidation of an equity method investment by IFDS L.P., as the existing investment was remeasured to fair value upon consolidation, DST's equity in earnings of IFDS L.P. decreased \$0.2 million in 2010 as compared to 2009, attributable to lower earnings at IFDS Ireland and Luxembourg, partially offset by improvements in the Canadian operations. Accounts serviced by IFDS Canada were 10.1 million at December 31, 2011, a decrease of 0.6 million accounts or 5.6% from December 31, 2010. IFDS Canada received a new client commitment which is expected to convert approximately 1.7 million accounts by December 31, 2012. Accounts serviced by IFDS Canada were 10.7 million at December 31, 2010, an increase of 0.5 million accounts or 4.9% from December 31, 2009.

DST's equity in earnings of other unconsolidated affiliates was a loss of \$3.9 million during the year ended December 31, 2011, a decrease of \$3.4 million as compared to 2010. Equity in earnings of other unconsolidated affiliates was a loss of \$0.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2010, a decrease of \$7.1 million as compared to 2009, attributable to unfavorable market conditions in 2010 for the Company's broker/dealer investment.

Income taxes

The Company's effective tax rate was 35.0%, 33.4% and 31.8% for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Company's income tax rate for 2011 included benefits from federal rehabilitation and solar panel tax credits, partially offset by increased tax resulting from repatriation of

Table of Contents

certain international earnings. The Company's income tax rate for 2010 included a benefit from a dividend received deduction on approximately 50% of a \$57.7 million cash dividend received from a private equity investment and the release of \$2.3 million of international valuation allowances against certain international deferred tax assets, which resulted from the acquisition of dsicmm Group Limited.

The effective tax rate for 2009 was less than the statutory federal income tax rate of 35% primarily from certain items that were given discrete period treatment and valuation allowances against international operating losses. During 2009, DST recorded a \$41.7 million book gain on its equity interest in Argus with no related income tax expense, reversed approximately \$0.9 million of deferred tax liabilities related to the elimination of deferred tax liabilities previously established for equity in earnings of Argus, recorded an income tax benefit of approximately \$5.7 million resulting from a reduction in income tax related liabilities principally associated with the completion of an IRS examination in February 2009 for the tax years ended December 31, 2002 through 2005, and had increased utilization of foreign tax credits, which were partially offset by increased valuation allowances for higher international loss carryforwards.

The tax rates in each of the three years ended December 31, 2011 were affected by tax benefits relating to certain international operations and recognition of state tax benefits associated with income apportionment rules.

Excluding the effect of discrete period items, the Company expects its tax rate to be approximately 35.0% in 2012. The 2012 tax rate can be affected as a result of variances among the estimates and amounts of 2012 sources of taxable income (e.g., domestic consolidated, joint venture and/or international), the realization of tax credits (e.g., historic rehabilitation, research and experimentation and state incentive), adjustments which may arise from the resolution of tax matters under review and the Company's assessment of its liability for uncertain tax positions.

YEAR TO YEAR BUSINESS SEGMENT COMPARISONS

FINANCIAL SERVICES SEGMENT

Revenues

Financial Services Segment total revenues of \$1,180.5 million decreased \$20.8 million or 1.7% in 2011 as compared to 2010. Financial Services Segment operating revenues of \$1,138.4 million decreased \$18.3 million or 1.6% in 2011 as compared to 2010. U.S. Financial Services operating revenues decreased \$31.6 million or 3.0% to \$1,007.5 million in 2011 as compared to 2010. International Financial Services operating revenues increased \$13.3 million or 11.3% to \$130.9 million in 2011 as compared to 2010.

As mentioned in the consolidated revenues section above, DST received client contract termination payments of approximately \$3.5 million in 2011 and \$9.1 million in 2010 from two clients that terminated their subaccounting processing agreements early. Excluding these client contract termination payments, Financial Services operating revenues for 2011 decreased \$12.7 million or 1.1% as compared to 2010. On this basis, the decrease in Financial Services operating revenues in 2011 is attributable to lower mutual fund shareowner account processing revenues and lower DST Health Solutions revenues, which were partially offset by \$14.6 million of operating revenues from ALPS subsequent to its acquisition on October 31, 2011, increased operating revenues from Intellisource, Subserveo, Finix and Converge after their acquisition in 2011, increased distribution support services, increased subaccounting revenues and changes in foreign currency rates which increased operating revenues by approximately \$9.6 million.

The decrease in mutual fund shareowner processing revenues resulted from lower levels of registered account serviced, primarily related to subaccounting conversions to non-DST platforms, and the July 2011 loss of a full-service client with 1.1 million registered accounts. Registered accounts serviced were

Table of Contents

85.1 million at December 31, 2011, a decrease of 14.3 million accounts or 14.4% from December 31, 2010. DST HealthCare operating revenues decreased from lower volumes of claims processing and lower professional services. The increase in distribution support revenues was from higher volumes. The increase in subaccount processing revenues resulted from higher levels of subaccounts serviced. Subaccounts were 14.6 million at December 31, 2011, an increase of 0.3 million accounts or 2.1% from December 31, 2010. Increased revenues of DST Global Solutions primarily reflects the effect of foreign currency exchange rates of \$9.6 million, and higher professional services and software license, maintenance and support revenue.

Financial Services Segment total revenues of \$1,201.3 million increased \$31.8 million or 2.7% in 2010 as compared to 2009. Financial Services Segment operating revenues of \$1,156.7 million increased \$41.5 million or 3.7% in 2010 as compared to 2009. U.S. Financial Services operating revenues increased \$25.1 million or 2.5% to \$1,039.1 million in 2010 as compared to 2009. A client terminated its subaccounting processing contract in connection with a corporate merger and converted approximately 5.0 million subaccounts to a non-DST subaccounting platform during 2010. DST received a termination payment of approximately \$10.4 million (\$9.1 million was recorded in Financial Services and \$1.3 million was recorded in Output Solutions) and incurred approximately \$1.6 million of costs in connection with the contract termination, resulting in a \$8.8 million net pretax gain associated with this event. Absent the \$9.1 million client contract termination payment mentioned above and \$26.0 million of net incremental operating revenues from consolidating Argus for a full year in 2010 versus nine months in 2009, Financial Services operating revenues for 2010 increased \$6.4 million or 0.6% as compared to 2009. On this basis, the increase in Financial Services operating revenues is attributable to changes in foreign currency rates which increased operating revenues by approximately \$10.2 million and higher DST Global Solutions and Argus revenues, partially offset by lower revenues from DST Health Solutions and mutual fund shareowner processing.

Revenues of DST Global Solutions increased during 2010 from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, higher professional services and higher software license revenues. Argus revenues increased from higher fees per pharmacy claim paid and increased pharmacy claims related services. DST Health Solutions experienced lower demand for professional services and lower volumes of transaction processing, partially offset by higher software license revenues. Absent the \$9.1 million contract termination payment mentioned above, operating revenues for mutual fund shareowner recordkeeping during 2010 were lower than for the same period in 2009 attributable to decreased shareowner processing revenues from lower levels of registered accounts, partially offset by increased revenues from higher retirement participant recordkeeping services, higher volumes of subaccounts serviced and higher distribution support solutions volumes. Financial Services Segment operating revenues from international operations for 2010 increased \$16.4 million or 16.2% to \$117.6 million, primarily from the change in foreign currency exchange rates compared to the same period in 2009 and from higher professional services.

Financial Services Segment software license fee revenues are derived principally from AWD (business process management BPM), DST Global Solutions (investment management) and DST Health Solutions (medical claims processing). Operating revenues include approximately \$43.4 million of software license fee revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011, a decrease of \$2.5 million as compared to 2010. The 2011 decrease is primarily due to lower investment management and AWD software licenses. Operating revenues include approximately \$45.9 million of software license fee revenues for the year ended December 31, 2010, an increase of \$3.6 million as compared to 2009. The 2010 increase is primarily due to higher investment management and medical claims software license revenues, partially offset by lower AWD software license revenues. While license revenues are not a significant percentage of DST's total operations, they can significantly impact earnings in the period in which they are recognized. Revenues and operating results from individual license sales depend heavily on the timing, size and nature of the contract.

Table of Contents

Costs and expenses

Financial Services Segment costs and expenses (including OOP costs) for the year ended December 31, 2011 were \$866.1 million, an increase of \$17.8 million as compared to 2010. Costs and expenses in the Financial Services Segment are primarily comprised of compensation and benefits costs, but also include reimbursable operating expenses and other costs. Reimbursable operating expenses included in costs and expenses were \$42.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, a decrease of \$2.5 million as compared to 2010. Excluding reimbursable operating expenses in 2011 and 2010, employee termination costs in 2011 and 2010, restructuring costs to amend a sales / marketing agreement of an acquired business in 2011, the loss accrual in 2011, business development and advisory expenses in 2011, each as described in the consolidated income from operations section above, and operating costs of \$1.5 million related to the 2011 contract termination payment and \$1.6 million related to the 2010 contract termination payment, mentioned above, costs and expenses increased \$17.7 million or 2.2% during 2011 to \$805.5 million. On this basis, the increase in costs and expenses is attributable to foreign currency exchange effects between the U.S. Dollar and other currencies which increased costs by approximately \$9.8 million, start-up costs from DST Insurance Solutions, increased investments in DST Retirement Solutions and DST Brokerage Solutions (including Subserveo, Finix and Converge) and operating costs related to 2011 business acquisitions and new service offerings, partially offset by lower deferred compensation costs of \$3.8 million (the effect of which is offset in other non-operating income) and lower employee healthcare and retirement benefit costs. The Company anticipates that it will recognize \$0.60 - \$0.65 of after tax expense per diluted share of business development and start-up expenses for its insurance, brokerage and retirement businesses in 2012.

Financial Services Segment costs and expenses for the year ended December 31, 2010 were \$848.3 million, an increase of \$7.7 million as compared to 2009. Reimbursable operating expenses included in costs and expenses were \$44.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, a decrease of \$9.7 million as compared to 2009. Excluding reimbursable operating expenses, costs and expenses of Argus during the three months ended March 31, 2010 of \$27.6 million, employee expenses of \$14.3 million mentioned above and expenses of \$1.6 million incurred in connection with a client contract termination payment, costs and expenses decreased \$26.1 million or 3.3% to \$760.2 million during 2010. On this basis, the decrease in costs and expenses is attributable to lower compensation and benefit related costs from lower staffing levels, lower deferred compensation costs of \$1.9 million (the effect of which is offset in other non-operating income), partially offset by higher costs from foreign currency exchange effects of approximately \$9.8 million.

Depreciation and amortization

Financial Services Segment depreciation and amortization costs for the year ended December 31, 2011 were \$76.5 million, a decrease of \$2.9 million or 3.7% as compared to 2010. The decrease in depreciation and amortization is attributable to lower intangible amortization from certain assets becoming fully depreciated/amortized, partially offset by depreciation from new asset additions and intangible asset amortization expense associated with ALPS and other 2011 Financial Services Segment acquisitions of \$2.8 million. Amortization expense from the 2011 acquisitions is projected to be \$10.6 million in the Financial Services Segment in 2012.

Financial Services Segment depreciation and amortization costs for the year ended December 31, 2010 was \$79.4 million, a decrease of \$0.9 million or 1.1% as compared to 2009. The decrease in depreciation and amortization is primarily related to a \$2.5 million impairment of internally developed software in 2009, partially offset by higher purchase accounting amortization expense from a full year of Argus in 2010.

Table of Contents

Income from operations

Financial Services Segment income from operations for 2011 was \$237.9 million, a decrease of \$35.7 million or 13.0% as compared to 2010. Excluding the income from operations impact of the client contract termination payments and employee termination expenses in 2011 and 2010, the business development and advisory expenses, the loss accrual and restructuring expenses to amend a sales / marketing agreement of an acquired business in 2011, each as described above, income from operations decreased \$27.5 million or 9.8% to \$252.9 million for 2011 as compared to 2010. On this basis, the decrease in Financial Services income from operations is attributable to lower mutual fund servicing revenues and higher costs associated with new business initiatives, partially offset by lower deferred compensation costs of \$3.8 million (the effect of which is offset as unrealized appreciation on trading securities in other income, net).

Financial Services Segment income from operations for 2010 was \$273.6 million, an increase of \$25.0 million or 10.1% as compared to 2009. Excluding the impact of 2010 employee termination expenses and client contract termination payments, income from operations increased \$31.8 million to \$280.4 million for 2010 as compared to 2009. On this basis, Financial Services income from operations increased from higher revenues and lower operating expenses, principally personnel related costs from the reduction in force. In addition, Financial Services incurred approximately \$1.9 million of lower deferred compensation costs in 2010 as compared to 2009.

Financial Services Segment Account Statistics

The following table summarizes changes in registered accounts and subaccounts serviced, excluding accounts serviced by ALPS, (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31, 2011	Year Ended December 31, 2010	Year Ended December 31, 2009
Registered Accounts			
Beginning balance	99.4	109.9	111.2
New client conversions	0.8	1.7	1.6
Subaccounting conversions to DST platforms	(1.0)	(4.6)	(0.9)
Subaccounting conversions to non-DST platforms	(13.4)	(7.7)	(2.3)
Conversions to non-DST platforms	(1.5)		(0.6)
Organic growth	0.8	0.1	0.9
Ending balance	85.1	99.4	109.9
Subaccounts			
Beginning balance	14.3	11.2	8.9
Conversions from non-DST registered platforms	0.8	2.8	1.0
Conversions from DST's registered accounts	1.0	4.6	0.9
Conversions to non-DST platforms	(3.3)	(5.0)	
Organic growth	1.8	0.7	0.4
Ending balance	14.6	14.3	11.2
-			
Total	99.7	113.7	121.1

Total shareowner accounts serviced at December 31, 2011 were 99.7 million, a decrease of 14.0 million accounts or 12.3% as compared to December 31, 2010. Total shareowner accounts serviced at

Table of Contents

December 31, 2010 were 113.7 million, a decrease of 7.4 million accounts or 6.1% as compared to December 31, 2009.

Registered accounts serviced at December 31, 2011 decreased 14.3 million accounts or 14.4% from the comparable amount at December 31, 2010. Registered accounts serviced at December 31, 2010 decreased 10.5 million accounts or 9.6% from the comparable amount at December 31, 2009.

Tax-advantaged accounts were 42.7 million at December 31, 2011, a decrease of 1.6 million accounts or 3.6% as compared to December 31, 2010. The decrease in tax-advantaged accounts during 2011 is primarily attributable to the full-service client loss mentioned above, certain open accounts held for subsequent investment being purged from the system and organic declines. Tax-advantaged accounts were 44.3 million at December 31, 2010, a decrease of 2.0 million accounts or 4.5% as compared to December 31, 2009. The decrease in tax-advantaged accounts during 2010 is primarily attributable to a DST client's loss of a state's Section 529 program to a competitor who is not a DST client. Tax-advantaged accounts represent 50.2% of total registered accounts serviced at December 31, 2011 as compared to 44.6% at December 31, 2010

Subaccounts serviced at December 31, 2011 increased 0.3 million accounts or 2.1% from the comparable amount at December 31, 2010. Subaccounts serviced at December 31, 2010 increased 3.1 million accounts or 27.7% from the comparable amount at December 31, 2009. Revenues from subaccounting services are generally based on the number of subaccounts serviced and, as a result of the level of services provided directly by the broker/dealer, the per account revenue is less than what DST derives from its traditional mutual fund shareowner processing services because fewer of TA2000's features are required.

As previously announced, the Company was advised by two of its existing clients that they intend to convert approximately 0.3 million new registered accounts to DST's platforms in early 2012.

As previously announced, the Company was informed by two clients affiliated with the Bank of New York Mellon Corporation ("BNYM"), a competitor of DST, that they intend to convert to BNYM's in-house platform by mid-2012. These two clients comprise approximately 8.4 million subaccounts and 0.8 million registered accounts.

Projections of registered accounts converting to subaccounts are based on information obtained from DST's clients and are subject to change. Based on information provided by its clients, the Company currently expects the subaccounting trend to continue in 2012 and conversions of registered accounts to subaccounts in 2012 to be between 8-10 million, of which approximately 30% of these accounts should convert to DST's subaccounting platform. The actual number of accounts estimated to convert to and from various DST platforms, as well as the timing of those events, is dependent upon a number of factors. Actual results could differ from the Company's estimates.

The following table summarizes changes in defined contribution participants serviced (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31, 2011	Year Ended December 31, 2010	Year Ended December 31, 2009
Defined Contribution Participants			
Beginning balance	4.5	4.2	3.7
New client conversions		0.5	0.5
Organic growth (decline)	0.1	(0.2)	
Ending balance	4.6	4.5	4.2

Table of Contents

Defined contribution ("DC") participants represent the number of active participants processed on DST's TA2000/TRAC platform. DC participants were 4.6 million at December 31, 2011, an increase of 0.1 million participants or 2.2% from December 31, 2010 attributable to new participants. DC participants were 4.5 million at December 31, 2010, an increase of 0.3 million participants or 7.1% from December 31, 2009 attributable to new client conversions. The Company has previously reported new client commitments that will convert approximately 1.3 million new participants in 2012 and 2013, with approximately 0.6 million to occur in 2012.

Pharmacy claims paid by Argus were 362.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, a decrease of 18.4 million claims paid or 4.8% as compared to the year ended December 31, 2010. During fourth quarter 2011, DST HealthCare received client commitments representing approximately 14.0 million annual pharmacy claims. Full conversion activities related to these new clients are expected to be completed by second quarter 2012. Covered lives using DST Health Solutions' medical claim processing platforms were 22.6 million at December 31, 2011, a decrease of 0.3 million lives or 1.3% as compared to December 31, 2010. Covered lives decreased 0.6 million 2.6% during 2010 as compared to 2009.

Total active AWD workstations were 204,300, 198,300 and 193,500 at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Active U.S. AWD workstations were 163,600 at December 31, 2011, an increase of 3,700 workstations as compared to December 31, 2010. Active U.S. AWD workstations were 159,900 at December 31, 2010, a decrease of 1,100 workstations as compared to December 31, 2009. Active international AWD workstations were 40,700 at December 31, 2011, an increase of 2,300 workstations as compared to December 31, 2010. Active international AWD workstations were 38,400 at December 31, 2010, an increase of 5,900 workstations as compared to December 31, 2009.

OUTPUT SOLUTIONS SEGMENT

Revenues

As a result of the dsicmm and Lateral acquisitions by IOS (formerly DST International Output), DST will provide information about both the North America and United Kingdom operating businesses.

The following table presents the financial results of the Output Solutions Segment (in millions):

		Year Ended December 31,											
		2011 2010								20			
			Operating Operating						Operatin				
	Op	erating	Iı	ncome	Op	Operating Income				erating	I	ncome	
	Re	evenue	(Loss)	Re	evenue		(Loss)		evenue	((Loss)	
North America	\$	430.3	\$	37.8	\$	490.2	\$	84.1	\$	452.8	\$	23.8	
United Kingdom		179.5		(16.6)		73.9		(5.3)		29.5		(1.1)	
Output Solutions													
Segment	\$	609.8	\$	21.2	\$	564.1	\$	78.8	\$	482.3	\$	22.7	

Output Solutions Segment total revenues were \$1,216.8 million and \$1,139.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Operating revenues increased \$45.7 million or 8.1% to \$609.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to 2010. As mentioned in the consolidated revenues section above, Output Solutions received significant client contract termination payments in 2010. Excluding these client contract termination payments, Output Solutions operating revenues for 2011 increased \$110.0 million or 22.0% to \$609.8 million, as compared to 2010. On this basis, the increase is attributable to operating revenues from the acquisitions of Lateral Group on August 5, 2011, Newkirk Products on May 2, 2011 and a full year of operating revenues from dsicmm Group which was acquired on July 30, 2010, partially offset by the loss of revenues from the telecommunications and subaccounting clients that terminated their processing contracts in mid-2010.

Output Solutions Segment total revenues were \$1,139.9 million and \$1,053.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Operating revenues increased \$81.8 million or 17.0% to

Table of Contents

\$564.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to 2009. Excluding the 2010 client contract termination payments mentioned above, operating revenues increased \$17.5 million in 2010 as compared to 2009. On this basis, the increase in Output Solutions operating revenues is from the acquisition of dsicmm Group which contributed \$44.1 million of operating revenues post acquisition and an increase in revenues from changes in foreign currency rates which contributed \$3.8 million, which are partially offset by the loss of revenues from a terminated telecommunications client in April 2010, lower volumes from existing clients and lower revenue per unit (images produced and items mailed) processed.

Excluding the contract termination payments in 2010 mentioned above, Output's North America operating revenues increased \$4.4 million or 1.0% to \$430.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to 2010. On this basis, the increase in operating revenues was primarily attributable to the acquisition of Newkirk, higher fulfillment services revenues, higher postal processing service revenues, new clients and foreign currency exchange effects in Canada which increased operating revenues by approximately \$1.9 million, partially offset by lower revenues from client losses and lower volumes from existing clients.

Output's United Kingdom operating revenues increased \$105.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to 2010 from the Lateral Group acquisition on August 5, 2011 and from a full year of operating revenues from the dsicmm Group acquisition on July 30, 2010.

Output Solutions Segment OOP reimbursements revenue increased \$31.2 million or 5.4% in 2011 as compared to 2010 and increased \$4.3 million or 0.8% in 2010 as compared to 2009. The net increase in 2011 was primarily from the acquisitions of Lateral and Newkirk and a full year of dsicmm. The net increase in 2010 is attributable to \$15.2 million of dsicmm OOP reimbursement revenues, which were partially offset by lower processing volumes and the client loss described above.

The following table sets out images produced and packages mailed (in millions):

	Year E	nded December	31,
	2011	2010	2009
Images Produced			
North America	9,042.8	10,243.9	12,070.5
United Kingdom*	2,029.5	857.5	804.8
Output Solutions Segment	11,072.3	11,101.4	12,875.3
Packages Mailed			
North America	1,999.5	2,102.9	2,216.6
United Kingdom*	733.5	149.6	135.6
Output Solutions Segment	2,733.0	2,252.5	2,352.2

Excludes volumes for dsicmm in 2010.

North America images produced decreased 1.2 billion or 11.7% to 9.0 billion for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to 2010. The decline in images produced was attributable to the previously mentioned loss of a telecommunications client in April 2010 and from lower images from existing clients, partially offset by images from new clients and the Newkirk acquisition in May 2011. North America items mailed decreased 0.1 billion or 4.9% to 2.0 billion for the year ended December 31, 2011 as compared to 2010. The decrease in items mailed was the result of the client loss mentioned above, partially offset by volumes from new clients and the inclusion of Newkirk. Items mailed are reflective of the number of Output Solutions clients' underlying accounts/subscribers/customers who receive their communications via paper.

Table of Contents

United Kingdom images produced during the year ended December 31, 2011 were 2.0 billion. United Kingdom items mailed during the year ended December 31, 2011 were 733.5 million.

Excluding operating volume information for dsicmm in 2010, Output Solutions Segment images produced were 11.1 billion in 2010 as compared to 12.9 million in 2009, a decrease of 1.8 million images, mostly attributable to the loss of the telecommunications client mentioned above. Excluding operating volume information for dsicmm in 2010, Output Solutions Segment items mailed were 0.1 billion less during the year ended December 31, 2010 as compared to 2009, primarily from the loss of the telecommunications client loss mentioned above, partially offset by volumes from new clients.

During fourth quarter 2011, Output Solutions received four new client commitments in North America representing, when fully transitioned, approximately 107.0 million of aggregate packages annually, based on current volume levels. Full conversion activities related to these new clients is expected to be completed in the second half of 2012.

Costs and expenses

Output Solutions Segment costs and expenses (including OOP costs) for the year ended December 31, 2011 increased \$135.6 million or 13.4% to \$1,148.9 million as compared to 2010. Costs and expenses in the Output Solutions Segment are primarily comprised of reimbursable operating expenses, compensation and benefits costs, material costs (principally paper and ink) and other operating costs. Reimbursable operating expenses included in costs and expenses were \$607.0 million during 2011, an increase of \$31.2 million or 5.4% as compared to 2010. Excluding reimbursable operating expenses in 2011 and 2010, employee termination and business development expenses described in the consolidated income from operations section above and costs of \$1.5 million related to the contract termination payments mentioned above, costs and expenses increased \$107.2 million or 25.0% during 2011 to \$536.6 million. On this basis, Output's United Kingdom costs and expenses increased \$107.1 million due to costs and expenses from the acquisition of Lateral on August 5, 2011, a full year of costs and expenses from the acquisition of dsicmm on July 30, 2010 and costs associated with integrating the IOS businesses. On this basis, Output's North America costs and expenses increased \$0.1 million primarily from the Newkirk acquisition on May 2, 2011 and a fulfillment business acquired on September 30, 2010, which were partially offset by reductions in staffing levels, lower material costs from lower volumes produced, lower employee healthcare benefit costs and improvements in operating efficiencies.

Output Solutions Segment costs and expenses (including OOP costs) for the year ended December 31, 2010 increased \$23.7 million or 2.4% to \$1,013.3 million as compared to 2009. Reimbursable operating expenses included in costs and expenses were \$575.8 million during 2010, an increase of \$4.3 million or 0.8% as compared to 2009. Excluding the 2010 items mentioned in the paragraph above, costs and expenses increased \$11.3 million or 2.7% during 2010 to \$429.4 million. On this basis, the increase in cost and expenses is attributable to \$60.6 million of costs from the acquisition of dsicmm and \$1.9 million of higher costs related to the effect of foreign currency exchange rates, which were partially offset by lower material costs, lower compensation and benefit related costs from reduced staffing levels and lower leased equipment costs from the continued implementation of owned digital print technologies.

Depreciation and amortization

Output Solutions Segment depreciation and amortization was \$46.7 million, \$47.8 million and \$41.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Depreciation and amortization decreased \$1.1 million or 2.3% in 2011 as compared to 2010. North America decreased \$9.8 million in 2011 as compared to 2010. Excluding the asset impairment charge of \$3.1 million associated with the client contract termination in 2010, North America depreciation and amortization decreased \$6.7 million. On this basis, the decrease is attributable to lower levels of capital expenditures,

Table of Contents

partially offset by an increase of approximately \$0.6 million of intangible asset amortization expense principally associated with the Newkirk acquisition. United Kingdom depreciation and amortization increased \$8.7 million in 2011 as compared to 2010, attributable to the acquisition of Lateral and a full year of dsicmm, and an increase of \$1.3 million of intangible asset amortization expense principally associated with these acquisitions. Amortization expense from the 2011 acquisitions is projected to be \$3.0 million in the Output Solutions Segment in 2012.

Excluding the asset impairment charge of \$3.1 million associated with the client contract termination, depreciation increased \$3.2 million or 7.7% to \$44.7 million in 2010 as compared to 2009. On this basis, the increase is attributable to depreciation and amortization from the dsicmm acquisition, partially offset by lower levels of capital expenditures.

Income from operations

Output Solutions Segment income from operations was \$21.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, a decrease of \$57.6 million compared to 2010. Excluding the income from operations impact of the client contract termination payments, employee termination expenses and business development expenses in 2011 and 2010 described above, income from operations increased \$0.8 million or 3.1% to \$26.5 million as compared to 2010. On this basis, North America income from operations increased \$11.1 million in 2011 compared to 2010, attributable to improvements in operating efficiencies, lower staffing levels and lower employee healthcare benefit costs. United Kingdom income from operations decreased \$10.3 million in 2011compared to 2010, attributable to lower than expected revenues, consolidation of facilities and reductions in the workforce to achieve synergies and efficiency.

Output Solutions Segment income from operations was \$78.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2010, an increase of \$56.1 million compared 2009. Excluding the 2010 impact of client contract termination and employee termination costs mentioned above, income from operations increased \$3.0 million or 13.2% to \$25.7 million as compared to 2009. On this basis, the increase in Output Solutions income from operations is attributable to lower operating expenses, partially offset by lower operating revenues in North America and the consolidation of \$5.1 million of operating losses from dsicmm in 2010.

DST has integrated the management teams of Lateral and IOS (formerly dsicmm) and is developing plans to fully integrate operations. In January 2012, DST acquired the remaining outstanding shares of IOS from the non-controlling shareholders for \$17.7 million, resulting in IOS becoming a wholly-owned subsidiary. The Company believes having IOS as a wholly-owned subsidiary will enable the Company to achieve its goals for IOS. Ongoing cost reductions from the consolidation of facilities and redistributing work to the remaining locations will have up front, one time real estate disposition and staff reduction costs that will continue through the second or third quarter of 2012.

Use of EBITDA

The Company defines Operating EBITDA as earnings from operations before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and amortization. This supplemental non-GAAP liquidity measure is provided in addition to, but not as a substitute for, cash flow from operations. As a measure of liquidity, the Company believes Operating EBITDA is useful as an indicator of its ability to generate cash flow. Operating EBITDA, as calculated by the Company, may not be consistent with the computation of EBITDA by other companies. The Company believes a useful measure of the Output Solutions and Investments and Other Segment's contribution to DST's results is to focus on cash flow and DST's management believes Operating EBITDA is useful for this purpose. A reconciliation of Output Solutions and Investments and Other Segment income from operations to Operating EBITDA is included in the pages that follow. The non-GAAP adjustments to this reconciliation are used to calculate Adjusted Operating EBITDA and are described in the "Use of Non-GAAP Financial"

Table of Contents

Information" included in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of this Form 10-K.

The following table presents Operating EBITDA of the Output Solutions Segment (in millions):

		Year Ended December 31,												
	Ope	011 rating ITDA	Op	2010 erating BITDA	Op	2009 erating BITDA								
North America	\$	70.4	\$	126.4	\$	63.4								
United Kingdom		(2.5)		0.2		0.8								
Output Solutions Segment	\$	67.9	\$	126.6	\$	64.2								

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, Output Solutions Operating EBITDA was \$67.9 million, \$126.6 million and \$64.2 million. Excluding the EBITDA impact of the client contract termination payments, employee termination expenses and business development costs, Adjusted Operating EBITDA for 2011 was \$73.2 million, an increase of \$2.8 million or 4.0% compared to 2010, attributable to lower operating expenses in North America, partially offset by decreased Operating EBITDA from the United Kingdom operations.

On the same basis, Adjusted Operating EBITDA for 2010 increased \$6.2 million or 9.7% as compared to 2009, attributable to lower operating costs in North America, partially offset by losses after the acquisition of dsicmm.

The reconciliation of the Output Solutions Segment income from operations to EBITDA as used by management is set forth in the table below (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31,							
	2	2011		2010	2	2009		
Output Solutions Segment income from operations	\$	21.2	\$	78.8	\$	22.7		
Depreciation and amortization		46.7		47.8		41.5		
Operating EBITDA, before Non-GAAP items		67.9		126.6		64.2		
Contract termination payment, net of expenses				(62.8)				
Employee termination expenses		5.1		6.6				
Business development expenses		0.2						
Adjusted Operating EBITDA, after Non-GAAP items	\$	73.2	\$	70.4	\$	64.2		

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER SEGMENT

Revenues

Investments and Other Segment total revenues, including out-of-pocket reimbursements, were \$57.9 million, \$58.2 million and \$60.1 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Revenues are primarily derived from real estate activities. The majority of the real estate revenues are derived from the lease of facilities to the Company's other business segments. Operating revenues (excluding out-of-pocket reimbursements) were \$56.3 million, \$57.8 million and \$59.4 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009. The decrease in operating revenues during 2011 as compared to 2010 and during 2010 as compared to 2009 is attributable to lower rental activities.

Table of Contents

Costs and expenses

Occupancy costs are the single largest costs included in costs and expenses in the Investments and Other Segment. Investments and Other Segment costs and expenses decreased \$9.3 million in 2011 as compared to 2010 and increased \$9.1 million in 2010 as compared to 2009. In 2010, the Investments and Other Segment incurred costs of \$10.2 million from a charitable contribution of appreciated marketable securities. Excluding the 2010 charitable donation, costs and expenses were \$38.0 million, \$37.1 million and \$38.2 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009. On this basis, costs and expenses increased \$0.9 million in 2011 as compared to 2010, mostly attributable to \$0.6 million of costs incurred in 2011 related to vacating a leased office building. On the same basis, the decrease in 2010 as compared to 2009 is from lower rental activities.

Depreciation and amortization

Investments and Other Segment depreciation and amortization was \$11.0 million, \$10.8 million and \$11.2 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Depreciation and amortization increased \$0.2 million during 2011 as compared to 2010. Depreciation and amortization was higher during 2009 primarily due to more buildings owned in 2009 and a real estate impairment of approximately \$1.0 million recorded in third quarter 2009.

Income from operations

Investments and Other Segment income from operations was \$8.9 million, \$0.1 million and \$10.7 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Excluding the 2010 charitable contribution mentioned above, income from operations decreased \$1.4 million in during 2011 as compared to 2010, primarily from the 2011 charge for vacating a leased office building and lower rental revenues. On the same basis, the decrease in operating income during 2010 as compared to 2009 is from lower rental revenues.

Review of DST's U.S. Real Estate Holdings

DST's U.S. real estate holdings produced \$18.9 million, \$19.0 million and \$19.9 million of Operating EBITDA (defined as operating income plus depreciation and amortization) during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

At December 31, 2011, consolidated U.S. real estate related debt was \$111.9 million. DST's pro-rata share of debt associated with unconsolidated affiliates' real estate at December 31, 2011 was \$193.7 million, substantially all of which is non-recourse debt.

The reconciliation of the Investments and Other Segment income from operations to Operating EBITDA as used by management is set forth in the table below (in millions):

		Year Ended December 31,							
	2	011	2	2010	2	2009			
Reported GAAP income from operations	\$	8.9	\$	0.1	\$	10.7			
Adjusted to remove:									
GAAP income (loss) from non U.S. real estate operations		(1.0)		(10.0)		0.8			
U.S. Real Estate Operations GAAP income from operations		9.9		10.1		9.9			
Adjusted to remove:									
Depreciation and amortization		9.0		8.9		10.0			
Operating EBITDA	\$	18.9	\$	19.0	\$	19.9			
	80								

Table of Contents

Use of Non-GAAP Financial Information

In addition to reporting operating income, pretax income, net income, net income attributable to DST Systems, Inc. ("DST Earnings") and earnings per share on a GAAP basis, DST has also made certain non-GAAP adjustments which are described below in the section titled "Description of Non-GAAP Adjustments" and are reconciled to the corresponding GAAP measures in the attached financial schedules titled "Reconciliation of Reported Results to Income Adjusted for Certain Non-GAAP Items" below. In making these non-GAAP adjustments, the Company takes into account the impact of items that are not necessarily ongoing in nature, that do not have a high level of predictability associated with them or that are non-operational in nature. Generally, these items include net gains on dispositions of business units, net gains (losses) associated with securities and other investments, restructuring and impairment costs and other similar items. Management believes the exclusion of these items provides a useful basis for evaluating underlying business unit performance, but should not be considered in isolation and is not in accordance with, or a substitute for, evaluating business unit performance utilizing GAAP financial information. Management uses non-GAAP measures in its budgeting and forecasting processes and to further analyze its financial trends and "operational run-rate," as well as making financial comparisons to prior periods presented on a similar basis. The Company believes that providing such adjusted results allows investors and other users of DST's financial statements to better understand DST's comparative operating performance for the periods presented.

DST's management uses each of these non-GAAP financial measures in its own evaluation of the Company's performance, particularly when comparing performance to past periods. DST's non-GAAP measures may differ from similar measures by other companies, even if similar terms are used to identify such measures. Although DST's management believes non-GAAP measures are useful in evaluating the performance of its business, DST acknowledges that items excluded from such measures may have a material impact on the Company's income from operations, pretax income, net income, net income attributable to DST Systems, Inc. and earnings per share calculated in accordance with GAAP. Therefore, management typically uses Non-GAAP measures in conjunction with GAAP results. These factors should be considered when evaluating DST's results.

Description of Non-GAAP Adjustments

The following items, which occurred during the year ended December 31, 2011, have been treated as Non-GAAP adjustments:

Contract termination payment, net of certain costs, resulting from the termination of a Financial Services subaccounting client, in the amount of \$2.0 million. The net contract termination gain was comprised of operating revenues of \$3.5 million, partially offset by certain costs of \$1.5 million that were included in cost and expenses. The aggregate income tax expense associated with this net contract termination gain was approximately \$0.8 million.

Employee termination expenses of \$6.4 million associated with reductions in workforce in the Financial Services Segment (\$1.3 million) and the Output Solutions Segment (\$5.1 million), which were included in costs and expenses. The aggregate income tax benefit associated with these costs was approximately \$2.4 million. \$1.0 million of the costs of Output Solutions Segment were incurred by Innovative Output Solutions Limited ("IOS"), a consolidated but not wholly-owned subsidiary of DST. Accordingly, a portion of this cost (\$0.2 million) was attributable to the non-controlling interest.

Business development expenses (legal, accounting, investment banking and other professional fees) associated with business acquisitions, included in costs and expenses, in the amount of \$3.3 million (\$3.1 million in Financial Services and \$0.2 million in Output Solutions). The income tax benefit associated with these expenses was approximately \$1.4 million.

Table of Contents

Business advisory expenses associated with an action by the DST Board of Directors to retain advisors to assist the Board with its ongoing review of DST's business plan, assets and investment portfolio, included in costs and expenses, in the amount of \$1.8 million. The income tax benefit associated with these expenses was approximately \$0.7 million. The Company expects these services to continue for the next several quarters.

Restructuring cost associated with amending sales / marketing agreements of an acquired business, included in costs and expenses, in the amount of \$7.3 million. The income tax benefit associated with this expense was approximately \$2.9 million.

Loss accrual recorded for a regulatory inquiry regarding the processing of certain pharmacy claims during the period 2006 to 2009, included in costs and expenses, in the amount of \$3.5 million. There was no income tax benefit attributed to this loss accrual.

Other net gain, in the amount of \$17.2 million, associated with gains (losses) related to securities and other investments, which were included in other income, net. The income tax expense associated with this net gain was approximately \$6.7 million. The \$17.2 million of net gain on securities and other investments for the year ended December 31, 2011 was comprised of net realized gains from sales of available-for-sale securities of \$21.8 million, partially offset by net losses on private equity funds and other investments of \$0.8 million and other than temporary impairments on available-for-sale securities of \$3.8 million.

Net loss, in the amount of \$1.2 million, associated with the repurchase of senior convertible debentures, which was included in other income, net. The income tax benefit associated with this net loss was approximately \$0.4 million.

Employee termination expenses at an unconsolidated affiliate, BFDS, associated with a reduction in workforce, included in equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates in the amount of \$2.6 million. The income tax benefit associated with these expenses was approximately \$0.3 million.

Impairment of unconsolidated affiliate, in the amount of \$0.7 million, included in equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates. The income tax benefit associated with this expense was approximately \$0.2 million.

The following items, which occurred during the year ended December 31, 2010, have been treated as Non-GAAP adjustments:

Contract termination payment net of certain other costs resulting from the termination of a Financial Services subaccounting client, in the amount of \$7.5 million. The net contract termination gain was comprised of operating revenues of \$9.1 million, partially offset by certain other costs of \$1.6 million that were included in Costs and expenses. The aggregate income tax expense associated with this net contract termination gain was approximately \$2.9 million.

Contract termination payment, net of termination benefit expenses and asset impairment charges resulting from the termination of an Output Solutions telecommunications client, in the amount of \$59.7 million. The net contract termination gain was comprised of operating revenues of \$64.3 million, partially offset by termination benefit expenses of \$1.5 million that were included in Costs and expenses and asset impairment charges of \$3.1 million which are included in Depreciation and amortization expense. The aggregate income tax expense associated with this net contract termination gain was approximately \$23.3 million.

Termination benefit expenses of \$20.9 million associated with reductions in workforce in the Financial Services Segment (\$14.3 million) and the Output Solutions Segment (\$6.6 million), which were included in Costs and expenses. The aggregate income tax benefit associated with these costs was approximately \$8.2 million.

Table of Contents

The Company recorded expenses and net gains related to the disposition of securities and other investments in 2010. Expenses were associated with a charitable donation of marketable securities in the amount of \$10.2 million by the Investments and Other Segment, which was included in costs and expenses. The Company recorded \$70.8 million of net gains on securities and other investments, which were included in other income, net, for 2010 was comprised of net realized gains from dispositions of available-for-sale securities of \$67.0 million and net gains on private equity funds and other investments of \$5.1 million, partially offset by other than temporary impairments on available-for-sale securities of \$1.3 million. The aggregate income tax expense associated with the expenses and net gains was approximately \$19.7 million.

Cash dividends from a private equity investment of \$54.7 million, which was included in Other income, net. The gross amount of the dividends were \$57.7 million, but approximately \$3.0 million of the dividend was applied to the Company's cost basis investment. Approximately 50% of the dividend was estimated to qualify for the dividends received deduction. The income tax expense associated with these dividends were approximately \$12.6 million.

Net loss, in the amount of \$6.4 million, associated with the repurchase and extinguishment of senior convertible debentures, which was included in Other income, net. The income tax benefit associated with this net loss was approximately \$2.4 million.

An income tax benefit of approximately \$2.3 million related to the release of a valuation allowance previously established on deferred income tax assets of DST Output Limited (U.K.) resulting from the acquisition of dsicmm Group. Innovative Output Solutions Limited ("IOS") was the beneficiary of this income tax benefit, and accordingly DST's share of the benefit was 70.5% or \$1.6 million. The remaining portion of the income tax benefit (29.5% or \$0.7 million) was attributed to the non-controlling interest.

The following items, which occurred during the year ended December 31, 2009, have been treated as Non-GAAP adjustments:

Interest expense, in the amount of \$4.7 million, associated with financing costs from the convertible senior debenture exchange transactions completed in October and November 2009. The income tax benefit associated with these financing costs was approximately \$1.9 million.

Gain on equity interest in Argus, in the amount of \$41.7 million, included in other income, net associated with DST's purchase of the remaining 50% interest of Argus on March 31, 2009 for \$57.0 million in cash. As required by generally accepted accounting principles, the Company adopted the new business combinations accounting guidance on January 1, 2009. In accordance with the guidance, the acquisition of the remaining 50% of Argus was treated as a step acquisition. Accordingly, DST remeasured its previously held equity interest in Argus to fair value and recorded a \$41.7 million gain. In addition, the Company recorded an income tax benefit associated with this transaction of approximately \$0.9 million related to the elimination of deferred tax liabilities previously established for equity in earnings of Argus. In accordance with income tax accounting guidance, no income taxes were recorded on the \$41.7 million gain on equity interest in Argus.

Other net gain, in the amount of \$17.2 million, associated with realized and unrealized gains (losses) related to securities and other investments, which are included in Other income, net. The income tax expense associated with this gain was approximately \$6.9 million. The \$17.2 million of net gain on securities and other investments for the year ended December 31, 2009 is comprised of net realized gains from sales of available-for-sale securities of \$46.3 million, net losses on private equity funds and other investments of \$1.8 million and other than temporary impairments on available-for-sale securities and other investments of \$27.3 million.

Table of Contents

Gain, in the amount of \$5.9 million, associated with the repurchase and extinguishment of senior convertible debentures. The income tax expense associated with this gain was approximately \$2.2 million.

Increased equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates, in the amount of \$4.5 million, associated with a gain on the change in equity interest of a subsidiary investment held by IFDS, L.P. The income tax expense associated with this gain was approximately \$1.8 million. During fourth quarter 2009, an equity method investment held by IFDS, L.P. was consolidated requiring the existing equity interest held by IFDS, L.P. to be remeasured to fair value. This remeasurement to fair value resulted in a \$9.0 million gain being recorded by IFDS, L.P.

An income tax benefit of approximately \$5.7 million resulting from a reduction in income tax related liabilities principally associated with the completion of an IRS examination in February 2009 for the tax years ended December 31, 2002 through 2005.

Table of Contents

DST SYSTEMS, INC. RECONCILIATION OF REPORTED RESULTS TO INCOME ADJUSTED FOR CERTAIN NON-GAAP ITEMS

Year Ended December 31, (in millions, except per share amounts)

		2011											
	•	erating icome		Pretax Income		Net icome	DST Earnings			iluted EPS			
Reported GAAP income	\$	260.1	\$	274.0	\$	178.2	\$	183.1	\$	3.95			
Adjusted to remove:													
Included in operating income:													
Contract termination payment, net Financial Services		(2.0)		(2.0)		(1.2)		(1.2)		(0.03)			
Employee termination expenses Financial Services		1.3		1.3		0.8		0.8		0.02			
Employee termination expenses Output Solutions		5.1		5.1		3.2		3.0		0.06			
Business development expenses Financial Services		3.1		3.1		1.8		1.8		0.04			
Business development expenses Output Solutions		0.2		0.2		0.1		0.1					
Business advisory expenses Financial Services		1.8		1.8		1.1		1.1		0.02			
Restructuring cost to amend sales / marketing agreements Financial Services		7.3		7.3		4.4		4.4		0.10			
Loss accrual Financial Services		3.5		3.5		3.5		3.5		0.08			
Included in non-operating income:													
Net gain on securities and other investments				(17.2)		(10.5)		(10.5)		(0.23)			
Net loss on repurchase of convertible debentures				1.2		0.8		0.8		0.02			
Employee termination expenses at unconsolidated affiliate				2.6		2.3		2.3		0.05			
Impairment of unconsolidated affiliate				0.7		0.5		0.5		0.01			
Adjusted Non-GAAP income	\$	280.4	\$	281.6	\$	185.0	\$	189.7	\$	4.09			

	erating come	Pretax Income		2010 Net Income		DST Earnings*		iluted EPS
Reported GAAP income	\$ 344.6	\$	476.6	\$	317.5	\$	318.5	\$ 6.73
Adjusted to remove:								
Included in operating income:								
Contract termination payment, net Financial Services	(7.5)		(7.5)		(4.6)		(4.6)	(0.10)
Contract termination payment, net Output Solutions	(59.7)		(59.7)		(36.4)		(36.4)	(0.77)
Employee termination expenses Financial Services	14.3		14.3		8.7		8.7	0.18
Employee termination expenses Output Solutions	6.6		6.6		4.0		4.0	0.09
Included in operating income and non-operating income:								
Net gain on the disposition of securities and other investments	10.2		(60.6)		(40.9)		(40.9)	(0.87)
Included in non-operating income:								
Dividend from a private equity investment			(54.7)		(42.1)		(42.1)	(0.89)
Net loss on repurchase of convertible debentures			6.4		4.0		4.0	0.09
Release of international income tax valuation allowance					(2.3)		(1.6)	(0.03)
Adjusted Non-GAAP income	\$ 308.5	\$	321.4	\$	207.9	\$	209.6	\$ 4.43

Note:

See the Description of Non-GAAP Adjustments section for a description of each of the above adjustments and see the Use of Non-GAAP Financial Information section for management's reasons for providing non-GAAP financial information.

* DST Earnings has been defined as "Net income attributable to DST Systems, Inc." (taking into account the net loss attributable to non-controlling interest).

Table of Contents

DST SYSTEMS, INC. RECONCILIATION OF REPORTED RESULTS TO INCOME ADJUSTED FOR CERTAIN NON-GAAP ITEMS

Year Ended December 31, (in millions, except per share amounts)

	0				2	2009				
	Operating Income		Pretax Income		Iı	Net ncome	DST Earnings*			iluted EPS
Reported GAAP income	\$	274.3	\$	354.5	\$	241.6	\$	241.6	\$	4.84
Adjusted to remove:										
Included in non-operating income:										
Financing costs associated with the convertible debenture exchange										
transactions				4.7		2.8		2.8		0.05
Gain on equity interest in Argus Health Systems				(41.7)		(42.6)		(42.6)		(0.85)
Net gain on securities and other investments				(17.2)		(10.3)		(10.3)		(0.21)
Gain on extinguishment of senior convertible debentures				(5.9)		(3.7)		(3.7)		(0.07)
Gain on change in equity interest of a subsidiary investment held by an										
unconsolidated affiliate				(4.5)		(2.7)		(2.7)		(0.05)
Reduction in income tax related liabilities						(5.7)		(5.7)		(0.12)
Adjusted Non-GAAP income	\$	274.3	\$	289.9	\$	179.4	\$	179.4	\$	3.59

Note: See the Description of Non-GAAP Adjustments section for a description of each of the above adjustments and see the Use of Non-GAAP Financial Information section for management's reasons for providing non-GAAP financial information.

Taking into account the non-GAAP items described in the above tables, adjusted non-GAAP diluted earnings per share was \$4.09, \$4.43 and \$3.59 during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Management's discussion of the Company's "Results of Operations" and "Year to Year Business Segment Comparisons" in the sections above are applicable for these changes in non-GAAP diluted earnings per share, when adjusting for the non-GAAP items in the reconciliation tables above. In addition, non-GAAP diluted earnings per share is impacted by changes in average diluted shares outstanding which were 46.3 million, 47.3 million and 50.0 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The decrease in non-GAAP diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2011 is attributable to the decreased Financial Services Segment income from operations resulting from decreased operating revenues. The increase in non-GAAP diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2010 is attributable to lower average diluted shares outstanding associated with share repurchases and lower costs resulting from the Company's ongoing cost management initiatives which included a workforce reduction and other controls over operating expenses. The decrease in average diluted shares outstanding during the three years ended December 31, 2011 is primarily attributable to shares repurchased during 2011, 2010 and 2009 and from lower dilutive effects of the convertible senior debentures in 2011, 2010 and 2009 resulting primarily from debenture repurchases in 2010.

^{*} DST Earnings has been defined as "Net income attributable to DST Systems, Inc." (after non-controlling interest). Management's Analysis of Non-GAAP Results for 2011, 2010 and 2009

Table of Contents

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Sources and Uses of Cash

The Company's primary source of liquidity has historically been cash provided by operations. Principal uses of cash are operations, reinvestment in the Company's proprietary technologies, capital expenditures, stock repurchases, investment purchases, business acquisitions, payments on debt and dividend payments. Information on the Company's consolidated cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is presented in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, categorized by operating activities, investing activities, and financing activities.

Operating Activities

Operations

Cash flows provided by operating activities were \$404.3 million, \$354.7 million and \$362.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Company had \$40.9 million, \$139.8 million and \$106.2 million of cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Operating cash flows of \$404.3 million in 2011 resulted principally from net income of \$178.2 million adjusted for non-cash items included in the determination of net income, including depreciation and amortization expense of \$131.6 million and equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates of \$21.7 million. Significant working capital related adjustments to net income include increases in deferred revenues and gains of \$38.3 million and accounts payable and accrued liabilities of \$28.0 million.

Operating cash flows increased by \$49.6 million during 2011 as compared to 2010, however, cash flows provided by operating activities during 2010 include a cash flow use of \$125.0 million related to an increase in accounts receivable associated with the Company's January 1, 2010 adoption of new authoritative accounting guidance related to the transfer of financial assets. After January 1, 2010, the periodic transfers of undivided interests in accounts receivable no longer qualify for sale accounting treatment in accordance with the new accounting guidance and are accounted for as secured borrowings. At December 31, 2010, the outstanding amount of undivided interests in the receivables held by the conduit was \$125.0 million, unchanged from December 31, 2009. During 2010, the Company's accounts receivable increased by \$125.0 million resulting in a cash outflow being reported in the operating section of the cash flow statement and the current portion of debt associated with the accounts receivable securitization program increased by \$125.0 million resulting in a cash inflow being reported in the financing section of the statement of cash flows. Cash flows after January 1, 2010 associated with the accounts receivable securitization program will be presented as financing activities.

Absent the increase in accounts receivable in 2010 associated with the adoption of the new accounting guidance described above, operating cash flows decreased \$75.4 million to \$404.3 million during 2011 as compared to 2010. On this basis, the decrease in operating cash flows during 2011 is attributable to lower earnings in 2011, partially offset by an increase in deferred revenue of \$38.3 million, mostly attributable to the receipt of \$40.0 million from BFDS in 2011 as a partial prepayment of processing services to be provided by DST in 2012. Contributing to the decrease in net income for 2011 were the absence of significant contract termination payments received in 2010 of approximately \$73.4 million (\$64.3 million in Output Solutions and \$9.1 million in Financial Services) and \$57.7 million of cash dividends received in 2010 from a private equity investment.

Operating cash flows of \$354.7 million in 2010 resulted principally from net income of \$317.5 million adjusted for non-cash items included in the determination of net income, including depreciation and amortization expense of \$135.4 million and equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates of \$36.4 million. Significant working capital related adjustments to net income, excluding the \$125.0 million increase in accounts receivable related to the adoption of the new accounting guidance,

Table of Contents

include increases in accrued compensation and benefit liabilities of \$27.0 million and decreases in accounts receivable of \$11.7 million, partially offset by decreases in accounts payable and accrued liabilities of \$4.5 million. Absent the increase in accounts receivable associated with the adoption of the new accounting guidance described above, operating cash flows increased by \$117.3 million to \$479.7 million during 2010 compared to 2009. On this basis, the increase in operating cash flows during 2010 is attributable to higher earnings in 2010 and decreases in working capital. Contributing to the increase in net income for 2010 were contract termination payments and the private equity investment dividend mentioned above.

Operating cash flows of \$362.4 million in 2009 resulted principally from net income of \$241.6 million adjusted for non-cash items included in the determination of net income, including the \$41.7 million gain on equity interest of Argus, depreciation and amortization expense of \$130.4 million and equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates of \$37.3 million. Operating cash flow in 2009 also benefitted from \$29.6 million of dividends from unconsolidated affiliates. Significant working capital related adjustments to net income in 2009 include decreases in income taxes payable of \$50.8 million decreases in accounts payable and accrued liabilities of \$10.5 million, partially offset by decreases in accounts receivable of \$46.2 million.

Software Development and Maintenance

The Company's software development and maintenance efforts are focused on introducing new products and services as well as enhancing its existing products and services. The following table summarizes software development and maintenance and enhancements to the Company's proprietary systems and software products, which include capitalized software development capital expenditures (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31,										
	:	2011		2009							
Software development, maintenance and enhancements	\$	162.6	\$	162.1	\$	176.1					
Capitalized software development costs	\$	31.4	\$	27.8	\$	27.7					

Investing Activities

Cash flows used by investing activities were \$345.0 million and \$292.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, as compared to cash flows provided by investing activities of \$57.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2009. The \$53.0 million increase in investing activities during 2011 as compared to 2010 is attributable to higher cash outflows for acquisitions of businesses in 2011 of \$365.4 million as compared to \$7.8 million in 2010, an increase of \$357.6 million, and higher cash outflows for net investment securities activities as investment purchases exceeded proceeds received from investment sales by \$49.4 million during 2011 as compared to \$8.7 million in 2010. Partially offsetting these investing outflows was a net decrease in restricted cash held to satisfy client fund obligations which resulted in an investing cash inflow of \$150.8 million in 2011, as compared to a decrease in restricted cash held for client fund obligations which resulted in an investing cash outflow of \$194.3 million in 2010.

The increase in investing activities during 2010 as compared to 2009 is attributable to higher net investments in securities, net increases in restricted cash held to satisfy client fund obligations in 2010 which resulted in an investing cash outflow of \$194.3 million, as compared to a net decrease in restricted cash held for client fund obligations in 2009 which resulted in an investing cash inflow of \$149.1 million, partially offset by lower business acquisition spending in 2010 as compared to 2009.

Table of Contents

Capital Expenditures

The following table summarizes capital expenditures by segment (in millions):

	1	Year E	nded	Decem	ıber	31,
	2	011	2	2010	2	2009
Financial Services Segment	\$	51.1	\$	57.9	\$	49.2
Output Solutions Segment		23.6		24.1		36.7
Investments and Other Segment		8.9		10.9		12.1
	\$	83.6	\$	92.9	\$	98.0

Capitalized costs of software developed for internal use and systems to be sold or licensed to third parties totaled \$31.4 million, \$27.8 million and \$27.7 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. In addition, during 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company purchased approximately \$9.1 million, \$3.8 million and \$2.3 million, respectively, of electronic data processing equipment with promissory notes. Capital expenditures using promissory notes are treated as non-cash transactions and are not included in the annual capital expenditure amounts above. Future capital expenditures are expected to be funded primarily by cash flows from operating activities, the Company's equipment credit facility, or draws from bank lines of credit, as required.

Investments and Other Segment capital expenditures are primarily buildings and building improvements. Future capital expenditures are expected to be funded primarily by cash flows from operating activities, secured term notes or draws from bank lines of credit, as required.

Investments

The Company purchased \$423.5 million, \$292.8 million and \$90.6 million of investments in securities in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Company made advances to unconsolidated affiliates of \$0.5 million in 2011, and received proceeds from unconsolidated affiliates of \$6.7 million and \$1.6 million during the years ended December 31, 2010, and 2009, respectively. During 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company received \$374.1 million, \$284.1 million and \$142.2 million, respectively, from the sale/maturities of investments.

Funds Held on Behalf of Clients

The Company had \$272.6 million, \$406.6 million and \$208.3 million of funds held on behalf of clients at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. This amount is comprised of funds held on behalf of transfer agency clients and funds held on behalf of pharmacy processing clients. The \$150.8 million decrease in funds held on behalf of clients during 2011 is mostly attributable to lower Argus client funds held.

Business Acquisitions

During 2011, the Company paid \$365.4 million, net of cash acquired, for the following business acquisitions: ALPS, Newkirk, Lateral Group, Finix, Converge, Intellisource and Subserveo. The acquisition of ALPS on October 31, 2011 represented the largest acquisition payment in 2011, \$251.9 million, which was funded from proceeds from a \$125 million term loan facility and from existing credit facilities.

During 2010, the Company acquired dsicmm Group Limited ("dsicmm") for \$3.7 million in cash and the issuance of IOS stock. The Company also acquired a small fulfillment company, Capital Fulfillment Group, that is part of the Output Solutions Segment.

Table of Contents

During 2009, DST acquired the remaining 50% equity interest in Argus on March 31, 2009 and consolidated the financial statements of Argus and DST as of this acquisition date. The purchase price for the remaining 50% equity interest was \$57.0 million in cash, but \$9.2 million of cash acquired upon consolidation of Argus decreases the reported amount paid in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows to \$47.8 million.

Financing Activities

Cash flows used in financing activities totaled \$158.2 million, \$29.1 million and \$392.0 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The increase in cashflows used in financing activities during 2011 is attributable to a decrease in client fund obligations which resulted in a cash outflow of \$141.8 million as compared to an increase in client fund obligations in 2010 which resulted in a cash inflow of \$198.4 million. Proceeds of \$125.0 million from the term loan facility used to partially fund the ALPS acquisition and from stock option exercises of \$64.8 million were more than offset by common stock repurchased and dividends paid.

The decrease in cash flows used in financing activities during 2010 as compared to 2009 is attributable to an increase in client fund obligations mentioned above, proceeds from the issuance of senior notes of \$370.0 million and from the January 1, 2010 adoption of new accounting guidance related to transfers of financial assets described above, which required the Company to account for the accounts receivable securitization program as a secured borrowing and present \$125.0 million as a financing cash inflow during the year ended December 31, 2010. Absent this \$125.0 million financing cash inflow, financing cash outflows for 2010 would have been \$154.1 million. On this basis, financing cash outflows for 2010 consisted of repurchases of senior convertible debentures of \$498.5 million, share repurchases of \$137.7 million, payment of cash dividends of \$28.2 million, net borrowings under the revolving loan with BFDS and the syndicated line of credit facility in the aggregate amount of \$41.4 million, which were partially offset by proceeds received from the issuance of \$370.0 million of senior notes. Financing cash outflows for 2009 were for the repurchase of convertible senior debentures of \$131.3 million, share repurchases of \$40.5 million and net repayments under the syndicated line of credit facility in the aggregate amount of \$70.6 million.

Common Stock Issuances and Repurchases

The Company received proceeds of \$64.8 million, \$16.1 million and \$14.0 million from the issuance of common stock from the exercise of employee stock options during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Under the Company's stock repurchase plan, the Company expended \$135.4 million for approximately 3.0 million shares, \$116.6 million for approximately 2.9 million shares and \$9.7 million for approximately 0.3 million shares during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively. Payments made for tax withholding obligations arising from the exercise of options to purchase the Company's stock or from the vesting of restricted stock shares are included in common stock repurchased in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. The amount of such share withholdings for option exercises was \$39.3 million, \$21.1 million and \$30.8 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Dividends

In 2011, DST separately paid two cash dividends at \$0.35 per common share. The aggregate amount of the cash dividend was \$31.6 million.

In 2010, DST separately paid two cash dividends at \$0.30 per common share. The aggregate amount of the cash dividend was \$28.2 million.

Table of Contents

Client Funds Obligations

Client funds obligations represent the Company's contractual obligations to remit funds to satisfy client pharmacy claim obligations and are recorded on the balance sheet when incurred, generally after a claim has been processed by the Company. In addition, client funds obligations include transfer agency client balances invested overnight. Client funds obligations represent liabilities that will be repaid within one year of the balance sheet date. The Company had \$315.2 million, \$474.7 million and \$312.1 million of client funds obligations at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Debt Activity

The Company has used the following primary sources of financing: its syndicated line of credit facility; convertible debentures; subsidiary line of credit facilities; secured promissory notes; term loan credit facilities, loans from unconsolidated affiliates; accounts receivable securitization program; privately placed senior notes and secured borrowings. The Company has also utilized bridge loans as necessary to augment the above sources of debt financing. The Company had \$1,380.3 million, \$1,209.4 million and \$1,221.9 million of debt outstanding at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, an increase of \$170.9 million during 2011 and a decrease of \$12.5 million during 2010. The 2011 increase in debt is attributable to the 2011 business acquisitions, partially offset by cash flows from operations. Absent the \$125.0 million increase in debt from the adoption of new authoritative accounting guidance requiring proceeds from accounts receivable securitization transactions to be reflected as debt, which increased debt by \$125.0 million from December 31, 2009, total debt decreased \$137.5 million in 2010. On this basis, the decrease in debt is attributable to repurchases of \$498.5 million of senior convertible debentures, which were financed in part by the issuance of \$370.0 million of unsecured senior notes.

The Company is obligated under notes and other indebtedness as follows (in millions):

	December 31,						
	2011			2010			
Accounts receivable securitization program	\$	135.0	\$	125.0			
Secured promissory notes		16.6		3.5			
Equipment credit facilities		10.0		7.5			
Real estate credit agreement		105.2		108.5			
Term loan credit facility		125.0					
Series C convertible senior debentures		86.5		94.1			
Revolving credit facilities		328.3		330.2			
Senior notes		370.0		370.0			
Related party credit agreements		156.7		120.0			
Other indebtedness		47.0		50.6			
		1,380.3		1,209.4			
Less current portion of debt		320.8		286.1			
Long-term debt	\$	1,059.5	\$	923.3			

Accounts receivable securitization program

DST securitizes certain of its domestic accounts receivable through an accounts receivable securitization program with a third-party, multi-seller, asset-backed commercial paper conduit administered by a bank. The maximum amount that can be outstanding under this program is \$150 million. The facility will expire by its terms on May 17, 2012, unless renewed.

Under the terms of the accounts receivable securitization program, (a) DST periodically acquires accounts receivable originated by certain of its domestic subsidiaries, including, but not limited to,

Table of Contents

DST Output, DST Health Solutions, DST Technologies and Argus Health Systems (the "Subsidiary Originators"), (b) DST transfers receivables originated by DST and receivables acquired from the Subsidiary Originators, on a periodic basis, to a wholly-owned bankruptcy remote special purpose subsidiary of DST (the "SPE"), and (c) the SPE then sells undivided interests in the receivables to the commercial paper conduit. DST retains servicing responsibility over the receivables. The program contains customary restrictive covenants as well as customary events of default.

On January 1, 2010, the Company adopted new authoritative accounting guidance related to transfers of financial assets. This guidance changed the accounting for securitizations of mortgages and other financial instruments and the consolidation requirements for qualifying special-purpose entities ("QSPE"). Besides removing the concept of a QSPE, this new accounting guidance: a) clarified the determination of whether a transferor and all the entities included in the transferor's financial statements being presented have surrendered control over transferred financial assets; b) defined the term participating interest to establish specific conditions for reporting a transfer of a portion of a financial asset as a sale; c) required a transferor to recognize and initially measure at fair value all assets obtained and liabilities incurred as a result of a transfer of financial assets accounted for as a sale; and d) enhanced disclosures to provide financial statement users with greater transparency about transfers of financial assets and a transferor's continuing involvement with transferred financial assets.

Prior to the adoption of this new authoritative accounting guidance on January 1, 2010, the periodic transfers by the SPE of undivided interests in accounts receivable to the third-party, multi-seller, asset-backed commercial paper conduit met the requirements for sale accounting treatment and were considered an off-balance sheet arrangement. After January 1, 2010, the periodic transfers of undivided interests in accounts receivable no longer qualify for sale accounting treatment in accordance with the new accounting guidance and are accounted for as secured borrowings. DST has continuing involvement with the transferred assets because it maintains servicing responsibilities for the accounts receivable assets included in the accounts receivable securitization program. Accounts receivable assets transferred from DST and certain of its domestic subsidiaries to its wholly-owned, bankruptcy remote special purpose subsidiary contain restrictions because they are not available to satisfy the creditors of any other person, including DST or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates. Further, neither DST nor the SPE guarantees collectability of the receivables or the creditworthiness of obligors. The SPE retains an interest in the receivables in excess of the amount transferred to the conduit, and such receivables will continue to be recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The carrying value of the retained interest approximates its estimated fair value at the balance sheet date. The Company believes increases in the level of assumed interest rates and/or credit losses compared to assumptions in effect at the balance sheet date by 10% or 20% would not materially affect the fair value of the retained interest at the reporting date.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the outstanding amount of undivided interests in the receivables held by the conduit was \$135.0 million and \$125.0 million, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company's accounts receivable increased by \$125.0 million resulting in a cash outflow being reported in the operating section of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the current portion of debt associated with the accounts receivable securitization program increased by \$125.0 million resulting in a cash inflow being reported in the financing section of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows presents the net cash flows under the Company's accounts receivable securitization programs in the operating section. During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, total proceeds from the accounts receivable securitization program were approximately \$924.1 million and \$915.4 million, respectively, which comprises the net cash flow in the financing section of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Aggregate transfers of undivided interests in the receivables from the SPE to the conduit were \$1,720.2 million and \$1,769.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Table of Contents

The impact on net income stemming from these transfers was not material. Costs associated with the accounts receivable securitization program were included in other income during 2009, but are included in interest expense effective January 1, 2010. The program costs applicable to the outstanding amount of undivided interests in the receivables are generally based on the LIBOR rate plus an applicable margin.

Secured promissory notes

The secured promissory notes represent loans for real estate and equipment purchases. The outstanding amount at December 31, 2011 under the real estate notes and equipment notes was \$15.0 million and \$1.6 million, respectively. Included in the real estate notes payable as of December 31, 2011 is a \$9.3 million real estate mortgage entered into by IOS in July 2011, which is secured by real estate in Bristol U.K. The loan, denominated in British Pounds, requires quarterly principal payments and matures in July 2018. At December 31, 2011, the outstanding balance under this note payable was \$8.3 million. The remaining real estate borrowings are due in installments with the balance due at the end of the term. Interest rates on the real estate and equipment borrowings are generally fixed. Fixed rates range from 5.5% to 8.39%. The loans are secured by real property and assets owned by the Company.

Equipment credit facilities

The Company has a \$50.0 million unsecured credit facility with a vendor. Proceeds from loans made under the credit facility can be used to make purchases of the vendor's eligible equipment, software or services. The draw period under this credit facility expired on June 30, 2010. The maturity date for each loan drawn under this facility is the earlier of approximately three years from the initial draw or August 1, 2013. The outstanding amount under this credit facility at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was \$1.8 million and \$6.3 million, respectively.

On June 30, 2010, the Company entered into a new \$50.0 million unsecured credit facility with the same vendor. Proceeds from loans made under the new equipment credit facility can be used to make purchases of the vendor's eligible equipment, software or services. Loans under this credit facility must be made prior to December 31, 2012, the draw period termination date. The maturity date for each loan under this credit facility is the earlier of i) the last day of the thirty first (31st) calendar month following the loan date or ii) June 30, 2015. Interest rates applicable to the loans under this credit facility are generally based on the LIBOR rate plus an applicable margin. The applicable margin is based on a grid schedule that adjusts borrowing costs up or down based upon the Company's consolidated leverage ratio. The outstanding amount at December 31, 2011 and 2010 under the new equipment credit facility was \$8.2 million and \$1.2 million, respectively.

Real estate credit agreement and interest rate swap

Certain subsidiaries of DST entered into a real estate credit agreement with a syndicate of lenders. The credit agreement provides for a five-year, non-revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to \$120.0 million. Upon closing of the facility in September 2008, \$115.0 million was advanced to DST. The credit facility is secured by, among other things, the real estate and properties owned by these DST subsidiaries as well as an assignment of the related leases, rents and other benefits of these assets. The interest rate applicable to the credit agreement is a floating rate tied to either offshore LIBOR rate plus an applicable margin rate of 1.75% or the prime rate (as defined in the credit agreement), as elected by DST. Principal and interest payments are due on the first of each month beginning in November 2008, and are based on a 20 year amortization schedule. Subject to provisions in the credit agreement, DST may voluntarily prepay the loan in whole or in part without premium or penalty, though amounts repaid may not be reborrowed. Concurrent with the lease, sale or other transfer of any of the collateralized properties, DST must prepay an amount equal to 125% of the

Table of Contents

allocated amount of such property as set forth in the credit agreement. The credit agreement contains customary restrictive covenants, as well as certain customary events of default. Among other provisions, the credit agreement requires certain interest coverage ratios to be maintained. If any event of default occurs and is continuing, all amounts payable under the credit agreement may be declared immediately due and payable. The balance of the loan is due on September 16, 2013, the maturity date for the credit facility.

In January 2009, the Company entered an interest rate swap with a bank to fix the interest rate on its syndicated real estate credit agreement at approximately 4.49% (includes 1.75% applicable margin rate) beginning January 2010. This interest rate swap qualifies as a derivative instrument.

The Company's interest rate swap is a cash flow hedge of future interest payments under the Company's real estate credit agreement and uses a pay-fixed, receive-variable, forward starting interest rate swap. The Company's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking this hedge is to eliminate the variability of interest cash flows related to the Company's floating-rate real estate credit agreement. Changes in the cash flows of the interest rate swap are expected to offset the changes in cash flows attributable to fluctuations in the one-month LIBOR benchmark interest rate. The derivative instrument is a receive floating, pay 2.74% fixed, forward starting interest rate swap with an effective date of January 4, 2010 and a maturity date of September 16, 2013. Effectiveness of the hedge relationship is assessed on a quarterly basis both prospectively and retrospectively using the "cumulative dollar offset" method, in which the cumulative changes in the value of the hedging instrument are directly compared with the cumulative change in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item. A dollar offset ratio of between 0.80 and 1.25 is required in order to qualify for hedge accounting treatment. At inception of the hedge, the cumulative dollar offset ratio is 1.00 since the terms of the perfect hypothetical swap match those of the actual swap. The derivative accounting guidance indicates that hedge effectiveness occurs only if the cumulative gain or loss on the derivative hedging instrument exceeds the cumulative change in the expected future cash flows of the hedged transaction. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the fair value of the Company's pay-fixed, receive-variable, forward starting interest rate swap was a liability of \$4.3 million and \$5.0 million, respectively, which is included in other non-current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company determined there was no ineffectiveness during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, which resulted in the changes in fair value of this swap

Term Loan Credit Facility

On October 28, 2011, the Company entered into a \$125.0 million unsecured term loan credit facility with a bank. Subsequent to entering the facility, the Company borrowed \$125.0 million to partially fund the acquisition of ALPS which was completed on October 31, 2011. The interest rates applicable to loans under the credit facility are generally based on LIBOR or prime rates plus applicable margins as defined in the facility. The maturity date is the earlier of October 28, 2013 and the springing maturity date, as defined, which could cause the maturity date to become September 13, 2013 if the Company's real estate credit agreement is not repaid or refinanced. The facility contains customary restrictive covenants as well as customary events of default. Based on the terms of the credit facility, the Company may be required to prepay the loan if certain events occur. Amounts prepaid may not be reborrowed.

Convertible senior debentures

In August 2003, the Company issued \$840 million aggregate principal amount of convertible senior debentures, consisting of \$540 million of 4.125% Series A convertible senior debentures due 2023 and \$300 million aggregate principal amount of 3.625% Series B convertible senior debentures due 2023. The Series A debentures and Series B debentures had an interest rate of 4.125% and 3.625% per annum, respectively. During fourth quarter 2009, DST entered into separate privately negotiated

Table of Contents

exchange agreements under which it exchanged \$257.0 million in aggregate principal of the Company's outstanding 4.125% Series A convertible senior debentures due 2023 for \$257.0 million in aggregate principal of new 4.125% Series C convertible senior debentures due 2023. At December 31, 2009, the amount outstanding under the Series A, B, and C convertible senior debentures was \$151.8 million, \$171.3 million and \$257.0 million respectively.

During 2010, the Company repurchased \$67.7 million of the original Series A debentures, \$8.8 million of the Series B debentures and \$162.9 million of the Series C debentures and recorded a net loss of \$6.4 million on these transactions. In August 2010, the Company had \$9.9 million Series A debentures that were put to the Company by debenture holders and redeemed. In September 2010, the entire remaining balance of Series A (\$74.2 million) and Series B (\$168.5 million, which includes \$6.0 million of accreted interest) senior convertible debentures were redeemed, which fully retired these series of debentures. At December 31, 2010, the Company had \$94.1 million Series C senior convertible debentures outstanding.

During 2011, the Company repurchased \$11.4 million of the original Series C debentures and recorded a net loss of \$1.2 million on these transactions. At December 31 2011, the Company had \$86.5 million Series C senior convertible debentures outstanding.

The Series C debentures require regular cash interest on the original principal amount of each debenture at a rate of 4.125% per year, payable semiannually in arrears on February 15 until August 15, 2010. Beginning August 15, 2010, the Company does not pay regular cash interest on the Series C debentures prior to maturity. Instead, the original principal amount of the Series C debentures will increase daily at a rate of 4.125% per year to approximately \$1,700, which is the full accreted principal amount payable at maturity for each \$1,000 original principal amount of the debentures. The Company will pay contingent interest during any six-month interest period commencing with the period from August 20, 2010 to February 14, 2011, and thereafter from February 15 to August 14 or August 15 to February 14, for which the average trading price of the Series C debentures for the applicable five trading-day reference period equals or exceeds 120% of the accreted principal amount of the Series C debentures.

Beginning August 15, 2013, the Company may redeem for cash all or part of the Series C debentures at any time (upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days notice before the redemption date) at a redemption price equal to the accreted principal amount of the Series C debentures to be redeemed or purchased plus any accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the redemption date. Debenture holders may require the Company to purchase the Series C debentures on August 15, 2014, 2015 and 2020 at a purchase price equal to the accreted principal amount of the Series C debentures to be purchased plus any accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to such purchase date. For purchases of Series C debentures on August 15, 2014, the Company will pay the purchase price in cash. For purchases of Series C debentures on August 15, 2015 and 2020 and upon any fundamental change, the Company can pay the purchase price at its option in cash, common stock or any combination of cash and common stock.

The Series C debentures are convertible under specified circumstances into shares of the Company's common stock at an initial conversion rate of 20.3732 shares per \$1,000 principal amount of debentures (which is equal to an initial conversion price of \$49.08), subject to adjustment in certain events. The Series C debentures include a make-whole interest provision which may increase the conversion rate upon certain fundamental changes, as described in the Series C indenture, prior to August 15, 2013. The conversion rights for the Series C debentures include: 1) during any calendar quarter if the last reported sale price of DST's common stock for at least 20 trading days during the period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last day of the previous calendar quarter, is greater than or equal to 120% of the applicable conversion price; 2) subject to certain exceptions, during the five day

Table of Contents

business period after any five consecutive trading day period in which the trading price per \$1,000 original principal amount for each day of that period was less than 95% of the product of the last reported sales price of DST's common stock and the conversion rate on each such day; 3) if the debentures have been called for redemption; and 4) upon the occurrence of a specified corporate transaction as described in the indenture agreement. Upon conversion, the Company will have the right to deliver, in lieu of shares of its common stock, cash or a combination of cash and shares of common stock. The Series C debentures if converted into common stock upon the occurrence of certain events would lead to the issuance of common stock and have a potentially dilutive effect on the Company's stock. The Company intends to settle any conversions of the Series C debentures with cash for the accreted principal and accrued and unpaid interest and issue common stock for any conversion value amount over the principal and accrued and unpaid interest amounts. Holders of the Series C debentures did not have the right to convert these debentures at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Revolving credit facilities

On April 16, 2010, the Company entered into a new syndicated line of credit facility to replace its syndicated revolving line of credit facility that matured on July 1, 2010. The new credit agreement, as amended, provides for a revolving unsecured credit facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to \$630 million. The interest rates applicable to loans under the new credit agreement are generally based on LIBOR, Federal Funds or prime rates plus applicable margins as defined in the agreement. The revolving credit facility contains grid schedules that adjust borrowing costs up or down based upon the Company's consolidated leverage ratio. The grid schedules may result in fluctuations in borrowing costs ranging from 1.10% to 2.10% over LIBOR and 0.10% to 1.10% over base rate as defined. Additionally, an annual facility fee of 0.15% to 0.40% is required on this revolving syndicated line of credit. The credit agreement contains customary restrictive covenants, as well as certain customary events of default. Among other provisions, the credit agreement limits consolidated indebtedness, liens, investments, subsidiary indebtedness, asset dispositions and restricted payments (including stock repurchases and cash dividends), and requires certain leverage and interest coverage ratios to be maintained. If any event of default occurs and is continuing, all amounts payable under the credit agreement may be declared immediately due and payable. The maturity date for the new credit facility is July 1, 2015. On April 16, 2010, the date of the refinancing transaction, the administrative agent transferred \$443.4 million of the outstanding balance under the old (June 2005) credit facility to the new credit facility. Amounts borrowed on this syndicated revolving credit facility were \$328.3 million and \$325.0 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

One of the Company's subsidiaries has available an unsecured line of credit agreement that provides for unsecured revolving borrowings up to \$50 million that matures on September 30, 2012. Borrowings under the facility are available at rates based on LIBOR rates plus the applicable margin of 1.4%. Commitment fees of 0.25% per annum based on the unused portions are payable quarterly. Among other provisions, the agreement requires the subsidiary to maintain certain interest coverage ratios and tangible net worth levels. In the event of non-compliance, an event of default may occur, which could result in the loan becoming immediately due and payable. No amounts were borrowed under this line of credit at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

One of the Company's subsidiaries maintains a margin credit facility with a regulated broker/dealer. There were no borrowings under this facility at December 31, 2011 and 2010. This facility is collateralized by the underlying marketable securities. One of the Company's foreign subsidiaries has an available term loan credit facility of up to \$3.0 million and a revolving credit facility in the amount of \$5.0 million, both denominated in Canadian Dollars, and expire on October 31, 2012. There were no borrowings against these credit facilities at December 31, 2011 and 2010. The Company has an unsecured revolving line of credit for \$10.0 million that is payable immediately upon demand by the lender. Borrowings on the line of credit are available at variable rates of interest based on LIBOR plus

Table of Contents

an applicable margin. Interest is payable monthly. No amounts were drawn on this facility during 2011 and 2010. The Company's foreign subsidiary has an overdraft credit facility that provides for borrowings of up to \$8.1 million, denominated in British Pounds, at variable rates of interest based on the Bank's base rate plus 1.5% per annum. There were no amounts outstanding at December 31, 2011 and \$5.2 million outstanding at December 31, 2010.

Senior notes

On August 9, 2010, the Company issued \$370.0 million of aggregate principal of privately placed senior notes (collectively, the "Senior Notes"). The Senior Notes are comprised of \$40 million of 4.19% Series A Senior Notes due August 9, 2015, \$105 million of 4.86% Series B Senior Notes due August 9, 2017, \$65 million of 5.06% Series C Senior Notes due August 9, 2018 and \$160 million of 5.42% Series D Senior Notes due August 9, 2020.

The Senior Notes are unsecured senior obligations of the Company and were issued pursuant to a note purchase agreement dated August 9, 2010 (the "Agreement"). Interest on the Senior Notes is payable semiannually on February 9 and August 9 of each year, commencing February 9, 2011. The Company may prepay the Notes at any time, in an amount not less than 10% of the aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes then outstanding, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount being prepaid, plus accrued and unpaid interest and a "make-whole" prepayment premium. The Company may be required to prepay all or a portion of the Senior Notes upon the occurrence of any "Change in Control", as defined in the Agreement.

Pursuant to the Agreement, any subsidiary of the Company that is required to become a party to or otherwise guarantee the syndicated line of credit facility or other indebtedness in excess of \$100.0 million, will be required to guarantee the Company's obligations under the Senior Notes. The Agreement contains customary restrictive covenants, as well as certain customary events of default, including cross-default provisions. Among other provisions, the Agreement limits the ability of the Company to incur or create liens, sell assets, issue priority indebtedness and change lines of business. The agreement also requires certain leverage and interest coverage ratios to be maintained.

Related party credit agreements

On October 27, 2010, the Company amended and restated its related party promissory note with Boston Financial Data Services, Inc. The agreement provides for unsecured revolving borrowings by the Company of up to \$140 million and matures on July 1, 2013. From time to time, BFDS may, subject to a ten day notice period, demand a prepayment of the loan by the Company in an amount not to exceed \$25 million in each instance. The interest rate applicable to the loan is based on LIBOR plus an applicable margin correlating to the applicable margin under the Company's \$630 million syndicated line of credit facility. The loan agreement incorporates by reference and requires the Company to comply with the affirmative and negative covenants contained in the Company's \$630 million syndicated line of credit facility. The amount outstanding under this loan agreement was \$140.0 million and \$120.0 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company recorded interest expense related to this loan of \$2.7 million, \$2.0 million and \$1.0 million, respectively.

In 2011, DST's Innovative Output Solutions Limited ("IOS") subsidiary entered into a loan agreement denominated in British Pounds with International Financial Data Services Limited ("IFDS U.K."). The agreement provides for unsecured revolving borrowings by IOS and matures on December 31, 2015. IFDS U.K. may demand a prepayment of the loan by IOS at any time upon completion of a notice period. The interest rate applicable to the loan is based on the base rate of the Bank of England plus an applicable margin of 3.0% and is payable monthly. The amount outstanding under this loan at

Table of Contents

December 31, 2011 was \$6.2 million. For the year ended December 31, 2011, IOS recorded interest expense related to this loan of \$0.2 million.

As mentioned above, DST acquired certain intangible assets in 2011 from BFDS in exchange for an installment loan of \$11.2 million that is payable over five years and matures in September 2016. The amount outstanding at December 31, 2011 was \$10.5 million.

Other indebtedness

Other indebtedness is mostly comprised of debt obligations assumed by the Company in connection with prior business acquisitions, including the acquisition of dsicmm Group Limited in 2010 and Lateral Group Limited in 2011. Certain of the dsicmm credit agreements contain provisions that require dsicmm to maintain certain interest, leverage and other financial ratios. In the event of non-compliance with the provisions of these credit agreements, an event of default may occur, which could result in the loan becoming immediately due and payable.

Other indebtedness also includes a borrowing arrangement denominated in British Pounds between IOS and a bank that is secured by accounts receivable of IOS. The amount outstanding under this facility was \$21.0 million and \$16.2 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2011 and for the period July 30, 2010 through December 31, 2010, proceeds received from this loan were \$234.5 million and \$70.6 million and total repayments were \$238.9 million and \$68.8 million, respectively, which have been included in net payments on revolving credit facilities in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

The primary debt obligations assumed from business combinations prior to 2010 are payable in monthly installments. Interest rates are fixed and approximate 5.6%. The maturity date of this indebtedness is October 2016. Indebtedness assumed in 2010 from dsicmm contains both variable and fixed interest rates and maturity dates ranging from 2011 through December 2013.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table sets forth the Company's contractual obligations and commercial commitments (in millions):

	Payment Due by Period									
	Less than						More than			
		Total 1 Year		2 - 3 Years		4 - 5 Years		5	Years	
Debt obligations	\$	1,380.3	\$	320.8	\$	340.4	\$	384.5	\$	334.6
Operating lease obligations		149.3		25.8		44.9		32.0		46.6
Software license agreements		48.2		25.3		12.9		10.0		
Income tax uncertainties		61.4				61.4				
Private equity fund capital commitments		34.8		27.9		5.5		1.4		
Other		40.6		16.2		19.9		3.5		1.0
	\$	1,714.6	\$	416.0	\$	485.0	\$	431.4	\$	382.2

Table of Contents

Interest obligations on the Company's secured promissory notes, convertible senior debentures, revolving credit facilities and senior notes are not included in the table above. Related to the secured promissory notes (both mortgage and equipment purchase related), interest rates are both fixed and variable. Fixed rates range from 6.0% to 8.39%. The Series C (\$83.0 million principal) convertible senior debentures bear interest at a rate of 4.125% per annum, however, they discontinued paying cash interest beginning August 2010. The interest rates applicable to loans under the new credit agreement are generally based on LIBOR, Federal Funds or prime rates plus applicable margins as defined in the agreement. The revolving credit facility contains grid schedules that adjust borrowing costs up or down based upon the Company's consolidated leverage ratio. The grid schedules may result in fluctuations in borrowing costs ranging from 1.10% to 2.10% over LIBOR and 0.10% to 1.10% over base rate as defined. Additionally, an annual facility fee of 0.15% to 0.40% is required on this revolving syndicated line of credit. The Senior Notes are comprised of \$40 million of 4.19% Series A Senior Notes, \$105 million of 4.86% Series B Senior Notes, \$65 million of 5.06% Series C Senior Notes and \$160 million of 5.42% Series D Senior Notes.

In addition to the financial instruments listed above, the program fees incurred on proceeds from the sale of receivables under the Company's accounts receivable securitization program are determined based on variable interest rates associated with LIBOR.

The Company is a limited partner in various private equity funds. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the carrying value of these investments was approximately \$221.5 million and \$148.9 million, respectively. The Company has future capital commitments related to these private equity fund investments in the amount of \$34.8 million. Although the exact timing of these investment contributions is uncertain, the Company has estimated the potential timing of these contributions in the table above based on information provided by the investment advisors.

The Company has income tax uncertainties in the amount of \$61.4 million at December 31, 2011. These obligations are classified as non-current on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet as resolution of these matters is expected to take more than a year. The Company estimates that these matters may take more than one year to resolve as reflected on the table above, however, the ultimate timing of resolution is uncertain.

Company's Assessment of Short-term and Long-term Liquidity

The Company believes that its existing cash balances and other current assets, together with cash provided by operating activities and, as necessary, the Company's revolving credit facilities, will suffice to meet the Company's operating and debt service requirements and other current liabilities for at least the next 12 months. Further, the Company believes that its short-term liquidity may be increased by monetizing available-for-sale securities (which were \$773.0 million at December 31, 2011) and other assets, and that its longer term liquidity and capital requirements will also be met through cash provided by operating activities, bank credit facilities and available-for-sale securities and other investments.

Unconsolidated affiliates

The Company has formed operating joint ventures to enter into or expand its presence in target markets. To further penetrate the mutual fund market, in 1974 the Company formed BFDS, a 50% owned joint venture with State Street, a leading mutual fund custodian. The Company's international mutual fund/unit trust shareowner processing businesses (IFDS U.K., IFDS L.P., IFDS Canada, IFDS Luxembourg and IFDS Ireland) are also owned 50% by the Company and 50% by State Street. The Company also utilizes real estate joint ventures as a means of capturing potential appreciation and economic development tax incentives of leased properties. Two of the largest of these real estate joint ventures were formed in 1988 and 2004. The Company receives revenues for processing services and

Table of Contents

products provided to the operating joint ventures. The Company pays lease payments to certain real estate joint ventures. The Company has entered into various agreements with unconsolidated affiliates to utilize the Company's data processing facilities and computer software systems. The Company believes that the terms of its contracts with unconsolidated affiliates are fair to the Company and are no less favorable to the Company than those obtained from unaffiliated parties. The Company recognizes, on an equity basis, income and losses from its pro-rata share of these companies' net income or loss.

The following table summarizes amounts and transactions with the Company's related party unconsolidated affiliates (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31,						
	2	2011		2010		2009	
DST's operating revenues from unconsolidated affiliates	\$	162.0	\$	169.0	\$	176.3	
Amounts paid by DST to unconsolidated affiliates for products, services and leases	\$	3.8	\$	7.2	\$	9.8	
Amounts advanced (amounts received) by DST to (from) unconsolidated affiliates	\$	(6.3)	\$	(2.6)	\$	(1.0)	
Net proceeds received by DST from unconsolidated affiliates	\$	16.1	\$	3.8	\$	31.1	

	December 31,				
	2011		2	010	
Amounts receivable to DST from advances to unconsolidated affiliates	\$	12.2	\$	10.8	
Trade accounts receivable to DST from unconsolidated affiliates		17.0		24.3	
Amounts receivable to DST from unconsolidated affiliates	\$	29.2	\$	35.1	
Amounts payable by DST to unconsolidated affiliates*	\$	5.3	\$	1.5	
Deferred revenue by DST from unconsolidated affiliates**	\$	40.0	\$		

In December 2011, BFDS prepaid a portion of its 2012 DST processing services, in the amount of \$40.0 million, in exchange for a discount on 2012 services.

In 2011, the Company acquired certain customer relationship assets (full-service client processing contracts) from BFDS for approximately \$11.2 million that will be paid, on an installment basis, over five years. The Company initially recorded an intangible asset of \$11.2 million, which will be amortized over an estimated life of approximately five years, and a payable to BFDS, which has been classified as debt.

During 2011, the Company licensed software from Percana Limited, a subsidiary of International Financial Data Services Ireland.

The Company has entered into an agreement to guarantee 50% of the obligations of a 50% owned joint venture as a tenant under a real estate lease for an office building. The initial term of the lease is 10 years and 7 months, commencing March 1, 2007 and expiring September 30, 2017, with two five-year options to extend. The base rent for the initial term is \$4.8 million per year, plus all operating expenses for the building.

Excludes amounts owed under or activity related to the BFDS promissory note and IFDS, U.K. promissory note.

Table of Contents

The Company entered into an agreement to guarantee up to \$3.0 million plus any enforcement costs related to a \$32.0 million mortgage loan to a 50% owned real estate joint venture. The \$32.0 million loan matures on June 30, 2013. Total borrowings on the loan were \$30.5 million and the Company's guarantee totaled \$1.5 million for both December 31, 2011 and 2010.

The Company's 50% owned joint ventures are generally governed by shareholder or partnership agreements. The agreements generally entitle the Company to elect one-half of the directors to the board in the case of corporations and to have 50% voting/managing interest in the case of partnerships. The agreements generally provide that the Company or the other party, if it desires to terminate the agreement, may establish a price payable in cash, or a promise to pay cash, for all of the other's ownership in the joint venture and submit a binding offer, in writing, to the other party to sell to the other party all of its ownership interests in the joint venture or to purchase all ownership interests owned by the other party at such offering price. The party receiving the offer generally has a specified period of time to either accept the offer to sell its interest, or to elect to purchase the offering party's interest, in either case at the established offering price. The Company cannot estimate the potential aggregate offering price that it could be required to receive for its interest in the case of a sale, or to pay for the other party's interest in the case of a purchase; however, the amount could be material.

Guarantees

In addition to the guarantees entered into as mentioned above, the Company has also guaranteed certain obligations of certain joint ventures under service agreements entered into by the joint ventures and their customers. The amount of such obligations is not stated in the agreements. Depending on the negotiated terms of the guaranty and/or the underlying service agreement, the Company's liability under the guaranty may be subject to time and materiality limitations, monetary caps and other conditions and defenses.

In certain instances in which the Company licenses proprietary systems to customers, the Company gives certain warranties and infringement indemnities to the licensee, the terms of which vary depending on the negotiated terms of each respective license agreement, but which generally warrant that such systems will perform in accordance with their specifications. The amount of such obligations is not stated in the license agreements. The Company's liability for breach of such warranties may be subject to time and materiality limitations, monetary caps and other conditions and defenses.

From time to time, the Company enters into agreements with unaffiliated parties containing indemnification provisions, the terms of which vary depending on the negotiated terms of each respective agreement. The amount of such obligations is not stated in the agreements. The Company's liability under such indemnification provisions may be subject to time and materiality limitations, monetary caps and other conditions and defenses. Such indemnity obligations include the following:

The Company has entered into purchase and service agreements with its vendors, and consulting agreements with providers of consulting services to the Company, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to indemnify certain of such vendors and consultants, respectively, against third party claims arising from the Company's use of the vendor's product or the services of the vendor or consultant.

In connection with the acquisition or disposition of subsidiaries, operating units and business assets by the Company, the Company has entered into agreements containing indemnification provisions, the terms of which vary depending on the negotiated terms of each respective agreement, but which are generally described as follows: (i) in connection with acquisitions made by the Company, the Company has agreed to indemnify the seller against third party claims made against the seller relating to the subject subsidiary, operating unit or asset and arising after the closing of the transaction, and (ii) in connection with dispositions made by the Company, the Company has agreed to indemnify the buyer against damages incurred by the buyer due to the buyer's reliance on representations and warranties relating to the subject subsidiary, operating unit or business assets in the disposition agreement if such

Table of Contents

representations or warranties were untrue when made, or due to any breach of the representations, warranties, agreements or covenants contained in the agreement.

The Company has entered into agreements with certain third parties, including banks and escrow agents that provide software escrow, fiduciary and other services to the Company or to its benefit plans or customers. Under such agreements, the Company has agreed to indemnify such service providers for third party claims relating to the carrying out of their respective duties under such agreements.

The Company has entered into agreements with lenders providing financing to the Company pursuant to which the Company agrees to indemnify such lenders for third party claims arising from or relating to such financings. In connection with real estate mortgage financing, the Company has entered into environmental indemnity agreements in which the Company has agreed to indemnify the lenders for any damage sustained by the lenders relating to any environmental contamination on the subject properties.

In connection with the acquisition or disposition of real estate by the Company, the Company has entered into real estate contracts containing indemnification provisions, the terms of which vary depending on the negotiated terms of each respective contract, but which are generally described as follows: (i) in connection with acquisitions by the Company, the Company has agreed to indemnify the seller against third party claims made against the seller arising from the Company's on-site inspections, tests and investigations of the subject property made by the Company as part of its due diligence and against third party claims relating to the operations on the subject property after the closing of the transaction, and (ii) in connection with dispositions by the Company, the Company has agreed to indemnify the buyer for damages incurred by the buyer due to the buyer's reliance on representations and warranties relating to the subject property made by the Company in the real estate contract if such representations or warranties were untrue when made and against third party claims relating to operations on the subject property prior to the closing of the transaction.

In connection with the leasing of real estate by the Company, as landlord and as tenant, the Company has entered into occupancy leases containing indemnification provisions, the terms of which vary depending on the negotiated terms of each respective lease, but which are generally described as follows: (i) in connection with leases in which the Company is the tenant, the Company has agreed to indemnify the landlord against third party claims relating to the Company's occupancy of the subject property, including claims arising from loss of life, bodily injury and/or damage to property thereon, and (ii) in connection with leases in which the Company is the landlord, the Company has agreed to indemnify the tenant against third party claims to the extent occasioned wholly or in part by any negligent act or omission of the Company or arising from loss of life, bodily injury and/or damage to property in or upon any of the common areas or other areas under the Company's control.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had not accrued any liability on the aforementioned guarantees or indemnifications as they relate to future performance criteria or indirect guarantees of indebtedness of others in accordance with accounting and reporting guidance on guarantees, including indirect guarantees of indebtedness of others.

Seasonality

Generally, the Company does not have significant seasonal fluctuations in its business operations. Processing and Output Solutions volumes for mutual fund customers are usually highest during the quarter ended March 31 due primarily to processing year-end transactions and printing and mailing of year-end statements and tax forms during January. The Company has historically added operating equipment in the last half of the year in preparation for processing year-end transactions, which has the effect of increasing costs for the second half of the year. Revenues and operating results from individual license sales depend heavily on the timing and size of the contract.

Table of Contents

Comprehensive income (loss)

The Company's comprehensive income totaled \$109.6 million, \$317.3 million and \$388.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income of \$183.1 million, \$318.5 million and \$241.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and other comprehensive loss of \$73.5 million and \$1.2 million in 2011 and 2010, respectively, and other comprehensive income of \$147.1 million in 2009. Other comprehensive income (loss) consists of unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, net of deferred taxes, reclassifications for net gains and losses included in net income, unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swaps, the Company's proportional share of unconsolidated affiliates interest rate swaps and foreign currency translation adjustments. The principal difference between net income and comprehensive net income is the net change in unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities. The Company's net unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities results primarily from changes in market value of the Company's investments in approximately 10.3 million shares of State Street common stock, approximately 15.0 million shares of Computershare common stock and approximately 1.9 million shares of Euronet Worldwide, Inc. At December 31, 2011, these three investments had an aggregate pre-tax unrealized gain of approximately \$382.3 million. One of DST's unconsolidated affiliates had an interest rate swap liability with a fair market value of \$73.0 million, \$47.7 million and \$35.6 million at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. DST's 50% proportionate share of this interest rate swap liability was \$36.5 million, \$23.9 million and \$17.8 million at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Company records in investments and accumulated other comprehensive income its proportionate share of this liability in an amount not to exceed the carrying value of its investment in this unconsolidated affiliate, which resulted in no liability at December 31, 2011 and \$2.0 million and \$5.0 million recorded at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The amounts of foreign currency translation adjustments included in other comprehensive income (loss) are (\$0.9) million, \$2.4 million and \$45.0 million in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The unrealized loss on the Company's interest rate swap was \$4.3 million and \$5.0 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Other than temporary impairments

At December 31, 2011, the Company's available-for-sale securities had gross unrealized holding losses of \$4.3 million. If it is determined that a security's net realizable value is other than temporary, a realized loss will be recognized in the statement of operations and the cost basis of the security reduced to its estimated fair value. The Company does not believe that the gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2011 are other than temporary.

The Company recorded unrealized losses on available for sale securities of \$3.8 million, \$1.3 million and \$27.3 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, which the Company believed were other than temporary. The Company records lower of cost or market valuation adjustments on private equity fund investments and other cost method investments when impairment conditions are present. During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company recorded \$1.7 million, \$1.7 million and \$1.8 million of impairments on private equity fund and other investments related to adverse market conditions and from poor performance of the underlying investment. The impairments related primarily to investments in the Financial Services and Investments and Other Segments. A decline in a security's net realizable value that is other than temporary is treated as a loss based on quoted market value and is reflected in other income, net, in the statement of income.

Derivative and Hedging Activities

Authoritative accounting guidance establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and hedging activities. It requires that an entity recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the balance

Table of Contents

sheet and measure those instruments at fair value and that the changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each period in current earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on whether a derivative is designated as part of a hedge transaction and, if it is, the type of hedge transaction. While it is generally not the Company's practice to enter into derivative contracts, from time to time, the Company utilizes derivatives to manage certain risks. The Company does not enter into derivative arrangements for speculative purposes. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company's forward starting interest rate swap associated with the syndicated real estate credit agreement had a fair value of \$4.3 million and \$5.0 million liability, respectively.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

In the operations of its businesses, the Company's financial results can be affected by changes in equity pricing, interest rates and currency exchange rates. Changes in interest rates and exchange rates have not materially impacted the consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flow of the Company. Changes in equity values of the Company's investments have had a material effect on the Company's comprehensive income and financial position.

Available-for-sale equity price risk

The Company's investments in available-for-sale equity securities are subject to price risk. The fair value of the Company's available-for-sale investments as of December 31, 2011 was approximately \$773.0 million. The impact of a 10% change in fair value of these investments would be approximately \$47.2 million to comprehensive income. As discussed under "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Comprehensive Income" above, net unrealized gains and losses on the Company's investments in available-for-sale securities have had a material effect on the Company's comprehensive income (loss) and financial position.

Interest rate risk

The Company and certain of its joint ventures derive a certain amount of their service revenues from investment earnings related to cash balances maintained in bank accounts on which the Company is the agent for clients. The balances maintained in the bank accounts are subject to fluctuation. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company and BFDS had average daily cash balances of approximately \$1.7 billion maintained in such accounts, of which approximately \$1.1 billion were maintained at BFDS. The Company estimates that a 50 basis point change in interest earnings rate would equal approximately \$2.8 million of net income (loss).

At December 31, 2011, the Company had \$1.4 billion of debt, of which \$777.6 million was subject to variable interest rates (Federal Funds rates, LIBOR rates, Prime rates). As discussed above in comprehensive income (loss), the amount recorded related to the Company's proportional share of unconsolidated affiliates' interest rate swap was a loss of \$36.5 million. The Company estimates that a 10% increase in interest rates would not be material to the Company's consolidated pretax earnings or to the fair value of its debt

In addition to the financial instruments listed above, the program fees incurred on proceeds from the sale of receivables under the Company's accounts receivable securitization program are determined based on variable interest rates associated with LIBOR.

Table of Contents

Foreign currency exchange rate risk

The operation of the Company's subsidiaries in international markets results in exposure to movements in currency exchange rates. The principal currencies involved are the British pound, Canadian dollar, Australian dollar, Thai baht and Indian rupee. Currency exchange rate fluctuations have not historically materially affected the consolidated financial results of the Company. At December 31, 2011, the Company's international subsidiaries had approximately \$322.9 million in total assets and for the year ended December 31, 2011, these international subsidiaries produced approximately \$12.4 million of a net loss. The Company estimates that a 10% change in exchange rates could change total consolidated assets by approximately \$32.3 million. Furthermore, a 10% change in exchange rates based upon historical earnings in international operations could change consolidated reported net income for 2011 by approximately \$1.2 million.

The Company's international subsidiaries use the local currency as the functional currency. The Company translates its assets and liabilities at year-end exchange rates except for those accounts where historical rates are acceptable, and translates income and expense accounts at average rates during the year. While it is generally not the Company's practice to enter into derivative contracts, from time to time the Company and its subsidiaries do utilize forward foreign currency exchange contracts to minimize the impact of currency movements.

Table of Contents

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders of DST Systems, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(1) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of DST Systems, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company's management is responsible for these financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements and on the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audits of the financial statements included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

As discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for transfers of financial assets in 2010.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Kansas City, Missouri February 29, 2012

DST Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

ASSETS Current assets 40,0 \$130,8 Clash and cash equivalents 272.6 40,6 7 6 2 3 1 1 1 6		December 31,			31,
Current assets 400.9 \$ 130.8 Clash and cash equivalents 272.6 400.6 Client funding receivable 42.6 68.8 Accounts receivable (includes related party receivables of \$17.0 and \$24.3) 325.2 308.0 Deferred income taxes 76.2 62.6 Other assets 76.2 62.6 Investments 1,072.8 1,139.1 Unconsolidated affiliates 370.8 355.5 Properties 520.9 49.5 Intangible assets 169.0 49.5 Goodwill 487.0 230.2 Other assets 38.2 \$1.1 Total assets 49.5 \$3.339.4 Current protion of debt \$3.0 \$3.25.1 Current portion of debt \$3.0 \$2.6 Client funds obligations 310.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 59.0 Accounts payable 10.1 59.0 Chefered receive and gains 10.1 59.0 Other liabilities 2,592.9 <td< th=""><th></th><th></th><th>2011</th><th></th><th>2010</th></td<>			2011		2010
Cash and cash equivalents \$40,9 \$130,8 Funds held on behalf of clients 272,6 40,6 Citient funding receivable 42,6 88,1 Accounts receivable (includes related party receivables of \$17.0 and \$24.3) 325.2 308,0 Deferred income taxes 77.2 62.6 Investments 1,072.8 1,130,1 Unconsolidated affiliates 303.5 150,8 Properties 523.9 516,8 Intagible assets 160.0 49,5 Goodwill 480.0 230.2 Other assets 3,428.6 \$3,394.0 Total assets \$3,428.6 \$3,394.0 Current Idabilities \$3,28.2 \$4,47.7 Current portion of debt \$1,50.2 \$4,47.7 Accorde compensation and	ASSETS				
Funds held on behalf of clients 272.6 406.6 Client funding receivable 42.6 68.1 Accounts receivable (includes related party receivables of \$17.0 and \$24.3) 325.2 308.0 Deferred income taxes 77.2 62.6 Other assets 76.9 997.2 Investments 1,072.8 1,130.1 Unconsolidated affiliates 370.8 355.5 Properties 523.9 516.8 Intangible assets 169.0 49.5 Goodwill 487.0 230.2 Other assets 38.2 51.1 Total assets \$3,428.6 \$3,339.4 ELIBRILITIES AND EQUITY Variety and the properties of the propert	Current assets				
Funds held on behalf of clients 272.6 406.6 Client funding receivable 42.6 68.1 Accounts receivable (includes related party receivables of \$17.0 and \$24.3) 325.2 308.0 Deferred income taxes 77.2 62.6 Other assets 776.9 979.2 Investments 1,072.8 1,139.1 Unconsolidated affiliates 370.8 355.5 Properties 523.9 151.8 Intangible assets 60.9 49.5 Goodwill 487.0 230.2 Other assets 38.2 51.1 Total assets \$3,428.6 \$3,339.4 Element liabilities \$320.8 \$286.1 Current portion of debt \$320.8 \$286.1 Client funds obligations \$15.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 45.1 Accurred compensation and benefits 110.5 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 100.3 89.6 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt	Cash and cash equivalents	\$	40.9	\$	139.8
Accounts receivable (includes related party receivables of \$17.0 and \$24.3) 325.2 308.0 Deferred income taxes 8.4 12.1 Other assets 776.9 997.2 Investments 1,072.8 1,139.1 Unconsolidated affiliates 370.8 355.5 Properties \$23.3 516.8 Intangible assets 169.0 49.5 Goodwill 487.0 230.2 Other assets 38.4 \$1.10 Total assets \$3,428.6 \$3,339.4 LABILITIES AND EQUITY Current protino of debt \$30.8 \$286.1 Current portion of debt \$30.8 \$28.1 Current portion of debt \$30.8 \$28.1 Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accouned compensation and benefits 110.6 12.7 Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 \$8.9 Other liabilities 10.9 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5	·		272.6		406.6
Accounts receivable (includes related party receivables of \$17.0 and \$24.3) 325.2 308.0 Deferred income taxes 8.4 1.21 Other assets 77.2 62.6 Investments 1,072.8 1,139.1 Unconsolidated affiliates 370.8 355.5 Properties 523.9 516.8 Intangible assets 169.0 49.5 Goodwill 487.0 20.20 Other assets 38.2 51.1 Total assets \$3,428.6 \$3,339.4 Unrent protrion of debt \$320.8 \$286.1 Current portion of debt \$320.8 \$286.1 Cilent funds obligations 315.2 474.7 Accounted compensation and benefits 119.6 151.7 Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 \$8.9 Other liabilities 120.8 \$8.4 Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities	Client funding receivable		42.6		68.1
Deferred income taxes 8.4 12.1 Other assets 77.2 62.6 Investments 1,072.8 1,392.1 Unconsolidated affiliates 53.9 516.8 Properties 523.9 516.8 Intangible assets 160.0 49.5 Goodwill 487.0 230.2 Other assets 3,428.6 \$3,39.4 Total assets 3,428.6 \$3,39.4 Total assets \$3,428.6 \$3,39.4 Total assets \$3,428.6 \$3,39.4 Total assets \$3,428.6 \$3,39.4 Cliver funds of debt \$32.8 \$286.1 Cliver funds obligations \$35.2 \$474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accounts ace apayable 10.03.8 98.4 Deferred revness and gains 10.93.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 10.59.5 923.3			325.2		308.0
Other assets 77.2 62.6 Investments 1,072.8 1,139.1 Unconsolidated affiliates 370.8 355.5 Properties 523.9 516.8 Intangible assets 169.0 49.5 Goodwill 487.0 230.2 Other assets 38.2 51.1 Total assets \$ 3,428.6 \$ 3,339.4 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Current portion of debt \$ 320.8 \$ 286.1 Client funds obligations 315.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accrued compensation and benefits 19.6 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 10.13 58.9 Other liabilities 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 1,095.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Total liabilities <td></td> <td></td> <td>8.4</td> <td></td> <td>12.1</td>			8.4		12.1
Transparent	Other assets				62.6
Investments					
Investments			766.0		007.2
Unconsolidated affiliates 370.8 355.5 Properties 523.9 516.8 Intangible assets 169.0 487.0 230.2 Oodwill 487.0 230.2 Other assets 38.2 51.1 Total assets \$ 3,428.6 \$ 3,339.4 LiABILITIES AND EQUITY Current liabilities Current portion of debt \$ 320.8 \$ 286.1 Client funds obligations 315.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accounts payable 119.6 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 110.3 58.9 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,099.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity 5 Stystems, Inc. stockholders' equity <td< td=""><td>Investments</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	Investments				
Properties 523.9 516.8 Intangible assets 60.0 49.5 Goodwill 487.0 230.2 Other assets 38.2 51.1 Total assets \$3,428.6 \$3,339.4 LABILITIES AND EQUITY Current portion of debt \$320.8 \$286.1 Client funds obligations 315.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 55.1 Accrued compensation and benefits 119.6 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 58.9 Other liabilities 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity Expression of the state of the stat					
Intangible assets 169.0 49.5 Goodwill 487.0 230.2 Other assets 38.2 51.1 Total assets \$3,428.6 \$3,339.4 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Current liabilities Current portion of debt \$320.8 \$286.1 Client funds obligations 315.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 55.1 Accrued compensation and benefits 119.6 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 58.9 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 1,073.7 33.5 Deferred income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity Equity Expression in the stockholders' equity Expression in the stockholders' equity </td <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>					
Goodwill 487.0 230.2 Other assets 38.2 51.1 Total assets \$ 3,428.6 \$ 3,339.4 LABILITIES AND EQUITY Current labilities Current portion of debt \$ 320.8 \$ 286.1 Client funds obligations 315.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accunute compensation and benefits 110.3 58.9 Other liabilities 10.73.7 1,104.9 Long-term devenues and gains 10.3 58.9 Other liabilities 1,079.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity Exprise 2 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) 1.0 1.0 Equity 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2<					
Other assets 38.2 51.1 Total assets \$ 3,428.6 \$ 3,339.4 LABILITIES AND EQUITY Current liabilities Current portion of debt \$ 320.8 \$ 286.1 Client funds obligations 315.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accrued compensation and benefits 119.6 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 110.3 58.9 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Other liabilities 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity Equity Equity Equity Exprered stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 Additional paid-in capital					
Total assets \$ 3,428.6 \$ 3,339.4 LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Current portion of debt \$ 320.8 \$ 286.1 Client funds obligations 315.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accrude compensation and benefits 119.6 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 58.9 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity Deterred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8					
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Current liabilities 320.8 \$286.1 Client funds obligations 315.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accrued compensation and benefits 119.6 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 58.9 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 60.7 53.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) 5.7 5.8 Equity 5.7 5.8 Common stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued 5.0 1.0 1.0 Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 2.47.7 8.1 Retained earnings 3.191.3 3.039.8 7.7 3.1 3.039.8	Other assets		38.2		51.1
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY Current liabilities 320.8 \$286.1 Client funds obligations 315.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accrued compensation and benefits 119.6 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 58.9 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 60.7 53.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) 5.7 5.8 Equity 5.7 5.8 Common stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued 5.0 1.0 1.0 Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 2.47.7 8.1 Retained earnings 3.191.3 3.039.8 7.7 3.1 3.039.8					
Current liabilities \$ 320.8 \$ 286.1 Client funds obligations 315.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accrued compensation and benefits 119.6 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 58.9 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) 5 75.8 Equity 5 5 75.8 75.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) 5 75.8 75.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) 5 75.8 75.8 75.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) 5 75.8 75.8	Total assets	\$	3,428.6	\$	3,339.4
Current liabilities \$ 320.8 \$ 286.1 Client funds obligations 315.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accrued compensation and benefits 119.6 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 58.9 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) 5 75.8 Equity 5 75.8 10 1.0					
Current portion of debt \$ 320.8 \$ 286.1 Client funds obligations 315.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accrued compensation and benefits 119.6 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 58.9 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued 1.0 1.0 Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized and unissued 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3	LIABILITIES AND EQUITY				
Client funds obligations 315.2 474.7 Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accrued compensation and benefits 119.6 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 58.9 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 2,52.9 2,493.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3	Current liabilities				
Accounts payable 96.0 65.1 Accrued compensation and benefits 119.6 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 58.9 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 Additional pairlain capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3	Current portion of debt	\$	320.8	\$	286.1
Accrued compensation and benefits 119.6 121.7 Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 58.9 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Freferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued 1.0 1.0 Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3	Client funds obligations		315.2		474.7
Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 58.9 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3	Accounts payable		96.0		65.1
Deferred revenues and gains 101.3 58.9 Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3			119.6		121.7
Other liabilities 120.8 98.4 Long-term debt 1,073.7 1,104.9 Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3			101.3		58.9
Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3			120.8		98.4
Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3					
Long-term debt 1,059.5 923.3 Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3			1 073 7		1 104 9
Income taxes payable 60.7 53.3 Deferred income taxes 326.5 336.5 Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3	Long-term debt				
Deferred income taxes Other liabilities 72.5 Other liabilities 72.5 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued Additional paid-in capital Additional paid-in capital Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3					
Other liabilities 72.5 75.8 Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued 1.0 1.0 Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3	* *				
Total liabilities 2,592.9 2,493.8 Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3					
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) 4,2815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3	Other Indomities		72.5		75.0
Commitments and contingencies (Note 15) Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) 4,2815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3	T 4 11 1 112		2.502.0		2 402 0
Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued Additional paid-in capital Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3	Total Habilities		2,592.9		2,493.8
Equity DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued Additional paid-in capital Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3					
DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued Additional paid-in capital Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3	Commitments and contingencies (Note 15)				
DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued Additional paid-in capital Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3					
Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued Additional paid-in capital Retained earnings Treasury stock, at cost Accumulated other comprehensive income 1.0 2.46.0 2.47.7 2.46.0 2.47.7 2.46.0 2.47.7 2.46.0 2.47.7 3.039.8 3.191.3 3.039.8 3.191.3 3.039.8 3.191.3					
Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued1.01.0Additional paid-in capital246.0247.7Retained earnings3,191.33,039.8Treasury stock, at cost(2,896.1)(2,815.4)Accumulated other comprehensive income277.8351.3	DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity				
Additional paid-in capital 246.0 247.7 Retained earnings 3,191.3 3,039.8 Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3	Preferred stock, \$0.01 par, 10 million shares authorized and unissued				
Retained earnings3,191.33,039.8Treasury stock, at cost(2,896.1)(2,815.4)Accumulated other comprehensive income277.8351.3	Common stock, \$0.01 par, 400 million shares authorized, 95.3 million shares issued		1.0		1.0
Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3	Additional paid-in capital		246.0		247.7
Treasury stock, at cost (2,896.1) (2,815.4) Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3					
Accumulated other comprehensive income 277.8 351.3					(2,815.4)
Total DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity 820.0 824.4					
	Total DST Systems, Inc. stockholders' equity		820.0		824.4

Non-controlling interest	15.7	21.2
Total equity	835.7	845.6
Total liabilities and equity	\$ 3,428.6	\$ 3,339.4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

DST Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Income

(in millions, except per share amounts)

	Year Ended December 31,				
	2011		2010		2009
Operating revenues	\$ 1,744.0	\$	1,713.6	\$	1,595.4
Out-of-pocket reimbursements	644.7		614.9		622.5
Total revenues (includes related party revenues of \$192.0, \$202.6 and \$211.0)	2,388.7		2,328.5		2,217.9
Costs and expenses	1,997.0		1,848.5		1,813.2
Depreciation and amortization	131.6		135.4		130.4
Income from operations	260.1		344.6		274.3
Interest expense	(46.5)		(46.1)		(42.2)
Other income, net	38.7		141.7		85.1
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	21.7		36.4		37.3
Income before income taxes and non-controlling interest	274.0		476.6		354.5
Income taxes	95.8		159.1		112.9
Net income	178.2		317.5		241.6
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest	4.9		1.0		
Net income attributable to DST Systems, Inc.	\$ 183.1	\$	318.5	\$	241.6
Average common shares outstanding	45.7		46.9		49.6
Average diluted shares outstanding	46.3		47.3		50.0
e e					
Basic earnings per share	\$ 4.01	\$	6.78	\$	4.87
Diluted earnings per share	\$ 3.95	\$	6.73	\$	4.84
Cash dividends per share of common stock	\$ 0.70	\$	0.60	\$	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

DST Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(in millions)

	Common	Stock			Ac		Total DST		
	a.	_	Additional		m 0		Systems, Inc.		
	Shares	Par	Paid-in	Retained	TreasuryCon	-		_	•
D 1 21 2000	Outstanding		Capital	Earnings	Stock	Income	Equity	Interest	Equity
December 31, 2008	49.7	\$ 1.0	\$ 212.6	\$ 2,508.0	\$ (2,688.8) \$	205.4	\$ 238.2	\$	\$ 238.2
Comprehensive income:				241.6					
Net income				241.6		1.47.1			
Other comprehensive income						147.1	200.7		200.7
Comprehensive income			25.0				388.7		388.7
Amortization of share based compensation	0.4		25.8		26.6		25.8		25.8
Issuance of common stock			(6.6)		26.6		20.0		20.0
Repurchase of common stock	(0.9)		2.0		(40.5)		(40.5)		(40.5)
Other			3.8		(1.6)		2.2		2.2
December 31, 2009	49.2	1.0	235.6	2,749.6	(2,704.3)	352.5	634.4		634.4
Comprehensive income:									
Net income attributable to DST Systems, Inc.				318.5					
Net loss attributable to non-controlling									
interests								(1.0)	
Other comprehensive loss						(1.2)			
Comprehensive income							317.3		316.3
Dividends paid			0.1	(28.3)			(28.2)		(28.2)
Amortization of share based compensation			20.2				20.2		20.2
Issuance of common stock	0.5		(8.2)		26.6		18.4		18.4
Repurchase of common stock	(3.4)				(137.7)		(137.7)		(137.7)
Exchange of non-controlling interest in IOS									
for a controlling interet in dsicmm								22.2	22.2
December 31, 2010	46.3	1.0	247.7	3.039.8	(2,815.4)	351.3	824.4	21.2	845.6
Comprehensive income:	40.5	1.0	247.7	3,039.6	(2,013.4)	331.3	024.4	21.2	645.0
Net income attributable to DST Systems, Inc.				183.1					
Net loss attributable to non-controlling				103.1					
interests								(4.9)	
Other comprehensive income (loss)						(73.5)		(4.9)	
1 , ,						(13.3)	109.6		104.7
Comprehensive income			0.1	(31.6)			(31.5)		(31.5)
Dividends paid Amortization of share based compensation			20.5	(31.0)			20.5		20.5
Issuance of common stock	1.6				94.0		67.9		67.9
Repurchase of common stock	(3.8)		(26.1)		(174.7)		(174.7)		(174.7)
1	(3.8)		2.0		(1/4./)			(0.0)	/
Other			3.8				3.8	(0.6)	3.2
December 31, 2011	44.1	\$ 1.0	\$ 246.0	\$ 3,191.3	\$ (2,896.1) \$	277.8	\$ 820.0	\$ 15.7	\$ 835.7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

DST Systems, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(in millions)

	Year I	ber 31,	
	2011	2010	2009
Cash flows-operating activities:			
Net income	\$ 178.2	\$ 317.5	\$ 241.6
Depreciation and amortization	131.6	135.4	130.4
Net gains on investments	(16.3)	(65.6)	(15.6)
Gain on equity interest in Argus Health Systems, Inc.			(41.7)
Net (gain) loss on extinguishment of convertible senior debentures	1.2	6.4	(5.9)
Amortization of share based compensation	20.5	20.2	25.8
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates	(21.7)	(36.4)	(37.3)
Cash dividends from unconsolidated affiliates	7.2	2.5	29.6
Deferred income taxes	6.4	26.1	58.0
Changes in accounts receivable	11.0	(113.3)	46.2
Changes in other assets	12.5	22.7	15.4
Changes in client funds obligations	(25.5)	(35.7)	4.2
Changes in client funding receivable	25.5	35.7	(4.2)
Changes in accounts payable and accrued liabilities	28.0	(4.5)	(10.5)
Changes in income taxes payable	6.1	(0.2)	(50.8)
Changes in deferred revenues and gains	38.3	(0.4)	(0.4)
Changes in accrued compensation and benefits	(1.8)	27.0	(16.7)
Other, net	3.1	17.3	(5.7)
Total adjustments to net income	226.1	37.2	120.8
Net	404.3	354.7	362.4
Cash flows-investing activities:			
Capital expenditures	(83.6)	(92.9)	(98.0)
Investments in securities	(423.5)	(292.8)	(90.6
Proceeds from (investments in and advances to) unconsolidated affiliates	(0.5)	6.7	1.6
Proceeds from sale / maturities of investments	374.1	284.1	142.2
Net decrease (increase) in restricted cash and cash equivalents held to satisfy client funds obligations	150.8	(194.3)	149.1
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired	(365.4)	(7.8)	(47.8
Other	3.1	5.0	0.6
Net	(345.0)	(292.0)	57.1
NCL	(343.0)	(292.0)	37.1
Cash flows-financing activities:			
Proceeds from issuance of common stock	64.8	16.1	14.0
Principal payments on debt	(24.2)	(25.1)	(14.7
Repurchases of senior convertible debentures	(12.5)		(131.3
Net proceeds from issuance of debt	9.3	370.0	
Net proceeds from term loan facility	125.0		
Net proceeds from accounts receivable securitization program	10.0	125.0	
Net increase (decrease) in client funds obligations	(141.8)	198.4	(149.1
Net borrowings (repayments) on revolving credit facilities	18.0	(41.4)	(70.6)
Common stock repurchased	(174.7)	(137.7)	(40.5)
Payment of cash dividends	(31.6)	(28.2)	
Excess tax benefits from share based compensation	1.4	0.5	0.2

Other	(1.9)	(8.2)	
Net	(158.2)	(29.1)	(392.0)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents	(98.9)	33.6	27.5
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year	139.8	106.2	78.7
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year	\$ 40.9 \$	139.8	\$ 106.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Description of Business

DST Systems, Inc. (the "Company" or "DST") provides sophisticated information processing and software services and products to the financial services industry (primarily mutual funds, broker/dealers and investment managers), telecommunications, video and utilities industries, the healthcare industry and other service industries.

The Company's operating business units are reported as two operating Segments (Financial Services and Output Solutions). In addition, investments in the Company's real estate subsidiaries and joint ventures, equity securities, private equity funds, and certain financial interests have been aggregated into the Investments and Other Segment.

A summary of each of the Company's Segments follows:

Financial Services

The Company's Financial Services Segment provides technology based solutions using its own proprietary software systems. The principal industries serviced include mutual fund/investment management, brokerage, retirement, life and property/casualty insurance and healthcare payer industries. The Company's proprietary software systems include shareowner recordkeeping and distribution support systems for United States ("U.S.") and international mutual fund companies, broker/dealers and financial advisors; a defined-contribution participant recordkeeping system for the U.S. retirement plan market; investment management systems offered to U.S. and international investment managers and fund accountants; a business process management and customer contact system offered to a broad variety of industries; medical and pharmacy claims administration processing systems and services offered to providers of healthcare plans, third party administrators, medical practice groups and pharmacy benefit managers; and an electronic file system offered to mutual fund companies, insurance companies and professional service (legal, accounting and others) firms.

The Financial Services Segment distributes its services and products on a direct basis and through subsidiaries and joint venture affiliates in the U.S., United Kingdom ("U.K."), Canada, Europe, Australia, South Africa, Asia-Pacific and the Middle East and, to a lesser degree, distributes such services and products through various strategic alliances.

Output Solutions

The Company's Output Solutions Segment provides single source, integrated print and electronic statement and billing output solutions, including customized statement and bill production, direct marketing and personalization services, fulfillment, postal optimization, and electronic presentment, payment and distribution solutions. These capabilities enable the Output Solutions Segment to provide services to industries that place a premium on customer communications that require high quality, accurate and timely statement and billing output processing.

The Output Solutions North America business has four operating facilities located in the U.S. and Canada and is among the largest users of continuous, high-speed, full-color inkjet printing systems and among the largest First-class mailers in the U.S. The North America business is substantially a provider of print and electronic delivery services for client bills and statements related to transaction events. The acquisitions of Newkirk Products, Inc. in 2011 and Capital Fulfillment Group in 2010 expand the North America business to include participant enrollment and compliance communications related to

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

1. Description of Business (Continued)

retirement, insurance, mutual funds and healthcare plans. The business also provides significant cross sell opportunities and leverage in both DST's retirement and insurance solutions businesses.

Innovative Output Solutions Limited ("IOS") has several operating facilities in the United Kingdom and is among the largest direct communications manufacturers in that country. The United Kingdom business is oriented to data driven marketing communications and direct mail campaigns with transaction printing accounting for less than 20% of revenues.

The Output Solutions Segment in North America distributes its product directly to clients and through relationships in which its services are combined with or offered concurrently through providers of data processing services. The Output Solutions Segment's products in North America are also distributed or bundled with product offerings to clients of the Financial Services Segment.

Investments and Other

The Investments and Other Segment is comprised of the Company's real estate subsidiaries and affiliates, investments in equity securities, private equity investments and other financial interests. The assets held by the Investments and Other Segment are primarily passive in nature. The Company owns and operates real estate mostly in the U.S. and U.K., primarily for lease to the Company's other business segments. The Company is a partner in certain real estate joint ventures that lease office space to the Company, certain of its unconsolidated affiliates and unrelated third parties. The Investments and Other Segment holds investments in available-for-sale equity securities with a market value of approximately \$730.3 million at December 31, 2011, including approximately 10.3 million shares of State Street Corporation ("State Street"), 15.0 million shares of Computershare Ltd. ("Computershare") and 1.9 million shares of Euronet Worldwide, Inc., with a market value of \$416.4 million, \$122.7 million and \$34.8 million respectively, based on closing exchange values at December 31, 2011.

DST wholly-owns approximately 3.3 million square feet of real estate facilities in the U.S. of which 1.9 million square feet are occupied by DST and related affiliates, and approximately 1.4 million square feet of facilities are occupied by third parties. Through joint ventures, DST has an interest in approximately 2.9 million square feet of U.S. commercial real estate facilities of which 500,000 square feet are occupied by DST and related affiliates and 2.4 million square feet are occupied by third parties, including a 1.1 million square foot facility developed for and occupied by the Internal Revenue Service under a long term lease arrangement. An additional 1.1 million square feet of joint venture property is a 1,000 room convention hotel. The joint venture properties are principally located in Kansas City, Missouri.

DST considers its data centers to be specialized operational assets and does not consider them to be real estate assets. Therefore, its data centers are not included in its real estate operations, but rather the Financial Services Segment.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include all majority-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. Certain amounts in the 2010 and 2009 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2011 presentation.

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Under authoritative accounting guidance, a reporting entity must consolidate any entity in which it has a controlling financial interest. Under the voting interest model, generally the investor that has voting control (usually more than 50% of an entity's voting interests) consolidates the entity. Under the variable interest entity ("VIE") model, as amended, the party that has the power to direct the entity's most significant economic activities and the ability to participate in the entity's economics consolidates the entity. This party could be an equity investor, some other capital provider, or a party with contractual arrangements. To determine which accounting model applies, and which, if any, party must consolidate a particular entity, a reporting entity must first determine whether the entity is a voting interest entity or a VIE. The term VIE applies to entities that are subject to the risk and rewards model. An entity is considered a VIE if it possesses one of the following characteristics: 1) the entity is thinly capitalized; 2) residual equity holders do not control the entity; 3) equity holders are shielded from economic losses; 4) equity holders do not participate fully in an entity's residual economics; and 5) the entity was established with non-substantive voting interests.

With regard to real estate, the Company is the lessee in a series of operating leases covering a large portion of its Kansas City, Missouri based leased office facilities. The lessors are generally joint ventures (in which the Company has a 50% ownership) that have been established specifically to purchase, finance and engage in leasing activities with the joint venture partners and unrelated third parties. Leases may not be variable interests if the lease terms are consistent with market terms at the inception of the lease and do not include a residual value guarantee, renewal options at terms other than fair value, fixed price purchase options or similar features that disproportionately obligate a company to absorb decreases in value or entitle it to participate in increases in the value of the real estate. The Company's analyses of its real estate joint ventures at December 31, 2011 indicate that none qualifies as a VIE and, accordingly, have not been consolidated.

With regard to operating joint ventures, the Company has formed or entered into operating joint ventures to enter into or expand its presence in target markets. The Company has the following significant operating joint ventures: Boston Financial Data Services, Inc. ("BFDS"); International Financial Data Services, U.K. ("IFDS U.K."); and International Financial Data Services, L.P. ("IFDS L.P."). The Company accounts for the operating results of these operating joint ventures using the equity method of accounting.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when it is realized or realizable and it is earned. The majority of the Company's revenues are computer processing and services revenues and are recognized upon completion of the services provided. Software license fees, maintenance fees and other ancillary fees are recognized as services are provided or delivered and all customer obligations have been met. The Company generally does not have customer obligations that extend past one year. Revenue from

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

equipment sales is recognized as equipment is shipped. Revenue from operating leases is recognized monthly as the rent accrues. Billing for services in advance of performance is recorded as deferred revenue. Allowances for billing adjustments and doubtful account expense are estimated as revenues are recognized and are recorded as reductions in revenues, and the annual amounts are immaterial to the Company's consolidated financial statements.

The Company recognizes revenue when the following criteria are met: 1) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists; 2) delivery has occurred or services have been rendered; 3) the sales price is fixed or determinable; and 4) collectability is reasonably assured. If there is a customer acceptance provision in a contract or if there is uncertainty about customer acceptance, the associated revenue is deferred until the Company has evidence of customer acceptance.

Revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables are evaluated to determine if the deliverables (items) can be divided into more than one unit of accounting. An item can generally be considered a separate unit of accounting if all of the following criteria are met: 1) the delivered item(s) has value to the customer on a standalone basis; 2) there is objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered item(s); and 3) if the arrangement includes a general right of return relative to the delivered item(s), delivery or performance of the undelivered item(s) is considered probable and substantially in the control of the Company. Once separate units of accounting are determined, the arrangement consideration should be allocated at the inception of the arrangement to all deliverables using the relative selling price method. New revenue recognition accounting guidance adopted prospectively by the Company on January 1, 2011 eliminated the use of the residual method of allocation for multiple element arrangements. For multiple element revenue arrangements entered prior to January 1, 2011, in cases where there was objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered item(s) in an arrangement but no such evidence for the delivered item(s), the residual method was used to allocate the arrangement consideration. For units of accounting which include more than one deliverable, the Company generally defers all revenue for the unit of accounting until the period over which the last undelivered item is delivered. The adoption of this new authoritative accounting guidance did not have a significant impact to the Company's results during the year ended December 31, 2011.

Software license revenues are recognized at the time the contract is signed, the software is delivered and no future software obligations exist. Deferral of software license revenue billed results from delayed payment provisions, disproportionate discounts between the license and other services or the inability to unbundle certain services.

The Company recognizes revenues for maintenance services ratably over the contract term, after collectability has been assured.

Authoritative accounting guidance related to the income statement characterization of reimbursements received for "out-of-pocket" ("OOP") expenses incurred, requires the Company to record reimbursements received for OOP expenses as revenue on an accrual basis. Because these additional revenues are offset by the reimbursable expenses incurred, it does not impact income from operations or net income. The Company's significant OOP expenses at the consolidated level include postage and telecommunication expenditures and at the segment level include print mail services between the Financial Services Segment and the Output Solutions Segment. For each segment, total revenues are reported in two categories, operating revenues and OOP reimbursements. OOP expenses are included in costs and expenses.

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Costs and expenses

Costs and expenses include all costs, excluding depreciation and amortization, incurred by the Company to produce revenues. The Company believes that the nature of its business as well as its organizational structure, in which virtually all officers and associates have operational responsibilities, does not allow for a meaningful segregation of selling, general and administrative costs. These costs, which the Company believes to be immaterial, are also included in costs and expenses. Substantially all depreciation and amortization is directly associated with the production of revenues.

Cash equivalents

Short-term liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less are considered cash equivalents. Due to the short-term nature of these investments, carrying value approximates market value.

Client funds/obligations

Funds held on behalf of clients

In connection with providing data processing services for its clients, the Company may hold client funds, comprised of funds held on behalf of transfer agency clients and funds held on behalf of pharmacy processing clients.

End of day available client bank balances for full service mutual fund transfer agency clients are invested overnight by and in the name of the Company into credit-quality money market funds. Invested balances are returned to the full service mutual fund transfer agency client accounts the following business day. Based upon the Company's intent, these invested client balances represent assets that are restricted for use and have been classified as client funds obligations in the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Funds received from clients of the Company's subsidiary, Argus Health Systems, Inc. ("Argus"), for the payment of pharmacy claims incurred by its members are invested in cash and cash equivalents (credit-quality money market funds), short-term investments and available for sale debt securities until the claim payments are presented to the bank. These amounts are included in funds held on behalf of clients in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and are also recorded as a client funds obligation liability. Funds held on behalf of clients represent assets that, based upon the Company's intent, are restricted for use solely for the purposes of satisfying the obligations to remit funds to pharmacies, which are classified as client funds obligations in the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet.

The Company has reported the cash flows related to the purchases of investment funds (available for sale securities) held on behalf of clients and the cash flows related to the proceeds from the sales/maturities of investment funds held on behalf of clients on a gross basis in the investing section of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. The Company has reported the cash inflows and outflows related to client fund investments on a net basis within net (increase) decrease in restricted cash and cash equivalents held to satisfy clients fund obligations in the investing section of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. The Company has reported the cash flows related to client funds used in investing activities on a net basis within net increase (decrease) in client funds obligations in the financing section of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Client funding receivable

Client funding receivables represent amounts due the Company for pharmacy claims paid in advance of receiving client funding and for pharmacy claims processed for which client funding requests have not been made.

Client funds obligations

Client funds obligations represent the Company's contractual obligations to remit funds to satisfy client pharmacy claim obligations and are recorded on the balance sheet when incurred, generally after a claim has been processed by the Company. In addition, client funds obligations include transfer agency client balances invested overnight. Client funds obligations represent liabilities that will be repaid within one year of the balance sheet date.

Inventories

Inventories are comprised primarily of paper and envelope stocks. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or realizable values. Inventories are valued at average cost. Cost for substantially all of the Company's inventories is determined on a specific identification or first-in, first-out basis.

Investments in securities

The equity method of accounting is used for companies in which the Company or its subsidiaries have at least a 20% voting interest and significant influence but do not control; the cost method of accounting is used for investments of less than 20% voting interest. Partnership and similar investment interests (including investments in private equity funds where the Company is a limited partner) in which the Company has at least 5% ownership are accounted for on an equity method basis based on the Company's pro-rata ownership; the cost method of accounting is used for these investments when the Company has a de-minimus ownership percentage and does not have significant influence. Investments classified as available-for-sale securities are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and recorded net of deferred taxes directly to stockholders' equity as accumulated other comprehensive income. Investments in trading securities are reported at fair value with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings. Investments classified as held-to-maturity securities are recorded at amortized cost which approximates fair value.

Security transactions and investment income

Security transactions are accounted for on the trade date. Security gains and losses are calculated on the specific identification method. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date. Interest income, adjusted for discounts and premiums, is recorded on the accrual basis.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost with major additions and improvements capitalized. Cost includes the amount of interest cost associated with significant capital additions. Depreciation of buildings is recorded using the straight-line method over 30 to 40 years. Data processing equipment, furniture, fixtures and other equipment are depreciated using accelerated methods over the estimated useful lives, principally three to five years. Data processing software is depreciated using the

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

straight-line method over the estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The Company depreciates large printing and inserting equipment used by the Output Solutions Segment using accelerated methods over a five to seven year life. Leasehold improvements are depreciated using the straight-line method over the lesser of the term of the lease or life of the improvements. The Company reviews, on a quarterly basis, its property and equipment for possible impairment.

Purchased software is recorded at cost and is amortized over the estimated economic lives of three to five years. The Company capitalizes costs for the development of internal use software, including coding and software configuration costs and costs of upgrades and enhancements in accordance with authoritative accounting guidance related to accounting for the costs of computer software developed or obtained for internal use. These costs are amortized under the Company's current policy on a straight-line basis, depending on the nature of the project, generally over a three to five year period. The Company reviews, on a quarterly basis, its capitalized software for possible impairment.

Development costs for software that will be sold or licensed to third parties, prior to the achievement of technological feasibility, are expensed as incurred. The Company capitalizes software development costs for software that will be sold or licensed to third parties after the products reach technological feasibility, it has been determined that the software will result in probable future economic benefits and management has committed to funding the project. These capitalized development costs are amortized on a product-by-product basis using the greater of the amount computed by taking the ratio of current year's net revenue to current year's net revenue plus estimated future net revenues or the amount computed by the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the product, generally three to five years. The Company evaluates the net realizable value of capitalized software development costs on a product-by-product basis.

Goodwill and intangible assets

The authoritative accounting guidance for goodwill and intangible assets addresses, among other things, how goodwill and other intangible assets should be accounted for after they have been initially recognized in the financial statements. Intangible assets at December 31, 2011 and 2010 primarily represent customer relationship and other definite lived intangible assets (tradenames, non-compete agreements, etc.) acquired through a business combination or third party purchase. The estimated useful life on these intangible assets ranges from 3 to 16 years. The weighted average amortization period at December 31, 2011 for customer relationships and other intangible assets is 13.9 and 6.2 years, respectively.

Goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives will not be amortized but rather will be tested at least annually for impairment or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Intangible assets that have finite lives will continue to be amortized over their useful lives.

The Company's impairment tests indicated that there were no impairments. The fair value of the reporting units was estimated using the expected present value of future cash flows.

Income taxes

In accordance with authoritative accounting guidance for income taxes, the Company recognizes the amount of income taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company's financial statements or tax returns. Deferred income tax effects of transactions reported in different periods for financial reporting and income tax return purposes are recorded by the liability method. This method gives consideration to the future tax consequences of deferred income or expense items and differences between the income tax and financial accounting statement bases of assets and liabilities and immediately recognizes changes in income tax laws upon enactment. The income statement effect is generally derived from changes in deferred income taxes on the balance sheet.

From time to time, the Company enters into transactions the tax treatment of which under the Internal Revenue Code or applicable state tax laws is uncertain. The Company provides federal and/or state income taxes on such transactions, together with related interest, net of income tax benefit, and any applicable penalties in accordance with accounting guidance for income tax uncertainties. The Company records income tax uncertainties that are estimated to take more than 12 months to resolve as non-current. Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits, if any, are recorded in income tax expense.

Foreign currency translation

The Company's international subsidiaries use the local currency as the functional currency. The Company translates its assets and liabilities at period end exchange rates except for those accounts where historical rates are acceptable, and translates income and expense accounts at average rates during the period. Translation adjustments are recorded in Stockholders' Equity and was a cumulative gain of \$16.2 million and \$17.3 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. While it is generally not the Company's practice to enter into derivative contracts, from time to time the Company and its subsidiaries do utilize forward foreign currency exchange contracts to minimize the impact of currency movements.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are determined by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Dilutive earnings per share are determined by including the dilutive effect of all potential common shares outstanding during the year. The Company issued convertible senior debentures that if converted in the future would have a potentially dilutive effect on the Company's stock. The Company intends to settle any conversions with cash for the principal and accrued and unpaid interest and issue common stock for any conversion value amount over the principal and accrued and unpaid interest amounts. Under authoritative accounting guidance related to earnings per share, a company is required to include the effects of contingently convertible bonds in diluted earnings per share from the date of issuance, without considering the impact of the conversion price. Related to the Company's convertible debentures, the calculation of diluted earnings per share includes an incremental amount of shares assumed to be issued for the conversion spread when the Company's average daily stock price exceeds the average accreted bond price per share.

Derivative and hedging activities

Authoritative accounting guidance establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts and hedging activities. It requires that an entity recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the balance

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

sheet and measure those instruments at fair value and that the changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each period in current earnings or other comprehensive income, depending on whether a derivative is designated as part of a hedge transaction and, if it is, the type of hedge transaction. While it is generally not the Company's practice to enter into derivative contracts, from time to time, the Company utilizes derivatives to manage certain risks. The Company does not enter into derivative arrangements for speculative purposes. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had interest rate swaps which are described in the Debt note of these financial statements.

Comprehensive income

The Company's comprehensive income consists of net income and unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities, net of deferred income taxes, reclassifications for net gains included in net income, the Company's proportional share of an unconsolidated affiliate's interest rate swap (except the loss is limited by the carrying value of the investment), unrealized gains or losses on the Company's interest rate swap and foreign currency translation adjustments and are presented in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity.

Share-based compensation

The Company has share-based compensation plans covering its employees and its non-employee directors and has outstanding share awards (primarily in the form of stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units) under each of these plans. The Company recognizes the cost of employee services received in exchange for awards of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of those awards. The Company estimates compensation costs related to awards that are not expected to vest. For share-based awards granted, the Company expenses the grant date fair value of these awards using the straight-line method over the service period. Amortization for the grant date fair value of share-based awards containing both service and performance features depends on the Company's estimated judgments on whether the performance conditions will be achieved.

New authoritative accounting guidance

Comprehensive Income

In June 2011, the FASB issued an accounting standard update that modifies the presentation of comprehensive income in the financial statements. The standard requires an entity to present the total of comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. This standard eliminates the current option to report other comprehensive income and its components in the statement of changes in equity. This new accounting guidance is effective for annual and interim periods after January 1, 2012. Because there is no change to the determination of comprehensive income, the Company believes the adoption of this guidance will not have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Testing Goodwill for Impairment

In September 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued new authoritative guidance related to testing goodwill for impairment, intended to simplify how entities test goodwill for impairment. The guidance permits an entity to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more than likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is necessary to perform the two-step goodwill impairment test. The more-likely-than-not threshold is defined as having a likelihood of more than 50 percent. The guidance is effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company believes the adoption of this new accounting guidance will not have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure

In May 2011, the FASB issued new authoritative guidance related to fair value measurement and disclosure requirements. The guidance is intended to improve the comparability of fair value measurements presented and disclosed in financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP and International Financial Reporting Standards. The guidance is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company believes the adoption of this new accounting guidance will not have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Earnings per share proposed accounting

In August 2008, the FASB issued a revised exposure draft that would amend current earnings per share accounting guidance to clarify guidance for mandatorily convertible instruments, the treasury stock method, contingently issuable shares, and contracts that may be settled in cash or shares. The final authoritative accounting guidance has yet to be issued. In April 2009, the FASB decided to pause the earnings per share project.

The proposed guidance, which is designed for convergence with international accounting standards, would require the use of the "if-converted" method from the date of issuance of the convertible debentures. The proposed guidance would remove the ability of a company to support the presumption that the convertible securities will be satisfied in cash and not converted into shares of common stock. Accordingly, the Company's stated intention to settle conversions of its convertible debentures with cash for the principal and accrued and unpaid interest and issue common stock for any conversion value amount over the principal and accrued and unpaid interest amounts would no longer be accepted under the current guidance, if amended as proposed. Retrospective application would be required for all changes, except that retrospective application would be prohibited for contracts that were either settled in cash prior to adoption or modified prior to adoption to require cash settlement. For DST, adoption of this accounting guidance, as proposed, will require retroactive restatement of the Company's diluted earnings per share calculations subsequent to the issuance of the convertible debentures. The revised exposure draft also contains other EPS computational changes (e.g., treasury stock method considerations) that may have an effect on the Company's diluted earnings per share calculation. DST is continuing to monitor the FASB's progress towards finalizing this proposed accounting guidance.

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The proposed change in accounting principle would affect the calculation of diluted earnings per share during the period the debentures are outstanding, but would not affect DST's ability to ultimately settle the convertible debentures in cash, shares or any combination thereof.

3. Significant Business Transactions

Acquisition of Finix Business Strategies, LLC and Finix Converge, LLC

On April 29, 2011, DST acquired, through a newly formed subsidiary, DST Brokerage Solutions, LLC, the assets of Finix Business Strategies, LLC ("Finix"), a financial services consulting firm with extensive brokerage and technology expertise. DST Brokerage Solutions also acquired the assets of Finix Converge, LLC ("Converge"), a technology firm that develops and distributes an enterprise social networking and media platform to enable firms to connect and collaborate with their constituents more effectively online. By combining Finix Business Strategies' extensive knowledge and brokerage expertise with DST's breadth and depth of technology and services, DST plans to address broker-dealers' unique challenges through an expanded suite of products and solutions. DST Brokerage Solutions, LLC is part of the Financial Services Segment.

Acquisition of Subserveo, Inc.

On June 20, 2011, DST acquired Subserveo Inc. ("Subserveo"), a provider of automated compliance and surveillance solutions to broker-dealers and investment advisors throughout the U.S. and Canada. Subserveo's solutions perform daily analysis of transactions, orders and account holdings and provide detailed compliance alerts and case management. Subserveo will be operated as part of DST Brokerage Solutions.

Finix, Converge and Subserveo along with DST TASS, the Company's subsidiary that provides full service subaccounting services, will be operated as a single business unit. This business unit will be DST's channel to provide products to the broker/dealer market and will manage the distribution of the Company's AWD, Vision Professional and print/mail products to that market.

Acquisition of IntelliSource Healthcare Solutions

On July 1, 2011, DST acquired, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, DST Health Solutions, LLC, the assets of IntelliSource Healthcare Solutions ("IntelliSource"), whose principal product is CareConnect which provides an automated care management system. The addition of the IntelliSource suite of solutions broadens DST Health Solutions' product offering for integrated care management, providing DST Health Solutions' health plan clients access to an array of valuable solutions including integrated care management, workflow and analytics that will enable them to collaboratively facilitate proactive care and optimize resources at all levels of the healthcare system. DST will integrate CareConnect into its proprietary claims offerings.

Acquisition of Newkirk Products, Inc.

On May 2, 2011, DST acquired the outstanding stock of Newkirk Products, Inc. ("Newkirk"), an industry leader in the development and deployment of communications, education, and investment information for clients in the retirement planning, managed care, and wealth management industries. Newkirk will be operated as a unit of the Output Solutions Segment and its results will be reported in

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Significant Business Transactions (Continued)

that segment from the date of acquisition. DST believes the acquisition of Newkirk broadens the solution set available to multiple DST business units. Newkirk's innovative on-demand publishing and marketing solutions complement DST Output's breadth of transactional and digital fulfillment solutions, making it easier for companies to craft effective customer communications across print, mobile, and electronic channels. It also enables clients of DST Retirement Solutions to access a more fully integrated offering that leverages Newkirk's capabilities geared to the needs of plan sponsors and participants, including communication and education materials, financial planning tools and plan documents. The acquisition of Newkirk also extends DST Output's capabilities in the healthcare industry enabling the Company to produce pre-enrollment communications, including information designed to help a participant personalize their health care plan.

Acquisition of Lateral Group Limited

On August 5, 2011, DST's Innovative Output Solutions ("IOS") subsidiary acquired the outstanding stock of Lateral Group Limited ("Lateral"), a U.K. company engaged in integrated, data driven, multi-channel marketing. The acquisition of Lateral complements the existing IOS business in terms of services offered and business outlook. In addition, this acquisition allows IOS to extend and develop its service/product offerings by further integrating communications through print, data and e-solutions and by providing additional solutions such as data insight and online marketing to the IOS client base.

The Company has not yet finalized its accounting for the acquired net assets of Finix, Converge, Subserveo, IntelliSource, Newkirk and Lateral; when finalized, it is possible that amounts appearing in the table below of net assets acquired will be adjusted. The Newkirk and Subserveo acquisitions are each subject to customary post-closing working capital adjustments, which could result in an adjustment to the respective purchase price. Goodwill from these acquisitions is comprised of the assembled workforce and other assets of the acquired businesses. Approximately \$16.2 million of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. The Company does not believe that any of the above mentioned business combinations are material to DST's consolidated financial statements. Notwithstanding, the Company has provided aggregated disclosures of these transactions to assist users of the financial statements in understanding the impact to DST of the business combinations. The following table summarizes the consideration (the Financial Services Segment spent \$43.1 million on acquisitions while the Output Solutions Segment spent \$74.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2011) and the preliminary allocation of the fair values of the acquisitions during the year

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Significant Business Transactions (Continued)

ended December 31, 2011 to the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities at the respective acquisition dates mentioned above (in millions):

Consideration	
Cash paid	\$ 117.2
Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 3.2
Accounts receivable	21.4
Other current assets	9.3
Properties (includes \$12.9 million of proprietary software)	29.4
Intangible assets	32.9
Goodwill	71.3
Other assets	0.4
Total assets	167.9
Other current liabilities	20.2
Deferred income tax liabilities	10.3
Debt	20.2
Total liabilities	50.7
Net assets acquired	\$ 117.2

Acquisition of ALPS Holdings, Inc.

On October 31, 2011, DST closed the previously announced acquisition of ALPS Holdings, Inc. ("ALPS"), a provider of a comprehensive suite of asset servicing, asset management, and asset gathering solutions to open-end mutual funds, closed-end funds ("CEFs"), exchange-traded funds ("ETFs") and alternative investment funds. The acquisition broadens the range of products and services DST will offer to the investment management and brokerage industries in the following areas: 1) ALPS' comprehensive solution set allows DST to service market segments DST was previously unable to service; 2) ALPS positions DST to service hedge funds and ETFs; and 3) ALPS expands DST's offerings beyond transfer agency. ALPS's financial results will be consolidated with those of DST beginning October 31, 2011, and will be reported as part of DST's Financial Services Segment. At closing, DST paid \$251.9 million funded from cash, existing credit facilities and a new term loan credit facility.

The Company has not yet finalized its accounting for the acquired net assets of ALPS; when finalized, it is possible that amounts appearing in the table below of net assets acquired will be adjusted. The ALPS acquisition is subject to a customary post-closing working capital adjustment, which could result in an adjustment to the purchase price. Goodwill from the ALPS acquisition is comprised of the assembled workforce and other assets of the acquired business. Approximately \$22.0 million of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Significant Business Transactions (Continued)

The following table summarizes the consideration for ALPS and the preliminary allocation of the fair value of ALPS to the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at October 31, 2011 (in millions):

Consideration	
Cash paid	\$ 251.9
Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$ 0.5
Funds held on behalf of clients	7.8
Accounts receivable	8.2
Other current assets	1.9
Properties (includes \$1.5 million of proprietary software)	2.7
Intangible assets	84.0
Goodwill	183.5
Other assets	0.3
Total assets	288.9
Client funds obligations	7.8
Other current liabilities	7.0
Deferred income tax liabilities	21.3
Other liabilities	0.9
Total liabilities	37.0
Net assets acquired	\$ 251.9

Acquisition of dsicmm Group Limited

On July 30, 2010, DST, through its wholly-owned U.K. subsidiary, IOS, acquired dsicmm Group Limited ("dsicmm") for cash and the issuance of IOS stock. Prior to closing the transaction, IOS held DST's debt-free U.K. print/mail operations. After completion of the transaction, DST owned approximately 70.5% of IOS and the remaining 29.5% was owned by a group of the former stockholders of dsicmm. DST has consolidated the financial results of the combined IOS business from the closing date and has reflected the 29.5% owned by former stockholders of dsicmm as a non-controlling interest.

dsicmm provides integrated print and communication solutions in the U.K. DST believes that the acquisition of dsicmm complements its existing Output Solutions business in the U.K., increases the overall size of the business, broadens the service/product offerings and expands and diversifies the client base.

DST has recognized identifiable intangible assets (comprised of customer relationships of \$11.0 million and proprietary software of \$4.7 million) and goodwill of \$42.5 million, resulting from the acquisition. DST estimates annual amortization for acquired dsicmm intangible assets will be approximately \$2.4 million. Goodwill of \$42.5 million from the acquisition is comprised of the assembled workforce of dsicmm and other assets and is included in the Output Solutions Segment. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes.

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Significant Business Transactions (Continued)

The following table summarizes the consideration for dsicmm and the allocation of the fair value of dsicmm to the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at July 30, 2010 (in millions).

Consideration		
Cash paid	\$	3.7
Fair value of shares issued of Innovative Output Solutions Limited (non monetary)		22.1
Fair value of dsicmm Group Limited	\$	25.8
·		
Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed		
Accounts receivable	\$	25.7
Other current assets		5.4
Investments		0.4
Properties (includes \$4.7 million of proprietary software)		32.1
Intangible assets		11.0
Goodwill		42.5
Other assets		0.1
Total assets		117.2
Other current liabilities		29.5
Income tax liabilities		1.3
Debt		51.4
Deferred income tax liabilities		3.8
Non-current liabilities		5.4
Total liabilities		91.4
Net assets acquired	\$	25.8
rot abbets acquired	Ψ	23.0

Assuming the acquisitions of Finix, Converge, Subserveo, IntelliSource, Newkirk, Lateral, ALPS and dsicmm had occurred January 1, 2010, the Company's total revenues would have been approximately \$2,526.9 million and \$2,627.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Consolidated pro forma net income and diluted earnings per share would not have been materially different from the reported amounts for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. The unaudited pro forma amounts are not indicative of what actual consolidated results of operations might have been if the acquisitions had been effective at the beginning of 2010.

Acquisition of Argus Health Systems, Inc.

Prior to March 31, 2009, DST owned a 50% interest in Argus, which provides pharmacy claims processing and other related services to help clients manage pharmacy benefit programs. On March 31, 2009, DST purchased the remaining 50% interest of Argus for \$57.0 million in cash. As a result, Argus is no longer an unconsolidated affiliate of DST, but rather is a wholly owned subsidiary resulting in DST consolidating the results of Argus after March 31, 2009 rather than recording equity in earnings of Argus. On January 1, 2009 and as required by generally accepted accounting principles, the Company adopted new authoritative accounting guidance for business combinations. In accordance with the guidance, the acquisition of the remaining 50% of Argus was treated as a step acquisition. Accordingly, DST remeasured its previously held equity interest in Argus to fair value, in the amount of

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

3. Significant Business Transactions (Continued)

\$57.0 million, and recorded a gain of \$41.7 million on March 31, 2009, which is included in other income (expense), net in the Consolidated Statement of Income. DST has recognized identifiable assets (comprised of proprietary software of \$26.0 million, customer relationships of \$14.0 million and other intangible assets of \$1.0 million) and goodwill resulting from the acquisition of the remaining 50% Argus interest and the remeasurement of DST's previously held equity interest. Based on the purchase price allocation, DST estimates that annual amortization expense from acquired Argus intangible assets will be approximately \$4.2 million. Goodwill of \$62.9 million arising from the acquisition is comprised of the assembled workforce of Argus and other assets and is included in the Financial Services Segment. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. DST believes that the acquisition of Argus complements its existing DST Health Solutions business, increases the size of DST's healthcare processing capabilities and will enable the Company to provide broader product offerings to new and existing customers.

The following table summarizes the consideration paid for Argus and the allocation of the fair value of Argus to the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at March 31, 2009 (in millions).

Consideration		
Cash paid for remaining 50% equity interest in Argus	\$	57.0
Fair value of DST's equity interest in Argus before the business combin	ation	57.0
Fair value of Argus	\$	114.0
Recognized amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities as	ssumed	
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	9.2
Funds held on behalf of clients		148.0
Client funding receivable		99.6
Accounts receivable		16.9
Other current assets		7.2
Properties (includes \$26.0 of proprietary software)		34.9
Intangible assets		15.0
Goodwill		62.9
Other non-current assets		2.2
Total assets		395.9
Client funds obligations		247.6
Other current liabilities		17.3
Deferred income tax liabilities		14.6
Non-current liabilities		2.4
Total liabilities		281.9
Net assets acquired	\$	114.0
110t dissolis dequired	Ψ	117.0
1	26	
	.20	

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

4. Client Funds/Obligations

The Company had \$272.6 million and \$406.6 million of funds held on behalf of clients at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Included in these amounts were \$14.3 million and \$11.3 million of fixed-income marketable securities at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, which have been classified as available-for-sale investments. There were no significant unrealized gains or losses associated with these fixed-income securities at December 31, 2011 and 2010. During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company received \$107.1 million and \$48.4 million, respectively, of proceeds from the sales/maturities of investments in available-for-sale securities held to satisfy client funds obligations. Gross realized gains and gross realized losses associated with the sales/maturities of these available-for-sale securities held to satisfy client funds obligations were not significant during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

5. Investments

Investments are as follows (in millions):

	2011	Carrying Value			
	Ownership Percentage	December 31, 2011		Dec	cember 31, 2010
Available-for-sale securities:					
State Street Corporation	2%	\$	416.4	\$	478.7
Computershare Ltd.	3%		122.7		165.5
Euronet Worldwide	4%		34.8		32.9
Other available-for-sale securities			199.1		228.7
			773.0		905.8
Other:					
Trading securities			39.9		50.3
Held-to-maturity			15.4		11.3
Cost method, private equity and other investments			244.5		171.7
			299.8		233.3
Total investments		\$	1,072.8	\$	1,139.1

State Street Corporation ("State Street") is a financial services corporation that provides services and products to institutional investors. State Street has two lines of business. State Street's investment servicing business provides products and services including custody, product- and participant-level accounting; daily pricing and administration; master trust and master custody; recordkeeping; foreign exchange, brokerage and other trading services; securities finance; deposit and short-term investment facilities; loan and lease financing; investment manager and alternative investment manager operations outsourcing; and performance, risk and compliance analytics. State Street's investment management business provides a broad array of investment management, investment research and other related services, such as securities finance. The aggregate market value of the Company's investment in State Street's common stock presented above was based on the closing price on the New York Stock Exchange at the respective year end.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. Investments (Continued)

Computershare Ltd is a global provider of share registry management/transfer agency services and technology. Services and solutions are provided to listed companies, investors, employees, exchanges and other financial institutions. Computershare's common stock is listed on the Australian Stock Exchange under ASX: CPU. The aggregate market value of the Company's investment in Computershare's common stock presented above was based on the closing price on the Australian exchange at the respective year end.

Euronet Worldwide, Inc. ("Euronet") is a leading electronic payments provider offering payment and transaction processing and distribution solutions to financial institutions, retailers, service providers and individual consumers. The aggregate market value of the Company's investment in Euronet's common stock presented above was based on the closing price on the NASDAQ stock exchange at the respective year end.

The Company is a limited partner in various private equity funds. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company's carrying value of these private equity fund investments was approximately \$221.5 million and \$148.9 million, respectively. At December 31, 2011, the Company had future capital commitments related to these private equity fund investments of approximately \$34.8 million.

Certain information related to the Company's available-for-sale securities is as follows (in millions):

	December 31,			
	:	2011		2010
Book cost basis	\$	315.6	\$	327.4
Gross unrealized gains		438.3		555.7
Gross unrealized losses		(4.3)		(0.6)
Unrealized gain foreign currency exchange rates		23.4		23.3
Market value	\$	773.0	\$	905.8

During 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company received \$256.3 million, \$233.6 million and \$146.3 million, respectively, from the sale of investments in available-for-sale securities. Gross realized gains of \$27.5 million, \$68.7 million and \$49.1 million and gross realized losses of \$5.7 million, \$3.0 million and \$3.1 million, were recorded in 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, from available-for-sale securities. In addition, the Company recorded unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities of \$3.8 million, \$1.3 million and \$27.3 million related to other than temporary investment impairments for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Included in the proceeds received from the sale of investments in available-for-sale securities for the year ended December 31, 2010 is \$78.4 million of proceeds resulting from the sale of 7.3 million shares of Computershare Ltd., which resulted in a gain of \$42.5 million.

The following table summarizes the fair value and gross unrealized losses of the Company's investments by the length of time that the securities have been in a continuous loss position, at December 31, 2011 (in millions):

	I	Less than 12 months			Greater tha	Total				
			Unr	ealized		Unrealized			Unr	ealized
	Fair	r Value	lo	osses	Fair Value	losses	Fair	· Value	le	osses
Common Stock	\$	42.2	\$	4.3	\$	\$	\$	42.2	\$	4.3
						128				

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. Investments (Continued)

In addition to recording other than temporary investment impairments on available-for-sale securities, the Company records lower of cost or market valuation adjustments on cost method investments when impairment conditions are present. During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company recorded \$1.7 million, \$1.7 million and \$1.8 million, respectively, of net impairments on cost method investments related to adverse market conditions and from poor performance of the underlying investment. The impairments related primarily to investments in the Financial Services and Investments and Other Segments. A decline in a security's net realizable value that is other than temporary is treated as a loss based on quoted or derived market value and is reflected in other income, net in the Consolidated Statement of Income.

Future adverse changes in market conditions or poor operating results of underlying investments could result in losses or an inability to recover the carrying value of the investments that may not be reflected in an investment's current carrying value, thereby possibly requiring an impairment charge in the future. Such a charge could have a material effect on the Company's financial position.

6. Unconsolidated Affiliates

Unconsolidated affiliates are as follows (in millions):

			Carryin	g Valı	ıe
	2011 Ownership Percentage	Decem 20	,	Dec	ember 31, 2010
Unconsolidated affiliates:					
Boston Financial Data Services, Inc.	50%	\$	179.1	\$	169.2
International Financial Data Services, U.K.	50%		90.0		78.8
International Financial Data Services, L.P.	50%		48.6		44.4
Unconsolidated real estate affiliates			38.4		50.4
Other unconsolidated affiliates			14.7		12.7
Total		\$	370.8	\$	355.5

Boston Financial Data Services ("BFDS") is a 50% owned corporate joint venture of the Company and State Street. BFDS combines use of the Company's proprietary applications and output solutions capabilities with the marketing and custodial capabilities of State Street to provide full-service and shared-service shareowner accounting and recordkeeping services to mutual fund companies. BFDS also offers settlement administration services, teleservicing and full-service support for defined contributions plans using DST's TRAC system. In terms of operating revenues, BFDS was the largest customer of the Financial Services Segment during 2011, 2010 and 2009.

International Financial Data Services, U.K. ("IFDS U.K.") is a U.K. joint venture of the Company and State Street. IFDS U.K. provides full, remote and shared processing for U.K. unit trusts and related products. The largest remote unitholder client of IFDS U.K. at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is Cofunds, Ltd. ("Cofunds"), a mutual fund supermarket. IFDS U.K. has a non-controlling investment interest in Cofunds, which it accounts for on the equity method basis.

International Financial Data Services Limited ("IFDS L.P.") is a U.S. partnership between the Company and State Street. IFDS L.P. owns the following operating joint ventures: IFDS Canada, IFDS

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

6. Unconsolidated Affiliates (Continued)

Ireland and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Percana, and IFDS Luxembourg. IFDS L.P. provides shareowner accounting and recordkeeping to international markets.

Pershing Road Development Company, LLC is a limited special purpose real estate joint venture of the Company and an undisclosed third party. The real estate joint venture was formed to develop and lease approximately 1.1 million square feet of office space for the U.S. government. This entity is included with other unconsolidated affiliates (primarily real-estate joint ventures) in other in the table below.

Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates, net of income taxes provided by the unconsolidated affiliates follows (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31,						
	2	2011	2	2010	2	2009	
Boston Financial Data Services, Inc.	\$	9.9	\$	14.8	\$	12.1	
International Financial Data Services, U.K.		12.0		15.9		9.2	
International Financial Data Services, L.P.		3.7		6.2		10.9	
Argus Health Systems, Inc.*						(1.5)	
Other unconsolidated affiliates		(3.9)		(0.5)		6.6	
	\$	21.7	\$	36.4	\$	37.3	

Equity in losses of Argus for 2009 is for the period January 1, 2009 through March 31, 2009, the date DST acquired the remaining 50% equity interest and consolidated Argus.

Certain condensed financial information of DST's unconsolidated affiliates follows (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31,							
	2011 2010				2009			
Revenues	\$	899.3	\$	912.8	\$	948.8		
Costs and expenses		863.4		835.9		847.4		
Net income		35.9		76.9		101.4		
Current assets		669.3		931.9		1,012.1		
Noncurrent assets		789.7		780.4		738.7		
Current liabilities		286.2		519.0		629.1		
Noncurrent liabilities		516.4		507.4		492.8		
Partners' and stockholders' equity		656.4		685.9		628.9		
					1	30		

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

6. Unconsolidated Affiliates (Continued)

The following table summarizes amounts and transactions with the Company's related party unconsolidated affiliates (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31,						
	2011 20			2010	2009		
DST's operating revenues from unconsolidated affiliates	\$	162.0	\$	169.0	\$	176.3	
Amounts paid by DST to unconsolidated affiliates for products, services and leases	\$	3.8	\$	7.2	\$	9.8	
Amounts advanced (amounts received) by DST to (from) unconsolidated affiliates	\$	(6.3)	\$	(2.6)	\$	(1.0)	
Net proceeds received by DST from unconsolidated affiliates	\$	16.1	\$	3.8	\$	31.1	

		Decem	ber :	31,
	2	2011	2	2010
Amounts receivable to DST from advances to unconsolidated affiliates	\$	12.2	\$	10.8
Trade accounts receivable to DST from unconsolidated affiliates		17.0		24.3
Amounts receivable to DST from unconsolidated affiliates	\$	29.2	\$	35.1
Amounts payable by DST to unconsolidated affiliates*	\$	5.3	\$	1.5
Deferred revenue by DST from unconsolidated affiliates**	\$	40.0	\$	

In December 2011, BFDS prepaid a portion of its 2012 DST processing services, in the amount of \$40.0 million, in exchange for a discount on 2012 services.

Goodwill and other intangible assets recorded in connection with the acquisition of an unconsolidated affiliate is classified as part of the Company's investments in unconsolidated affiliates and represents the difference between the Company's carrying value of the unconsolidated affiliate and its pro-rata share of the unconsolidated affiliates' net tangible assets. For December 31, 2011 and 2010 goodwill and intangible assets (net of accumulated depreciation) were \$7.2 million and \$1.0 million, respectively.

In 2011, the Company acquired certain customer relationship assets (full-service client processing contracts) from BFDS for approximately \$11.2 million that will be paid, on an installment basis, over five years. The Company initially recorded an intangible asset of \$11.2 million, which will be amortized over an estimated life of approximately five years, and a payable to BFDS, which has been classified as debt.

During 2011, the Company licensed software from Percana Limited, a subsidiary of International Financial Data Services Ireland.

Excludes amounts owed under or activity related to the BFDS promissory note and IFDS, U.K. promissory note.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

7. Fair Value Measurements

Authoritative accounting guidance on fair value measurements establishes a three-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. These tiers include: Level 1, defined as observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; Level 2, defined as inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company held certain investment assets that are required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. These investments include the Company's available-for-sale equity securities and trading securities whereby fair value is determined using quoted prices in active markets. Accordingly, the fair value measurements of these investments have been classified as Level 1 in the table below. In addition, the Company has investments in available-for-sale fixed income securities, pooled funds and interest rate swaps that are required to be reported at fair value. Fair value for the available-for-sale fixed income securities and for the interest rate swaps was determined using inputs from quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets that are directly or indirectly observable. Fair value for investments in pooled funds is determined using net asset value. Accordingly, the Company's investments in available-for-sales fixed income securities, pooled funds and interest rate swaps have been classified as Level 2 in the table below.

The following tables present assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis (in millions):

			Fa	air Value Me		nents at Ro Ising	eporting Date
	Dec	ember 31, 2011	in Ma Io	ted prices Active arkets for dentical Assets Level 1)	Obs In	nificant Other ervable nputs evel 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Equity securities	\$	808.2	\$	808.2	\$		\$
Investments in pooled funds		46.0				46.0	
Fixed income securities		19.0				19.0	
Interest rate swap liability		(4.3)				(4.3)	
Total	\$	868.9	\$	808.2	\$	60.7	\$

		Fair Value Measurements at Reporting Date Using						
	nber 31, 010	Quoted prices in Active Significa Markets for Other Identical Observal Assets Inputs (Level 1) (Level 2		ther ervable iputs	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)			
Equity securities	\$ 920.9	\$	920.9	\$		\$		
Investments in pooled funds	16.9				16.9			
Fixed income securities	46.5				46.5			
Interest rate swap liability	(5.0)				(5.0)			
Total	\$ 979.3	\$	920.9	\$	58.4	\$		

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

7. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, one of DST's unconsolidated affiliates had an interest rate swap with a fair market value liability of \$73.0 million and \$47.7 million, respectively. The unconsolidated affiliate used inputs from quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets that are directly or indirectly observable relating to the measurement of the interest rate swap. The fair value measurement of the interest rate swap has been classified as Level 2 by the unconsolidated affiliate. The above table presents only assets and liabilities measured at fair value for which the Company controls, and accordingly excludes items held by unconsolidated affiliates.

8. Properties

Properties and related accumulated depreciation are as follows (in millions):

	December 31,					
		2011		2010		
Land	\$	72.3	\$	69.3		
Buildings		357.1		353.6		
Data processing equipment		192.3		197.4		
Data processing software		506.6		499.2		
Furniture, fixtures and other equipment		403.3		402.1		
Leasehold improvements		83.0		76.4		
Construction-in-progress		44.0		26.0		
		1,658.6		1,624.0		
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization		1,134.7		1,107.2		
Net properties	\$	523.9	\$	516.8		

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were approximately \$7.8 million and \$8.1 million of net properties, respectively, which are included in the above table, under lease with a municipality. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, there was approximately \$4.1 million and \$5.0 million, respectively, of assets (primarily buildings) under capital lease, net of accumulated depreciation, included in the above table.

Included in data processing software is \$71.1 million of proprietary software acquired in business combinations, including \$45.1 million, in aggregate, acquired in the 2011, 2010 and 2009 acquisitions described above. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the net book value of this acquired software was \$39.5 million and \$24.4 million, respectively.

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

8. Properties (Continued)

The following table summarizes software development and maintenance costs for the Company's proprietary systems and software products, which include capitalized software development costs (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31,						
	:	2011		2010		2009	
Capitalized software development costs	\$	31.4	\$	27.8	\$	27.7	
Amortization of capitalized software development costs	\$	26.8	\$	26.4	\$	20.1	
·							
Non-capitalizable software development and maintenance	\$	131.2	\$	134.3	\$	148.4	

Non-capitalizable software development and maintenance expense is included in Costs and expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Income. Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, was \$121.1 million, \$127.5 million and \$123.7 million, respectively.

9. Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible Assets

The following table summarizes intangible assets (in millions):

	December 31, 2011				December 31, 2010			
		arrying mount		Accumulated Amortization		rrying nount		cumulated ortization
Amortized intangible assets:								
Customer relationships	\$	169.9	\$	23.1	\$	63.6	\$	16.4
Other		27.8		5.6		6.0		3.7
Total	\$	197.7	\$	28.7	\$	69.6	\$	20.1

As described in Note 3, the aggregate acquisitions of ALPS and other businesses in 2011 resulted in \$254.8 million in goodwill, \$95.1 million in customer relationship intangible assets, \$21.8 million in other intangible assets and \$14.4 million in proprietary software (which has been included in Properties in the Consolidated Balance Sheet). In addition, the Company acquired \$11.2 million of customer relationship assets in late 2011 from BFDS. The acquisition of dsicmm Group Limited on July 30, 2010 resulted in \$42.5 million in goodwill, \$11.0 million in customer relationship intangible assets and \$4.7 million in proprietary software (which has been included in properties). Also described in Note 3 is the purchase of the remaining 50% equity interest in Argus on March 31, 2009 which resulted in \$62.9 million of goodwill, \$14.0 million of customer relationship intangible assets, \$1.0 million of other intangible assets and \$26.0 million of proprietary software (which has been included in properties).

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

9. Intangible Assets and Goodwill (Continued)

Amortization expense of intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was \$8.6 million, \$5.8 million and \$4.4 million, respectively. Annual amortization for intangible assets recorded as of December 31, 2011 is estimated to be (in millions):

2012	\$ 17.2
2013	16.8
2014	16.4
2015	15.5
2016	13.7
Thereafter	89.4
Total	\$ 169.0

Goodwill

The following tables summarize the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, by Segment (in millions):

	Dece	mber 31,						Dec	cember 31,
	1	2010	Acq	uisitions	Disposals	O	ther		2011
Financial Services	\$	178.0	\$	214.3	\$	\$	1.7	\$	394.0
Output Solutions		52.2		40.5			0.3		93.0
Total	\$	230.2	\$	254.8	\$	\$	2.0	\$	487.0

	December 31, 2009				Disposals	Other		December 31, 2010	
Financial Services	\$	174.9	\$		\$	\$	3.1	\$	178.0
Output Solutions		8.7		43.5					52.2
Total	\$	183.6	\$	43.5	\$	\$	3.1	\$	230.2

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. Debt

The Company is obligated under notes and other indebtedness as follows (in millions):

Decem	ber 3	31,
2011		2010
\$ 135.0	\$	125.0
16.6		3.5
10.0		7.5
105.2		108.5
125.0		
86.5		94.1
328.3		330.2
370.0		370.0
156.7		120.0
47.0		50.6
1,380.3		1,209.4
320.8		286.1
\$ 1,059.5	\$	923.3
	\$ 135.0 16.6 10.0 105.2 125.0 86.5 328.3 370.0 156.7 47.0	\$ 135.0 \$ 16.6 10.0 105.2 125.0 86.5 328.3 370.0 156.7 47.0 1,380.3 320.8

Accounts receivable securitization program

DST securitizes certain of its domestic accounts receivable through an accounts receivable securitization program with a third-party, multi-seller, asset-backed commercial paper conduit administered by a bank. The maximum amount that can be outstanding under this program is \$150 million. The facility will expire by its terms on May 17, 2012, unless renewed.

Under the terms of the accounts receivable securitization program, (a) DST periodically acquires accounts receivable originated by certain of its domestic subsidiaries, including, but not limited to, DST Output, DST Health Solutions, DST Technologies and Argus Health Systems (the "Subsidiary Originators"), (b) DST transfers receivables originated by DST and receivables acquired from the Subsidiary Originators, on a periodic basis, to a wholly-owned bankruptcy remote special purpose subsidiary of DST (the "SPE"), and (c) the SPE then sells undivided interests in the receivables to the commercial paper conduit. DST retains servicing responsibility over the receivables. The program contains customary restrictive covenants as well as customary events of default.

On January 1, 2010, the Company adopted new authoritative accounting guidance related to transfers of financial assets. This guidance changed the accounting for securitizations of mortgages and other financial instruments and the consolidation requirements for qualifying special-purpose entities ("QSPE"). Besides removing the concept of a QSPE, this new accounting guidance: a) clarified the determination of whether a transferor and all the entities included in the transferor's financial statements being presented have surrendered control over transferred financial assets; b) defined the term participating interest to establish specific conditions for reporting a transfer of a portion of a financial asset as a sale; c) required a transferor to recognize and initially measure at fair value all assets obtained and liabilities incurred as a result of a transfer of financial assets accounted for as a sale; and d) enhanced disclosures to provide financial statement users with greater transparency about transfers of financial assets and a transferor's continuing involvement with transferred financial assets.

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. Debt (Continued)

Prior to the adoption of this new authoritative accounting guidance on January 1, 2010, the periodic transfers by the SPE of undivided interests in accounts receivable to the third-party, multi-seller, asset-backed commercial paper conduit met the requirements for sale accounting treatment and were considered an off-balance sheet arrangement. After January 1, 2010, the periodic transfers of undivided interests in accounts receivable no longer qualify for sale accounting treatment in accordance with the new accounting guidance and are accounted for as secured borrowings. DST has continuing involvement with the transferred assets because it maintains servicing responsibilities for the accounts receivable assets included in the accounts receivable securitization program. Accounts receivable assets transferred from DST and certain of its domestic subsidiaries to its wholly-owned, bankruptcy remote special purpose subsidiary contain restrictions because they are not available to satisfy the creditors of any other person, including DST or any of its subsidiaries or affiliates. Further, neither DST nor the SPE guarantees collectability of the receivables or the creditworthiness of obligors. The SPE retains an interest in the receivables in excess of the amount transferred to the conduit, and such receivables will continue to be recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The carrying value of the retained interest approximates its estimated fair value at the balance sheet date. The Company believes increases in the level of assumed interest rates and/or credit losses compared to assumptions in effect at the balance sheet date by 10% or 20% would not materially affect the fair value of the retained interest at the reporting date.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the outstanding amount of undivided interests in the receivables held by the conduit was \$135.0 million and \$125.0 million, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company's accounts receivable increased by \$125.0 million resulting in a cash outflow being reported in the operating section of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the current portion of debt associated with the accounts receivable securitization program increased by \$125.0 million resulting in a cash inflow being reported in the financing section of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows presents the net cash flows under the Company's accounts receivable securitization programs in the operating section. During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, total proceeds from the accounts receivable securitization program were approximately \$924.1 million and \$915.4 million, respectively, which comprises the net cash flow in the financing section of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

Aggregate transfers of undivided interests in the receivables from the SPE to the conduit were \$1,720.2 million and \$1,769.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The impact on net income stemming from these transfers was not material. Costs associated with the accounts receivable securitization program were included in other income during 2009, but are included in interest expense effective January 1, 2010. The program costs applicable to the outstanding amount of undivided interests in the receivables are generally based on the LIBOR rate plus an applicable margin.

Secured promissory notes

The secured promissory notes represent loans for real estate and equipment purchases. The outstanding amount at December 31, 2011 under the real estate notes and equipment notes was \$15.0 million and \$1.6 million, respectively. Included in the real estate notes payable as of December 31, 2011 is a \$9.3 million real estate mortgage entered into by IOS in July 2011, which is secured by real estate in Bristol U.K. The loan, denominated in British Pounds, requires quarterly

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. Debt (Continued)

principal payments and matures in July 2018. At December 31, 2011, the outstanding balance under this note payable was \$8.3 million. The remaining real estate borrowings are due in installments with the balance due at the end of the term. Interest rates on the real estate and equipment borrowings are generally fixed. Fixed rates range from 5.5% to 8.39%. The loans are secured by real property and assets owned by the Company.

Equipment credit facilities

The Company has a \$50.0 million unsecured credit facility with a vendor. Proceeds from loans made under the credit facility can be used to make purchases of the vendor's eligible equipment, software or services. The draw period under this credit facility expired on June 30, 2010. The maturity date for each loan drawn under this facility is the earlier of approximately three years from the initial draw or August 1, 2013. The outstanding amount under this credit facility at December 31, 2011 and 2010 was \$1.8 million and \$6.3 million, respectively.

On June 30, 2010, the Company entered into a new \$50.0 million unsecured credit facility with the same vendor. Proceeds from loans made under the new equipment credit facility can be used to make purchases of the vendor's eligible equipment, software or services. Loans under this credit facility must be made prior to December 31, 2012, the draw period termination date. The maturity date for each loan under this credit facility is the earlier of i) the last day of the thirty first (31st) calendar month following the loan date or ii) June 30, 2015. Interest rates applicable to the loans under this credit facility are generally based on the LIBOR rate plus an applicable margin. The applicable margin is based on a grid schedule that adjusts borrowing costs up or down based upon the Company's consolidated leverage ratio. The outstanding amount at December 31, 2011 and 2010 under the new equipment credit facility was \$8.2 million and \$1.2 million, respectively.

Real estate credit agreement and interest rate swap

Certain subsidiaries of DST entered into a real estate credit agreement with a syndicate of lenders. The credit agreement provides for a five-year, non-revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to \$120.0 million. Upon closing of the facility in September 2008, \$115.0 million was advanced to DST. The credit facility is secured by, among other things, the real estate and properties owned by these DST subsidiaries as well as an assignment of the related leases, rents and other benefits of these assets. The interest rate applicable to the credit agreement is a floating rate tied to either offshore LIBOR rate plus an applicable margin rate of 1.75% or the prime rate (as defined in the credit agreement), as elected by DST. Principal and interest payments are due on the first of each month beginning in November 2008, and are based on a 20 year amortization schedule. Subject to provisions in the credit agreement, DST may voluntarily prepay the loan in whole or in part without premium or penalty, though amounts repaid may not be reborrowed. Concurrent with the lease, sale or other transfer of any of the collateralized properties, DST must prepay an amount equal to 125% of the allocated amount of such property as set forth in the credit agreement. The credit agreement contains customary restrictive covenants, as well as certain customary events of default. Among other provisions, the credit agreement requires certain interest coverage ratios to be maintained. If any event of default occurs and is continuing, all amounts payable under the credit agreement may be declared immediately due and payable. The balance of the loan is due on September 16, 2013, the maturity date for the credit facility.

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. Debt (Continued)

In January 2009, the Company entered an interest rate swap with a bank to fix the interest rate on its syndicated real estate credit agreement at approximately 4.49% (includes 1.75% applicable margin rate) beginning January 2010. This interest rate swap qualifies as a derivative instrument.

The Company's interest rate swap is a cash flow hedge of future interest payments under the Company's real estate credit agreement and uses a pay-fixed, receive-variable, forward starting interest rate swap. The Company's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking this hedge is to eliminate the variability of interest cash flows related to the Company's floating-rate real estate credit agreement. Changes in the cash flows of the interest rate swap are expected to offset the changes in cash flows attributable to fluctuations in the one-month LIBOR benchmark interest rate. The derivative instrument is a receive floating, pay 2.74% fixed, forward starting interest rate swap with an effective date of January 4, 2010 and a maturity date of September 16, 2013. Effectiveness of the hedge relationship is assessed on a quarterly basis both prospectively and retrospectively using the "cumulative dollar offset" method, in which the cumulative changes in the value of the hedging instrument are directly compared with the cumulative change in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged item. A dollar offset ratio of between 0.80 and 1.25 is required in order to qualify for hedge accounting treatment. At inception of the hedge, the cumulative dollar offset ratio is 1.00 since the terms of the perfect hypothetical swap match those of the actual swap. The derivative accounting guidance indicates that hedge effectiveness occurs only if the cumulative gain or loss on the derivative hedging instrument exceeds the cumulative change in the expected future cash flows of the hedged transaction. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the fair value of the Company's pay-fixed, receive-variable, forward starting interest rate swap was a liability of \$4.3 million and \$5.0 million, respectively, which is included in other non-current liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company determined there was no ineffectiveness during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, which resulted in the changes in fair value of this swap

Term Loan Credit Facility

On October 28, 2011, the Company entered into a \$125.0 million unsecured term loan credit facility with a bank. Subsequent to entering the facility, the Company borrowed \$125.0 million to partially fund the acquisition of ALPS which was completed on October 31, 2011. The interest rates applicable to loans under the credit facility are generally based on LIBOR or prime rates plus applicable margins as defined in the facility. The maturity date is the earlier of October 28, 2013 and the springing maturity date, as defined, which could cause the maturity date to become September 13, 2013 if the Company's real estate credit agreement is not repaid or refinanced. The facility contains customary restrictive covenants as well as customary events of default. Based on the terms of the credit facility, the Company may be required to prepay the loan if certain events occur. Amounts prepaid may not be reborrowed.

Convertible senior debentures

In August 2003, the Company issued \$840 million aggregate principal amount of convertible senior debentures, consisting of \$540 million of 4.125% Series A convertible senior debentures due 2023 and \$300 million aggregate principal amount of 3.625% Series B convertible senior debentures due 2023. The Series A debentures and Series B debentures had an interest rate of 4.125% and 3.625% per annum, respectively. During fourth quarter 2009, DST entered into separate privately negotiated exchange agreements under which it exchanged \$257.0 million in aggregate principal of the Company's

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. Debt (Continued)

outstanding 4.125% Series A convertible senior debentures due 2023 for \$257.0 million in aggregate principal of new 4.125% Series C convertible senior debentures due 2023. At December 31, 2009, the amount outstanding under the Series A, B, and C convertible senior debentures was \$151.8 million, \$171.3 million and \$257.0 million respectively.

During 2010, the Company repurchased \$67.7 million of the original Series A debentures, \$8.8 million of the Series B debentures and \$162.9 million of the Series C debentures and recorded a net loss of \$6.4 million on these transactions. In August 2010, the Company had \$9.9 million Series A debentures that were put to the Company by debenture holders and redeemed. In September 2010, the entire remaining balance of Series A (\$74.2 million) and Series B (\$168.5 million, which includes \$6.0 million of accreted interest) senior convertible debentures were redeemed, which fully retired these series of debentures. At December 31, 2010, the Company had \$94.1 million Series C senior convertible debentures outstanding.

During 2011, the Company repurchased \$11.4 million of the original Series C debentures and recorded a net loss of \$1.2 million on these transactions. At December 31 2011, the Company had \$86.5 million Series C senior convertible debentures outstanding.

The Series C debentures require regular cash interest on the original principal amount of each debenture at a rate of 4.125% per year, payable semiannually in arrears on February 15 until August 15, 2010. Beginning August 15, 2010, the Company does not pay regular cash interest on the Series C debentures prior to maturity. Instead, the original principal amount of the Series C debentures will increase daily at a rate of 4.125% per year to approximately \$1,700, which is the full accreted principal amount payable at maturity for each \$1,000 original principal amount of the debentures. The Company will pay contingent interest during any six-month interest period commencing with the period from August 20, 2010 to February 14, 2011, and thereafter from February 15 to August 14 or August 15 to February 14, for which the average trading price of the Series C debentures for the applicable five trading-day reference period equals or exceeds 120% of the accreted principal amount of the Series C debentures.

Beginning August 15, 2013, the Company may redeem for cash all or part of the Series C debentures at any time (upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days notice before the redemption date) at a redemption price equal to the accreted principal amount of the Series C debentures to be redeemed or purchased plus any accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to the redemption date. Debenture holders may require the Company to purchase the Series C debentures on August 15, 2014, 2015 and 2020 at a purchase price equal to the accreted principal amount of the Series C debentures to be purchased plus any accrued and unpaid cash interest, including contingent interest and liquidated damages, if any, to such purchase date. For purchases of Series C debentures on August 15, 2014, the Company will pay the purchase price in cash. For purchases of Series C debentures on August 15, 2015 and 2020 and upon any fundamental change, the Company can pay the purchase price at its option in cash, common stock or any combination of cash and common stock.

The Series C debentures are convertible under specified circumstances into shares of the Company's common stock at an initial conversion rate of 20.3732 shares per \$1,000 principal amount of debentures (which is equal to an initial conversion price of \$49.08), subject to adjustment in certain events. The Series C debentures include a make-whole interest provision which may increase the conversion rate upon certain fundamental changes, as described in the Series C indenture, prior to August 15, 2013.

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. Debt (Continued)

The conversion rights for the Series C debentures include: 1) during any calendar quarter if the last reported sale price of DST's common stock for at least 20 trading days during the period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last day of the previous calendar quarter, is greater than or equal to 120% of the applicable conversion price; 2) subject to certain exceptions, during the five day business period after any five consecutive trading day period in which the trading price per \$1,000 original principal amount for each day of that period was less than 95% of the product of the last reported sales price of DST's common stock and the conversion rate on each such day; 3) if the debentures have been called for redemption; and 4) upon the occurrence of a specified corporate transaction as described in the indenture agreement. Upon conversion, the Company will have the right to deliver, in lieu of shares of its common stock, cash or a combination of cash and shares of common stock. The Series C debentures if converted into common stock upon the occurrence of certain events would lead to the issuance of common stock and have a potentially dilutive effect on the Company's stock. The Company intends to settle any conversions of the Series C debentures with cash for the accreted principal and accrued and unpaid interest and issue common stock for any conversion value amount over the principal and accrued and unpaid interest amounts. Holders of the Series C debentures did not have the right to convert these debentures at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Revolving credit facilities

On April 16, 2010, the Company entered into a new syndicated line of credit facility to replace its syndicated revolving line of credit facility that matured on July 1, 2010. The new credit agreement, as amended, provides for a revolving unsecured credit facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to \$630 million. The interest rates applicable to loans under the new credit agreement are generally based on LIBOR, Federal Funds or prime rates plus applicable margins as defined in the agreement. The revolving credit facility contains grid schedules that adjust borrowing costs up or down based upon the Company's consolidated leverage ratio. The grid schedules may result in fluctuations in borrowing costs ranging from 1.10% to 2.10% over LIBOR and 0.10% to 1.10% over base rate as defined. Additionally, an annual facility fee of 0.15% to 0.40% is required on this revolving syndicated line of credit. The credit agreement contains customary restrictive covenants, as well as certain customary events of default. Among other provisions, the credit agreement limits consolidated indebtedness, liens, investments, subsidiary indebtedness, asset dispositions and restricted payments (including stock repurchases and cash dividends), and requires certain leverage and interest coverage ratios to be maintained. If any event of default occurs and is continuing, all amounts payable under the credit agreement may be declared immediately due and payable. The maturity date for the new credit facility is July 1, 2015. On April 16, 2010, the date of the refinancing transaction, the administrative agent transferred \$443.4 million of the outstanding balance under the old (June 2005) credit facility to the new credit facility. Amounts borrowed on this syndicated revolving credit facility were \$328.3 million and \$325.0 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

One of the Company's subsidiaries has available an unsecured line of credit agreement that provides for unsecured revolving borrowings up to \$50 million that matures on September 30, 2012. Borrowings under the facility are available at rates based on LIBOR rates plus the applicable margin of 1.4%. Commitment fees of 0.25% per annum based on the unused portions are payable quarterly. Among other provisions, the agreement requires the subsidiary to maintain certain interest coverage ratios and tangible net worth levels. In the event of non-compliance, an event of default may occur, which could

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. Debt (Continued)

result in the loan becoming immediately due and payable. No amounts were borrowed under this line of credit at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

One of the Company's subsidiaries maintains a margin credit facility with a regulated broker/dealer. There were no borrowings under this facility at December 31, 2011 and 2010. This facility is collateralized by the underlying marketable securities. One of the Company's foreign subsidiaries has an available term loan credit facility of up to \$3.0 million and a revolving credit facility in the amount of \$5.0 million, both denominated in Canadian Dollars, and expire on October 31, 2012. There were no borrowings against these credit facilities at December 31, 2011 and 2010. The Company has an unsecured revolving line of credit for \$10.0 million that is payable immediately upon demand by the lender. Borrowings on the line of credit are available at variable rates of interest based on LIBOR plus an applicable margin. Interest is payable monthly. No amounts were drawn on this facility during 2011 and 2010. The Company's foreign subsidiary has an overdraft credit facility that provides for borrowings of up to \$8.1 million, denominated in British Pounds, at variable rates of interest based on the Bank's base rate plus 1.5% per annum. There were no amounts outstanding at December 31, 2011 and \$5.2 million outstanding at December 31, 2010.

Senior notes

On August 9, 2010, the Company issued \$370.0 million of aggregate principal of privately placed senior notes (collectively, the "Senior Notes"). The Senior Notes are comprised of \$40 million of 4.19% Series A Senior Notes due August 9, 2015, \$105 million of 4.86% Series B Senior Notes due August 9, 2017, \$65 million of 5.06% Series C Senior Notes due August 9, 2018 and \$160 million of 5.42% Series D Senior Notes due August 9, 2020.

The Senior Notes are unsecured senior obligations of the Company and were issued pursuant to a note purchase agreement dated August 9, 2010 (the "Agreement"). Interest on the Senior Notes is payable semiannually on February 9 and August 9 of each year, commencing February 9, 2011. The Company may prepay the Notes at any time, in an amount not less than 10% of the aggregate principal amount of the Senior Notes then outstanding, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount being prepaid, plus accrued and unpaid interest and a "make-whole" prepayment premium. The Company may be required to prepay all or a portion of the Senior Notes upon the occurrence of any "Change in Control", as defined in the Agreement.

Pursuant to the Agreement, any subsidiary of the Company that is required to become a party to or otherwise guarantee the syndicated line of credit facility or other indebtedness in excess of \$100.0 million, will be required to guarantee the Company's obligations under the Senior Notes. The Agreement contains customary restrictive covenants, as well as certain customary events of default, including cross-default provisions. Among other provisions, the Agreement limits the ability of the Company to incur or create liens, sell assets, issue priority indebtedness and change lines of business. The agreement also requires certain leverage and interest coverage ratios to be maintained.

Related party credit agreements

On October 27, 2010, the Company amended and restated its related party promissory note with Boston Financial Data Services, Inc. The agreement provides for unsecured revolving borrowings by the Company of up to \$140 million and matures on July 1, 2013. From time to time, BFDS may, subject to a ten day notice period, demand a prepayment of the loan by the Company in an amount not to

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. Debt (Continued)

exceed \$25 million in each instance. The interest rate applicable to the loan is based on LIBOR plus an applicable margin correlating to the applicable margin under the Company's \$630 million syndicated line of credit facility. The loan agreement incorporates by reference and requires the Company to comply with the affirmative and negative covenants contained in the Company's \$630 million syndicated line of credit facility. The amount outstanding under this loan agreement was \$140.0 million and \$120.0 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company recorded interest expense related to this loan of \$2.7 million, \$2.0 million and \$1.0 million, respectively.

In 2011, DST's Innovative Output Solutions Limited ("IOS") subsidiary entered into a loan agreement denominated in British Pounds with International Financial Data Services Limited ("IFDS U.K."). The agreement provides for unsecured revolving borrowings by IOS and matures on December 31, 2015. IFDS U.K. may demand a prepayment of the loan by IOS at any time upon completion of a notice period. The interest rate applicable to the loan is based on the base rate of the Bank of England plus an applicable margin of 3.0% and is payable monthly. The amount outstanding under this loan at December 31, 2011 was \$6.2 million. For the year ended December 31, 2011, IOS recorded interest expense related to this loan of \$0.2 million.

As mentioned above, DST acquired certain intangible assets in 2011 from BFDS in exchange for an installment loan of \$11.2 million that is payable over five years and matures in September 2016. The amount outstanding at December 31, 2011 was \$10.5 million.

Other indebtedness

Other indebtedness is mostly comprised of debt obligations assumed by the Company in connection with prior business acquisitions, including the acquisition of dsicmm Group Limited in 2010 and Lateral Group Limited in 2011. Certain of the dsicmm credit agreements contain provisions that require dsicmm to maintain certain interest, leverage and other financial ratios. In the event of non-compliance with the provisions of these credit agreements, an event of default may occur, which could result in the loan becoming immediately due and payable.

Other indebtedness also includes a borrowing arrangement denominated in British Pounds between IOS and a bank that is secured by accounts receivable of IOS. The amount outstanding under this facility was \$21.0 million and \$16.2 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2011 and for the period July 30, 2010 through December 31, 2010, proceeds received from this loan were \$234.5 million and \$70.6 million and total repayments were \$238.9 million and \$68.8 million, respectively, which have been included in net payments on revolving credit facilities in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows.

The primary debt obligations assumed from business combinations prior to 2010 are payable in monthly installments. Interest rates are fixed and approximate 5.6%. The maturity date of this indebtedness is October 2016. Indebtedness assumed in 2010 from dsicmm contains both variable and fixed interest rates and maturity dates ranging from 2011 through December 2013.

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

10. Debt (Continued)

Future principal payments of indebtedness at December 31, 2011 are as follows (in millions):

2012	\$ 320.8
2013	246.2
2014	94.2
2015	376.1
2016	8.4
Thereafter	334.6
Total	\$ 1,380.3

Based upon the borrowing rates currently available to the Company and its subsidiaries for indebtedness with similar terms and average maturities, the carrying value of long-term debt, with the exception of the senior debentures and senior notes is considered to approximate fair value at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

As of December 31, 2011, the carrying and fair value of the Series C convertible debentures and Senior Notes were as follows (in millions):

	rrying /alue	timated ir Value
Convertible senior debentures Series C	\$ 86.5	\$ 99.7
Senior Notes Series A	40.0	40.8
Senior Notes Series B	105.0	109.7
Senior Notes Series C	65.0	68.1
Senior Notes Series D	160.0	169.7
Total	\$ 456.5	\$ 488.0

11. Income Taxes

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities as measured by the enacted tax rates which will be in effect when these differences reverse. Deferred tax expense (benefit) is generally the result of changes in the assets or liabilities for deferred taxes.

The following summarizes pretax income (loss) (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31,									
		2011		2010		2009				
U.S.	\$	273.5	\$	462.6	\$	366.4				
International		0.5		14.0		(11.9)				
Total	\$	274.0	\$	476.6	\$	354.5				

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. Income Taxes (Continued)

Provision for income taxes (benefits) consists of the following components (in millions):

T 7		T 1	21
Year	Ended	December	31.

	2011		2010		:	2009
Current						
Federal	\$	69.6	\$	99.0	\$	51.0
State and local		10.4		23.4		7.8
International		9.4		10.3		2.4
Total current		89.4		132.7		61.2
Deferred						
Federal		11.0		32.5		47.9
State and local		0.4		(0.4)		2.0
International		(5.0)		(5.7)		1.8
Total deferred		6.4		26.4		51.7
Total provision for income taxes	\$	95.8	\$	159.1	\$	112.9

Differences between the Company's effective income tax rate and the U.S. federal income tax statutory rate are as follows (in millions):

	20	011		2010		2009
Provision for income taxes using the statutory rate in effect	\$	95.9	\$	166.7	\$	124.0
Tax effect of:						
State and local income taxes, net		7.0		13.9		9.8
International income taxes, net		2.7		(2.2)		0.4
Earnings of U.S. unconsolidated affiliates		(2.8)		(4.1)		(3.0)
Argus nontaxable gain						(16.6)
Valuation allowance		1.8		0.4		1.8
Tax credits		(10.5)		(10.0)		(8.8)
Uncertain tax positions		7.7		1.5		9.5
Dividend received deduction		(2.2)		(8.2)		(0.6)
Domestic production activities deduction		(6.9)				(0.9)
Other		3.1		1.1		(2.7)
Total provision for income taxes	\$	95.8	\$	159.1	\$	112.9
Effective tax rate		35.0%)	33.4%	,	31.8%
Statutory federal tax rate		35.0%)	35.0%)	35.0%
	14:	5				

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. Income Taxes (Continued)

The federal and state deferred tax assets (liabilities) recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet are as follows (in millions):

	Decembe	(95.7) \$ (92.7) (196.7) (241.6) (11.5) (10.4) (40.5) (12.5)					
	2011	20	010				
Liabilities:							
Deferred cancellation of debt income	\$ (95.7)	\$	(92.7)				
Investments in available for sale securities	(196.7)	((241.6)				
Unconsolidated affiliates and investments	(11.5)		(10.4)				
Accumulated depreciation and amortization	(40.5)		(12.5)				
Book accruals and prepaid expenses	(6.8)		(0.8)				
Debenture original issue discount	(16.7)		(15.9)				
Other	(7.6)		(4.5)				
Total deferred tax liabilities	(375.5)		(378.4)				
Assets:							
Deferred compensation and other employee benefits	47.2		42.5				
Net operating loss	20.9		17.3				
Other	1.9		5.1				
Total deferred tax assets	70.0		64.9				
Valuation allowance	(12.6)		(10.9)				
Net deferred tax liability	\$ (318.1)	\$	(324.4)				

The Company has approximately \$7.6 million of federal net operating losses as of December 31, 2011 as a result of the previous business combinations. These net operating losses expire in 2025 and are available to reduce future income taxes. Since these net operating losses were generated by an entity prior to its acquisition by DST, their utilization is subject to certain limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. The Company does not anticipate that such limitations will prohibit the utilization of the federal net operating loss carryforwards prior to their expiration. The Company has approximately \$23.9 million of state net operating losses as of December 31, 2011 as a result of the previous business combinations. These net operating losses begin to expire in 2021. The Company also believed it was not more likely than not that certain state deferred tax assets would be realized, and, accordingly, recorded a valuation allowance. During the Company's 2009 reassessment of this valuation allowance requirement, it was determined that the valuation allowance was no longer required. As a result, it was released during 2009. In the course of finalizing the 2002 through 2005 IRS examination described below, favorable adjustments were identified and recognized in first quarter 2009, including foreign tax credit carryforward utilization.

The Company has approximately \$64.6 million of net operating loss carryforwards as of December 31, 2011 in international jurisdictions. These carryforwards do not expire but may be limited in their ability to offset only certain income. A net benefit of approximately \$7.5 million of these net operating losses will be recorded in additional paid-in capital in the Consolidated Balance Sheet upon realization. Authoritative accounting guidance requires a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. In evaluating the realizability of certain international net deferred tax assets, the

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. Income Taxes (Continued)

Company also anticipates that limitations may result in the benefit of these amounts not being realized and has established corresponding valuation allowances as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 of \$12.6 million and \$10.9 million, respectively. A \$2.3 million valuation allowance previously established on deferred income tax assets of Innovative Output Solutions (Bristol) Limited was released during 2010. The release resulted from the acquisition of dsicmm Group. Innovative Output Solutions Limited was the beneficiary of this income tax benefit, and accordingly DST's share of the benefit was 70.5% or \$1.6 million. The remaining portion of the income tax benefit (29.5% or \$700,000) was attributed to the non-controlling interest.

Prior to 1993, the Company generally did not provide deferred income taxes for unremitted earnings of certain investees accounted for under the equity method because those earnings have been and will continue to be reinvested indefinitely. Beginning in 1993, pursuant to the provisions of the authoritative accounting guidance related to income taxes, the Company began providing deferred taxes for unremitted earnings of U.S. unconsolidated affiliates net of the 80% dividends received deduction provided for under current tax law. Through December 31, 2011, the cumulative amount of such unremitted earnings was \$200.0 million. These amounts would become taxable to the Company if distributed by the affiliates as dividends, in which case the Company would be entitled to the dividends received deduction for 80% of the dividends; alternatively, these earnings could be realized by the sale of the affiliates' stock, which would give rise to tax at federal capital gains rates and state ordinary income tax rates, to the extent the stock sale proceeds exceeded the Company's tax basis. Deferred taxes provided on unremitted earnings through December 31, 2011 and 2010 were \$14.0 million and \$12.9 million, respectively. As a result of the purchase of the remaining 50% interest of Argus on March 31, 2009, \$0.9 million of deferred taxes provided on unremitted earnings of Argus was reversed during first quarter 2009.

As of December 31, 2011, accumulated undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries (excluding India) were \$78.1 million. During 2011, the Company's ongoing evaluation of its ability to redeploy foreign cash sources resulted in the Company making a distribution from and reversing its permanently reinvested assertion with respect to its India subsidiary. As a result, the Company has recorded approximately \$0.6 million of related income tax liability, net of credits, on the India unremitted earnings. The Company intends to indefinitely reinvest the earnings in the businesses of its other foreign subsidiaries. As a consequence, no federal or state income taxes or foreign withholding taxes have been provided for amounts which would become payable, if any, on the distribution of such earnings. In the event of such a distribution, the Company may be able to offset, at least in part, the U.S. federal income tax consequences of such a distribution with foreign income tax credits which would become creditable as a result of such a distribution. It is not practicable for the Company to determine the income tax it would incur, if any, if such earnings were distributed.

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. Income Taxes (Continued)

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31,					
	2	2011	2	2010	2	009
Balance at beginning of year	\$	75.0	\$	78.5	\$	75.7
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year		7.3		5.4		4.1
Additions for tax positions of prior years		14.4		3.1		19.4
Reductions for tax positions of prior years		(2.2)		(11.1)		(1.6)
Settlements		(0.4)		(0.1)		(18.4)
Statute expirations		(0.6)		(0.8)		(0.7)
Balance at end of year	\$	93.5	\$	75.0	\$	78.5

Included in the Company's net unrecognized tax benefit at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 are \$49.9 million, \$44.0 million and \$43.6 million, respectively, of tax positions which, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate. The Company recognizes interest and penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in income taxes, which is consistent with the recognition of these items in prior reporting periods. As of December 31, 2010, the Company had \$9.6 million of interest and penalties accrued associated with unrecognized tax benefits. The liability for interest and penalties increased \$1.8 million during the year ended December 31, 2011 to \$11.4 million. The liability for interest and penalties increased \$0.7 million during the year ended December 31, 2010.

It is expected that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits will change during the next year; however, the Company does not expect the change to have a significant impact on its results of operations or financial position.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and various state and foreign jurisdictions. The IRS examination for the tax years ended December 31, 2002 through 2005 was completed in February 2009. In the course of finalizing the examination, favorable adjustments of approximately \$5.0 million were identified and recognized in first quarter 2009 that were not recorded at December 31, 2008, including foreign tax credit carryforward utilization. An IRS examination for the tax years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 was completed in March 2011. An IRS examination for the tax years ended December 31, 2008 and 2009 began during 2011. As of December 31, 2011, the IRS has not proposed any significant adjustments which would be material to the Company's financial statements. Various state, local, and foreign income tax returns are also under examination by taxing authorities. The Company does not believe that the outcome of any examination will have a material impact on its financial statements.

The Company filed federal income tax refund claims for research and experimentation credits for the tax years 1996 through 2001. A settlement was reached with respect to the Company's refund claims for research and experimentation credits for the years 1996 through 2001. Despite the settlement, the IRS has challenged the amount and availability of research and experimentation credits attributable to the Company's operations after 2001. During 2010, the Company filed federal income tax refund claims for approximately \$10 million of research and experimentation credits for the tax years 2002 through 2005. An IRS examination of these claims is in process. Refund claims for tax years 2006 and 2007 were filed during 2011. Refund claims for the tax years 2008 and 2009 are expected to be filed during 2012. The

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

11. Income Taxes (Continued)

refund claims for tax years 2006 through 2009 will be subject to examination by the IRS. In light of the continuing uncertainty related to the realization of any tax benefit associated with these claims, the Company has not yet recorded any significant income tax benefit in the accompanying financial statements related to these refund claims. To the extent refunds are received, the Company will reduce income tax expense when realized.

In 2011, the Company filed federal income tax refund claims for the tax years 2005 through 2007 related to its Domestic Manufacturing Deduction under Internal Revenue Code Section 199 based on technical developments and interpretations that have occurred since filing the original returns. Refund claims for 2008 and 2009 are expected to be filed during 2012. The claims for 2005 through 2009 are estimated to exceed \$10 million, and the IRS is expected to conduct a full examination of these claims. Due to uncertainty related to the realization of any tax benefit associated with these refund claims, the Company has not yet recorded any significant income tax benefit in the accompanying financial statements related to these refund claims and plans to fully reserve the benefit upon filing the claims. To the extent refunds are received, the company will reduce income tax expense when realized.

12. Equity

Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized 10 million shares of preferred stock, of which no shares are currently issued or outstanding. However, 0.1 million shares of preferred stock have been designated as Series A Preferred Stock in connection with the Company's rights agreement, in certain circumstances the terms of which would entitle the holders of the Company's common stock to which the rights are attached to purchase 1/1000ths of a share of Series A Preferred Stock (or in some cases, shares of the Company's common stock, other securities, cash or other assets) at a purchase price of \$225 per share, subject to certain adjustments.

Earnings per share

The computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is as follows (in millions, except per share amounts):

	45.7 46.9 49. 0.6 0.4 0.				1,
	2011	2	2010	2	2009
Net income attributable to DST Systems, Inc.	\$ 183.1	\$	318.5	\$	241.6
Average common shares outstanding	45.7		46.9		49.6
Incremental shares from restricted stock units and assumed conversions of stock options and debentures	0.6		0.4		0.4
Average diluted shares outstanding	46.3		47.3		50.0
Basic earnings per share	\$ 4.01	\$	6.78	\$	4.87
Diluted earnings per share	\$ 3.95	\$	6.73	\$	4.84
149					

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12. Equity (Continued)

The Company had approximately 44.1 million and 46.3 million shares outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Shares from options to purchase common stock that were excluded from the diluted earnings per share calculation because they were anti-dilutive totaled 0.9 million and 3.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company's convertible senior debentures would have a potentially dilutive effect on the Company's stock if converted in the future. At December 31, 2011 outstanding Series C debentures are convertible into 1.7 million shares of common stock, subject to adjustment. The Company intends to settle any conversions with cash for the principal amount of the bonds and accrued and unpaid interest and issue common stock for any conversion value amount over the principal and accrued and unpaid interest amount. Related to the debentures, the calculation of diluted earnings per share includes an incremental amount of shares assumed to be issued for the conversion spread when the Company's average daily stock price exceeds the average accreted bond price per share. There was no dilution during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 because of a decline in the Company's average share price.

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Components of other comprehensive income (loss) consist of the following (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31,						
		2011	:	2010	:	2009	
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments:							
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period	\$	(103.3)	\$	62.5	\$	204.8	
Proportional share of unconsolidated affiliate interest rate swap		2.0		3.0		1.8	
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate swaps		0.7		(3.1)		(1.9)	
Reclassification adjustments for net gains included in net income		(18.0)		(64.4)		(18.6)	
Foreign currency translation adjustments		(0.9)		2.4		45.0	
Deferred income taxes		46.0		(1.6)		(84.0)	
Other comprehensive income (loss)	\$	(73.5)	\$	(1.2)	\$	147.1	

Components of the related tax provision of other comprehensive income consists of the following (in millions):

	Year Ended December 3:					1,
		2011		2010	2	2009
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments:						
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period and proportional share of unconsolidated						
affiliates' interest rate swap	\$	(39.0)	\$	27.2	\$	91.2
Reclassification adjustments for gains included in net income		(7.0)		(25.6)		(7.2)
Deferred income taxes	\$	(46.0)	\$	1.6	\$	84.0
150						

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12. Equity (Continued)

One of DST's unconsolidated affiliates had an interest rate swap liability with a fair market value of \$73.0 million, \$47.7 million and \$35.6 million at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. DST's 50% proportionate share of this interest rate swap liability was \$36.5 million, \$23.9 million and \$17.8 million at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Company records in investments and accumulated other comprehensive income its proportionate share of this liability in an amount not to exceed the carrying value of its investment in this unconsolidated affiliate, which resulted in no liability recorded at December 31, 2011 \$2.0 million recorded at December 31, 2010 and \$5.0 million recorded at December 31, 2009, respectively.

Stock repurchases

In November 2011, DST's Board of Directors announced an increase to its share repurchase authorization by 2.0 million shares. The new share repurchase program became effective January 1, 2012 and expires on December 31, 2013. When the new repurchase authorization is combined with remaining shares from the existing authorization, the Company will have approximately 2,050,000 shares available to repurchase under the authorization as of January 1, 2012. The plan allows, but does not require, the repurchase of common stock in open market and private transactions. The Company may enter into one or more plans with its brokers or banks for pre-authorized purchases within defined limits pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 to affect all or a portion of such share repurchases. Under the share repurchase plans, the Company expended \$135.4 million for approximately 3.0 million shares, \$116.6 million for approximately 2.9 million shares and \$9.7 million for approximately 260,000 shares during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

Shares received in exchange for tax withholding obligations arising from the exercise of options to purchase the Company's stock or from the vesting of restricted stock shares are included in common stock repurchased in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. The amount of such share withholdings for option exercises was \$39.3 million, \$21.1 million and \$30.8 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Company had 51.2 million and 49.1 million shares of common stock held in treasury at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Dividends

On February 24, 2012, the Board of Directors of DST declared a cash dividend of \$0.40 per common share that will be payable on April 10, 2012 to shareholders of record at the close of business on March 16, 2012.

In 2011, DST separately paid two cash dividends at \$0.35 per common share. The aggregate amount of the cash dividend was \$31.6 million.

In 2010, DST separately paid two cash dividends at \$0.30 per common share. The aggregate amount of the cash dividend was \$28.2 million.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company has a share-based compensation plan covering its employees and a share-based compensation plan covering its non-employee directors and has outstanding share awards (primarily in the form of stock options and restricted stock) under each of these plans. Both of these share-based

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12. Equity (Continued)

compensation plans have been approved by the Company's Board of Directors and shareholders. The DST Systems, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the "Employee Plan") and the DST Systems, Inc. 2005 Non-Employee Directors' Award Plan (the "Directors' Plan") became effective on May 10, 2005. The term of both the Employee Plan and the Directors' Plan is from May 10, 2005 through May 9, 2015.

The Consolidated Statement of Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 reflects share-based compensation cost of \$20.5 million, \$20.2 million and \$25.8 million, respectively. The total tax benefit recognized in earnings from share-based compensation arrangements for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, was \$8.0 million, \$7.9 million and \$10.1 million, respectively. Excess tax benefits of \$1.4 million, \$0.5 million and \$0.2 million were classified as a financing cash inflow during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Cash proceeds from options exercised for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were \$64.8 million, \$16.1 million and \$14.0 million, respectively. The Company generally issues shares out of treasury to satisfy stock option exercises.

The Employee Plan amends, restates and renames the DST Systems, Inc. 1995 Stock Option and Performance Award Plan ("1995 Plan"). The number of shares of common stock reserved for delivery under the Employee Plan is the sum of (a) 4.0 million shares, plus (b) the number of shares remaining under the 1995 Plan (originally 30 million shares available) as of May 10, 2005 (not subject to outstanding Awards under the 1995 Plan and not delivered out of the Shares reserved thereunder), plus (c) shares that become available under the 1995 Plan after May 10, 2005 pursuant to forfeiture, termination, lapse or satisfaction of an award in cash or property other than shares of common stock, application as payment for an award, or, except with respect to restricted stock, to satisfy tax withholding, plus (d) any shares of common stock required to satisfy substitute awards. As of December 31, 2011, approximately 5.0 million shares were available under the Employee Plan. The Employee Plan provides for the availability of shares of the Company's common stock for the grant of awards to employees, prospective employees and consultants to the Company or an affiliate. Awards under the Employee Plan may take the form of shares, dividend equivalents, options, stock appreciation rights, limited stock appreciation rights, performance units, restricted stock, restricted stock units, deferred stock, annual incentive awards, service awards and substitute awards (each as defined in the plan).

The Directors' Plan replaced the component of the 1995 Plan that provided for equity awards to directors who are not employees of DST or any affiliate. Subject to adjustment, as provided in the Directors' Plan, the number of shares of common stock reserved for delivery under this plan is the sum of (a) 300,000 shares plus (b) any shares of common stock required to satisfy substitute awards, as defined in the Directors' Plan. As of December 31, 2011, approximately 186,827 shares were available under the Directors' Plan. Awards under the Directors' Plan may take the form of shares, dividend equivalents, options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, deferred stock and substitute awards (each as defined in the plan).

Vesting terms for options granted under the Employee Plan and the Director Plan differ based on the grant made. Options vest and generally become fully exercisable over three years of continued employment, depending upon the grant type. During the years ended December 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company issued approximately 0.8 million, 0.2 million and 1.3 million common stock options, respectively. Approximately 0.2 million of the Company's 2009 option grants include performance-based conditions, as defined.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12. Equity (Continued)

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was used in estimating the fair value of options granted. Option valuation models require the input of somewhat subjective assumptions including expected stock price volatility. The Company estimates expected stock price volatility via observations of the historical (generally the last three years) volatility trends. In determining the expected life of the option grants, the Company applied the simplified method, which uses the weighted average of the vesting period and contractual term of each option granted. The risk-free interest rates used were actual U.S. Government zero-coupon rates for bonds matching the expected term of the option as of the option grant date.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using a modified Black-Scholes option pricing model. The following table provides the ranges of assumptions and weighted-average assumptions used for grants made under the option plans during 2011, 2010 and 2009, as well as the range of fair values and weighted-average fair value of options granted:

	Year Ended December 31,								
	:	2011	2010	2009					
Weighted average risk free interest rate		1.25%	2.67%	2.70%					
Range of risk free interest rates		1.25%	1.47% - 3.01%	2.67% - 2.86%					
Weighted average expected life of option (years)		6.0	6.0	6.1					
Range of expected life of option (years)		6.0	6.0 - 6.5	6.0 - 6.5					
Weighted average expected stock volatility		30.75%	35.41%	34.83%					
Range of expected stock volatilities		30.75%	34.74% - 36.60%	34.83%					
Weighted average expected dividend yield		2.21%	0.60%	n/a					
Range of expected dividend yields		2.21%	0% - 1.68%	n/a					
Weighted average stock option fair value	\$	11.38	\$15.63	\$16.99					
Range of stock option fair values	\$	11.38	\$11.44 - \$17.37	\$16.87 - \$17.75					
		1	153						

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12. Equity (Continued)

Summary stock option activity is presented in the table below (shares in millions):

		Weighted Average							
	Shares	Weighted Average Exercise Price	Remaining Contractual Life (in years)	Ir	ggregate ntrinsic Value millions)				
Outstanding at December 31, 2008	5.9	\$ 41.48	, ,	Ì					
Granted	1.3	43.83							
Exercised	(0.4)	32.31		\$	3.1				
Cancelled	(0.2)	43.86							
Outstanding at December 31, 2009	6.6	42.50							
Granted	0.2	42.54							
Exercised	(0.5)	32.07			5.3				
Cancelled	(1.2)	51.64							
Outstanding at December 31, 2010	5.1	41.39							
Granted	0.8	47.51							
Exercised	(1.5)	41.15			13.2				
Cancelled	(0.6)	56.84							
Outstanding at December 31, 2011	3.8	40.42	5.2	\$	21.7				
Exercisable at December 31, 2011	2.4	37.39	2.9	\$	20.6				

The total aggregate intrinsic value of options exercised for all plans during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 was \$13.2 million, \$5.3 million and \$3.1 million, respectively.

Grants of restricted stock may consist of restricted stock awards ("RSA's") or restricted stock units ("RSU's"). Grants of restricted stock are valued at the date of grant based on the value of DST's common stock and are expensed using the straight-line method over the service period or, in the case of performance based vesting awards, over the expected period to achieve the required performance criteria. Except for restrictions placed on the transferability of the restricted stock, holders of RSA's have full stockholders rights during the term of restriction, including voting rights and the right to receive cash dividends, if any. In 2010, the Company began issuing RSU's which do not confer full stockholder rights such as voting rights and cash dividends, but provide for additional dividend equivalent RSU awards in lieu of cash dividends. Unvested shares of restricted stock or restricted stock units may be forfeited upon termination of employment with the Company depending on the circumstances of the termination, or failure to achieve the required performance condition. The amount of unvested restricted shares outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010 is 1.2 million and 0.6 million, respectively. The Company granted approximately 2.8 million shares of restricted common stock to officers and certain other participants in November 2004. Approximately 1.6 million of these restricted shares vested in November 2009 and 0.7 million of these shares vested in January 2010, while the remaining shares were either vested or forfeited prior to December 31, 2010.

Included in the non-vested shares of outstanding restricted stock at December 31, 2011 are approximately 0.3 million of restricted shares granted in 2008 and 2007 that contain both service and

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12. Equity (Continued)

performance features based on achieving certain operating performance measures. The restrictions on the shares granted in 2008 and 2007 were originally scheduled to lapse by December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2012, respectively, assuming certain performance features are met. In February of 2010 the RSA awards with a lapse date of December 31, 2010 were exchanged for an equivalent number of RSU awards and the performance achievement period was extended to December 31, 2011. In December 2010 the Company determined that the performance criteria had been met and that the shares would vest in March of 2012 based on continuous service through this date.

The grant date fair value of these awards was approximately \$7.2 million and \$10.6 million for the 2008 and 2007 grants, respectively. The Company is amortizing the 2008 grant on a straight-line basis over the extended service period and a portion of the 2007 grant over a five year service period reflecting expectation of achievement of the required performance criteria for this portion of the 2007 awards. A portion of the 2007 grant with a grant date fair value of approximately \$5.5 million was determined during 2010 to be unlikely to achieve the required performance criteria applicable to these awards, and a total accumulated amortization of approximately \$2.5 million was reversed during the year. The Company will continue to monitor and evaluate its assumptions for its performance based awards over the applicable performance periods for these awards.

Summary restricted stock activity is presented in the table below (shares in millions):

	Shares	Weighted Average Grant Date Fair Value
Non-vested at December 31, 2008	2.6	\$ 51.66
Vested	(1.6)	49.23
Non-vested at December 31, 2009	1.0	55.41
Granted	0.5	46.20
Vested	(0.8)	49.37
Forfeited	(0.1)	67.13
Non-vested at December 31, 2010	0.6	53.17
Granted	0.6	47.94
Non-vested at December 31, 2011	1.2	\$ 50.62

The fair value of restricted stock awards which vested during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was \$2.1 million, \$36.9 million and \$77.4 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had \$42.5 million of total unrecognized compensation expense (included in Additional paid-in capital on the Consolidated Balance Sheet) related to its share based compensation arrangements, net of estimated forfeitures. The Company estimates that the amortized compensation expense attributable to the stock option and restricted stock grants will be approximately \$21.6 million for 2012, \$11.3 million for 2013, \$3.8 million for 2014 and \$0.3 million for 2015, based on awards currently outstanding. Future amortization is not projected on approximately \$5.5 million of

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12. Equity (Continued)

unrecognized compensation expense as the related awards are not currently expected to achieve their required performance features and therefore are not expected to vest.

Stock purchase plans

The 2000 DST Systems, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP") provides the right to subscribe to 2.0 million shares of common stock to substantially all employees of the Company and participating subsidiaries, except those whose customary employment is less than 20 hours per week or is five months or less per calendar year, or those who are 5% or greater stockholders of DST. The purchase price for shares under any stock offering is to be 85% of the average market price on either the exercise date or the offering date, whichever is lower. At December 31, 2011, there were approximately 0.6 million shares available for future offerings. This ESPP plan was suspended effective January 1, 2006.

Rights plan

The Company is party to a Stockholders' Rights Agreement dated as of October 10, 2005, which was amended and restated on August 5, 2011 (the "Rights Plan"). By its terms, the Rights Plan will expire on October 10, 2015. Pursuant to the terms of the Rights Plan, each share of the Company's outstanding common stock has received one Right (as defined in the Rights Plan). Each Right entitles the registered holder to purchase from the Company 1/1000ths of a share of Series A Preferred Stock, or in some circumstances, shares of the Company's Common Stock, other securities, cash or other assets, at a purchase price of \$225 per share, subject to certain adjustments. In the event a person or group becomes an Acquiring Person (as defined in the Rights Plan), the Rights will entitle each holder of a Right to purchase, for the purchase price, that number of common shares equivalent to the number of common shares which at the time of the transaction would have a market value of twice the purchase price. Any Rights that are at any time beneficially owned by an Acquiring Person (as defined in the Rights Plan) will be null and void and nontransferable and any holder of any such Right will be unable to exercise or transfer any such Right. At any time after any person or group becomes an Acquiring Person, but before a person or group becomes the beneficial owner of more than 50% of the common shares, the Board of Directors may elect to exchange each Right for consideration per Right consisting of one-half of the number of common shares that would be issuable at such time on the exercise of one Right and without payment of the purchase price. Under certain circumstances, the Company may redeem the rights in whole, but not in part, at a redemption price of \$0.0025 per Right.

The Rights, which are automatically attached to common stock, are not exercisable or transferable separately from shares of common stock until upon the earlier of (i) ten (10) business days following a public announcement that a person or group of affiliated or associated persons, together with any person acting in concert therewith, has acquired beneficial ownership of fifteen percent (15%) or more of the then outstanding shares of Common Stock (as defined in greater detail in the Rights Plan); or (ii) ten (10) business days following the commencement of a tender offer or exchange offer that would result in a person or group becoming an Acquiring Person (as defined in the Rights Plan), unless the Board of Directors sets a later date in either event.

The Rights Plan is intended to encourage a potential acquiring person to negotiate directly with the Board of Directors, but may have certain anti-takeover effects. The Rights Plan could significantly dilute the interests in the Company of an Acquiring Person. The Rights Plan may therefore have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a change in control of the Company.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

12. Equity (Continued)

Non-controlling interest

As a result of the acquisition of dsicmm on July 30, 2010, the Company's IOS subsidiary had a non-controlling investor group which initially owned approximately 29.5% of IOS. The exchange of a non-controlling interest in IOS for a controlling interest in dsicmm was initially recorded at \$22.2 million. In November 2011, the non-controlling investor group's ownership decreased to 27.3%, resulting from the contractual cancellation of shares associated with a provision in the acquisition agreement. In January 2012, DST repurchased the remaining shares held by the non-controlling investor group for \$17.7 million making IOS a wholly-owned subsidiary.

The amount included in Equity on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2011 and 2010 associated with the non-controlling interest was \$15.7 million and \$21.2 million, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2011 and for the period July 30, 2010 through December 31, 2010, the net loss primarily attributable to the IOS non-controlling interest was \$4.9 million and \$1.0 million, respectively.

13. Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors defined contribution plans that cover domestic and non-domestic employees following the completion of an eligibility period. Employer contribution expense under these plans totaled \$38.9 million, \$40.1 million and \$40.4 million during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The Company has active and non-active non-qualified deferred compensation plans for senior management, certain highly compensated employees and directors. Certain of the active plans permit existing participants to defer a portion of their compensation until termination of their employment, at which time payment of amounts deferred is made in a lump sum or annual installments. Deferred amounts earn interest at a rate determined by the Board of Directors or are credited with deemed gains or losses of the underlying hypothetical investments. Amounts deferred under these plans were approximately \$35.2 million and \$36.1 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

14. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information (in millions):

	Teal Elided December 31,							
	2	2011	1	2010	2009			
Interest paid during the year	\$	41.6	\$	36.6	\$	40.1		
Income taxes paid during the year		77 4		131.0		96.8		

The Company purchased \$9.1 million, \$3.8 million and \$2.3 million of equipment with a promissory note during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The acquisition of a customer relationship intangible asset from BFDS for debt during late 2011, in the amount of \$11.2 million, was treated as a non-cash transaction. The increase in ownership of IOS in 2011 was treated as a non-cash transaction. During 2011, DST exchanged approximately \$21.7 million of available-for-sale debt securities for an investment in a pooled fund, which was treated as a non-cash transaction. The fair value of shares issued of Innovative Output Solutions Limited of \$22.1 million, a non-cash transation, and approximately \$3.7 million of cash was the consideration given for the acquisition of dsicmm Group Limited, which resulted in DST initially owning approximately 70.5% of

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

14. Supplemental Cash Flow Information (Continued)

dsicmm. During 2010, the Company made a charitable donation of marketable securities valued at \$10.2 million.

15. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has future obligations under certain operating leases and software license agreements. The operating leases, which include facilities, data processing and other equipment, have lease terms ranging from 1 to 14 years excluding options to extend the leases for various lengths of time. Certain leases have clauses that call for the annual rents to be increased during the term of the lease. Such lease payments are expensed on a straight-line basis. Obligations under software license agreements generally relate to purchase obligations under maintenance agreements that support the software license. The Company also leases certain facilities from unconsolidated real estate affiliates.

The following rental costs were incurred (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31					31,
	2	2011	2	2010	2	2009
Rent expense	\$	43.4	\$	35.1	\$	31.9
Occupancy expenses included in above amounts that were charged by unconsolidated real estate affiliates		8.6		5.4		5.4
The Company has letters of credit of \$7.8 million outstanding for both December 31, 2011 and 2010. Letters of	of cre	dit are	secu	red by	the	
Company's debt facility.						

The Company has entered into agreements with certain officers whereby upon defined circumstances constituting a change in control of the Company, certain benefit entitlements are automatically funded and such officers are entitled to specific cash payments upon termination of employment.

The Company has established trusts to provide for the funding of corporate commitments and entitlements of Company officers, directors, employees and others in the event of a change in control of the Company. Assets held in such trusts at December 31, 2011 were not significant.

There are provisions in the 2008 BlueDoor Technologies Pty Ltd. ("BlueDoor") and 2007 TASS, LLC ("TASS") acquisition agreements that allow for additional consideration to be paid if certain targets are achieved and upon the completion of future service by the former owners of BlueDoor and TASS.

The Company has received a regulatory inquiry regarding information that the Company's pharmacy claims processing business prepared on behalf of its Medicare Part D Plan Sponsor customers that those Medicare Part D Plan Sponsor customers subsequently provided to the Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services ("CMS"), during the period 2006 to 2009. That information related to amounts that were paid to Louisiana pharmacies that dispensed prescription drugs to Medicare Part D plan members. The Company is in discussions as to the accuracy of such information and as to any civil penalties that might be assessed against the Company relative to any inaccuracies. The regulator has broad statutory authority in determining the resolution of the inquiry. The Company has recorded a \$3.5 million loss accrual at December 31, 2011, which represents the Company's best estimate of the amount to resolve the matter should inaccuracies be established. There can be no assurance that the loss accrual will be sufficient to resolve the matter.

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

The Company received a legal claim relating to a 2001 international software development agreement. Although the software was never completed, the counterparty to the agreement has asserted that DST's failure to accept the software has resulted in damages ranging up to approximately \$10 million. A District Court and a Court of Appeals each concluded in 2004 and 2006, respectively, that the conditions for acceptance were not met. In October 2011, a Court of Appeals ruled that the parties need to engage an expert to decide whether the software met the acceptance criteria. The Company is vigorously defending the case and does not believe that a loss accrual is required. Although the ultimate resolution and impact of this litigation is not presently determinable, the Company's management believes the eventual outcome of such litigation will not have a material adverse effect on the overall financial condition, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries are involved in various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of their businesses. While the ultimate outcome of these legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, it is the opinion of management, after consultation with legal counsel, that the final outcome in such proceedings, in the aggregate, would not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial condition, results of operations and cash flow of the Company.

The Company has entered into an agreement to guarantee 50% of the obligations of a 50% owned joint venture as a tenant under a real estate lease for an office building. The initial term of the lease is 10 years and 7 months, commencing March 1, 2007 and expiring September 30, 2017, with two five-year options to extend. The base rent for the initial term is \$4.8 million per year, plus all operating expenses for the building.

The Company entered into an agreement to guarantee up to \$3.0 million plus any enforcement costs related to a \$32.0 million mortgage loan to a 50% owned real estate joint venture. The \$32.0 million loan matures on June 30, 2013. Total borrowings on the loan were \$30.5 million and the Company's guarantee totaled \$1.5 million for both December 31, 2011 and 2010.

The Company's 50% owned joint ventures are generally governed by shareholder or partnership agreements. The agreements generally entitle the Company to elect one-half of the directors to the board in the case of corporations and to have 50% voting/managing interest in the case of partnerships. The agreements generally provide that the Company or the other party, if it desires to terminate the agreement, may establish a price payable in cash, or a promise to pay cash, for all of the other's ownership in the joint venture and submit a binding offer, in writing, to the other party to sell to the other party all of its ownership interests in the joint venture or to purchase all ownership interests owned by the other party at such offering price. The party receiving the offer generally has a specified period of time to either accept the offer to sell its interest, or to elect to purchase the offering party's interest, in either case at the established offering price. The Company cannot estimate the potential aggregate offering price that it could be required to receive for its interest in the case of a sale, or to pay for the other party's interest in the case of a purchase; however, the amount could be material.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

The following table sets forth the Company's contractual cash obligations including minimum rentals for the non-cancelable term of all operating leases and obligations under software license and other agreements (in millions):

		OĮ	perating		oftware license			
	Debt	1	Leases	Agreements		0	ther	Total
2012	\$ 320.8	\$	25.8	\$	25.3	\$	16.2	\$ 388.1
2013	246.2		23.5		7.0		10.9	287.6
2014	94.2		21.4		5.9		9.0	130.5
2015	376.1		17.1		5.0		3.2	401.4
2016	8.4		14.9		5.0		0.3	28.6
Thereafter	334.6		46.6				1.0	382.2
Total	\$ 1,380.3	\$	149.3	\$	48.2	\$	40.6	\$ 1,618.4

Debt includes secured promissory notes, real estate credit agreement, equipment credit facilities, term loan credit facilities, convertible debentures, senior notes, revolving credit facilities, related party promissory notes and other indebtedness described in the Debt note above.

The Company's other commercial commitments are as follows (in millions):

	Let	ndby tters tredit	Guar	antees	Total				
2012	\$	7.8	\$		\$	7.8			
2013				1.5		1.5			
2014									
2015									
2016									
Total	\$	7.8	\$	1.5	\$	9.3			

In addition to the guarantees entered into as mentioned above, the Company has also guaranteed certain obligations of certain joint ventures under service agreements entered into by the joint ventures and their customers. The amount of such obligations is not stated in the agreements. Depending on the negotiated terms of the guaranty and/or the underlying service agreement, the Company's liability under the guaranty may be subject to time and materiality limitations, monetary caps and other conditions and defenses.

In certain instances in which the Company licenses proprietary systems to customers, the Company gives certain warranties and infringement indemnities to the licensee, the terms of which vary depending on the negotiated terms of each respective license agreement, but which generally warrant that such systems will perform in accordance with their specifications. The amount of such obligations is not stated in the license agreements. The Company's liability for breach of such warranties may be subject to time and materiality limitations, monetary caps and other conditions and defenses.

From time to time, the Company enters into agreements with unaffiliated parties containing indemnification provisions, the terms of which vary depending on the negotiated terms of each

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

respective agreement. The amount of such obligations is not stated in the agreements. The Company's liability under such indemnification provisions may be subject to time and materiality limitations, monetary caps and other conditions and defenses. Such indemnity obligations include the following:

The Company has entered into purchase and service agreements with its vendors, and consulting agreements with providers of consulting services to the Company, pursuant to which the Company has agreed to indemnify certain of such vendors and consultants, respectively, against third party claims arising from the Company's use of the vendor's product or the services of the vendor or consultant.

In connection with the acquisition or disposition of subsidiaries, operating units and business assets by the Company, the Company has entered into agreements containing indemnification provisions, the terms of which vary depending on the negotiated terms of each respective agreement, but which are generally described as follows: (i) in connection with acquisitions made by the Company, the Company has agreed to indemnify the seller against third party claims made against the seller relating to the subject subsidiary, operating unit or asset and arising after the closing of the transaction, and (ii) in connection with dispositions made by the Company, the Company has agreed to indemnify the buyer against damages incurred by the buyer due to the buyer's reliance on representations and warranties relating to the subject subsidiary, operating unit or business assets in the disposition agreement if such representations or warranties were untrue when made, or due to any breach of the representations, warranties, agreements or covenants contained in the agreement.

The Company has entered into agreements with certain third parties, including banks and escrow agents that provide software escrow, fiduciary and other services to the Company or to its benefit plans or customers. Under such agreements, the Company has agreed to indemnify such service providers for third party claims relating to the carrying out of their respective duties under such agreements.

The Company has entered into agreements with lenders providing financing to the Company pursuant to which the Company agrees to indemnify such lenders for third party claims arising from or relating to such financings. In connection with real estate mortgage financing, the Company has entered into environmental indemnity agreements in which the Company has agreed to indemnify the lenders for any damage sustained by the lenders relating to any environmental contamination on the subject properties.

In connection with the acquisition or disposition of real estate by the Company, the Company has entered into real estate contracts containing indemnification provisions, the terms of which vary depending on the negotiated terms of each respective contract, but which are generally described as follows: (i) in connection with acquisitions by the Company, the Company has agreed to indemnify the seller against third party claims made against the seller arising from the Company's on-site inspections, tests and investigations of the subject property made by the Company as part of its due diligence and against third party claims relating to the operations on the subject property after the closing of the transaction, and (ii) in connection with dispositions by the Company, the Company has agreed to indemnify the buyer for damages incurred by the buyer due to the buyer's reliance on representations and warranties relating to the subject property made by the Company in the real estate contract if such representations or warranties were untrue when made and against third party claims relating to operations on the subject property prior to the closing of the transaction.

In connection with the leasing of real estate by the Company, as landlord and as tenant, the Company has entered into occupancy leases containing indemnification provisions, the terms of which vary

Table of Contents

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

15. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

depending on the negotiated terms of each respective lease, but which are generally described as follows: (i) in connection with leases in which the Company is the tenant, the Company has agreed to indemnify the landlord against third party claims relating to the Company's occupancy of the subject property, including claims arising from loss of life, bodily injury and/or damage to property thereon, and (ii) in connection with leases in which the Company is the landlord, the Company has agreed to indemnify the tenant against third party claims to the extent occasioned wholly or in part by any negligent act or omission of the Company or arising from loss of life, bodily injury and/or damage to property in or upon any of the common areas or other areas under the Company's control.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company had not accrued any liability on the aforementioned guarantees or indemnifications as they relate to future performance criteria or indirect guarantees of indebtedness of others in accordance with accounting and reporting guidance on guarantees, including indirect guarantees of indebtedness of others.

16. Segment and Geographic Information

The Company's operating business units offer sophisticated information processing and software services and products. These businesses are reported as two operating Segments (Financial Services and Output Solutions). In addition, investments in the Company's real estate subsidiaries and affiliates, equity securities, private equity investments and certain financial interests have been aggregated into the Investments and Other Segment.

The Output Solutions Segment leases its California, Connecticut and Missouri production facilities from the Investments and Other Segment, but the Company reports financial results for the Output Solutions Segment on the basis that the Output Solutions Segment owns its production facilities. Management believes reporting Output Solutions on this basis improves its ability to analyze the Output Solutions Segment operating results taking into consideration the special purpose nature of the production plants. The Investments and Other Segment continues to present rental revenues from the Output Solutions Segment along with the related depreciation expense associated with the properties, while the elimination of the inter-segment activity is included in the Elimination Adjustments.

The Company evaluates the performance of its Segments based on income before income taxes, interest expense and non-controlling interest. Intersegment revenues are reflected at rates prescribed by the Company and may not be reflective of market rates.

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16. Segment and Geographic Information (Continued)

Summarized financial information concerning the Company's segments is shown in the following tables (in millions):

Year Ended December 31, 2011										
Financial Services		- · · · x · · ·		Investments/ Other		Elimination Adjustments		Co	nsolidated Total	
\$	1,129.6	\$	602.1	\$	12.3	\$		\$	1,744.0	
	8.8		7.7		44.0		(60.5)			
	42.1		607.0		1.6		(6.0)		644.7	
	1,180.5		1,216.8		57.9		(66.5)		2,388.7	
	866.1		1,148.9		38.0		(56.0)		1,997.0	
	76.5		46.7		11.0		(2.6)		131.6	
	237.9		21.2		8.9		(7.9)		260.1	
	6.6		0.1		32.0				38.7	
	22.0		0.6		(0.9)				21.7	
\$	266.5	\$	21.9	\$	40.0	\$	(7.9)	\$	320.5	
	\$	Services \$ 1,129.6	Services St. \$1,129.6 \$ \$42.1	Financial Services Output Solutions \$ 1,129.6 \$ 602.1 8.8 7.7 42.1 607.0 1,180.5 1,216.8 866.1 1,148.9 76.5 46.7 237.9 21.2 6.6 0.1 22.0 0.6	Financial Services Output Solutions In Solutions \$ 1,129.6 \$ 602.1 \$ 8.8 \$ 8.8 7.7 42.1 607.0 \$ 1,180.5 \$ 1,216.8 \$ 866.1 \$ 1,148.9 \$ 76.5 \$ 46.7 \$ 237.9 \$ 21.2 \$ 6.6 \$ 0.1 \$ 22.0 \$ 0.6 \$ 0.6 \$ 0.6 \$ 0.6 \$ 0.6	Financial Services Output Solutions Investments/ Other \$ 1,129.6 \$ 602.1 \$ 12.3 8.8 7.7 44.0 42.1 607.0 1.6 1,180.5 1,216.8 57.9 866.1 1,148.9 38.0 76.5 46.7 11.0 237.9 21.2 8.9 6.6 0.1 32.0 22.0 0.6 (0.9)	Financial Services Output Solutions Investments/ Other Elimin Adjusts \$ 1,129.6 \$ 602.1 \$ 12.3 \$ 44.0 8.8 7.7 44.0 42.1 607.0 1.6 1,180.5 1,216.8 57.9 866.1 1,148.9 38.0 76.5 46.7 11.0 237.9 21.2 8.9 6.6 0.1 32.0 22.0 0.6 (0.9)	Financial Services Output Solutions Investments/ Other Elimination Adjustments \$ 1,129.6 \$ 602.1 \$ 12.3 \$ 8.8 8.8 7.7 44.0 (60.5) 42.1 607.0 1.6 (6.0) 1,180.5 1,216.8 57.9 (66.5) 866.1 1,148.9 38.0 (56.0) 76.5 46.7 11.0 (2.6) 237.9 21.2 8.9 (7.9) 6.6 0.1 32.0 22.0 0.6 (0.9)	Financial Services Output Solutions Investments/ Other Elimination Adjustments Co Adjustments \$ 1,129.6 \$ 602.1 \$ 12.3 \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$	

	Year Ended December 31, 2010										
	Financial Services			Output olutions	Investments/ Other		Elimination Adjustments		onsolidated Total		
Operating revenues	\$	1,145.8	\$	556.0	\$	11.8	\$	\$	1,713.6		
Intersegment operating revenues		10.9		8.1		46.0	(65.0))			
Out-of-pocket reimbursements		44.6		575.8		0.4	(5.9)	614.9		
Total revenues		1,201.3		1,139.9		58.2	(70.9)	2,328.5		
Costs and expenses		848.3		1,013.3		47.3	(60.4	.)	1,848.5		
Depreciation and amortization		79.4		47.8		10.8	(2.0	<u>(</u>	135.4		
Income (loss) from operations		273.6		78.8		0.1	(7.9)	344.6		
Other income (expense), net		(0.3)		0.7		141.3			141.7		
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates		36.5		0.1		(0.2)			36.4		
Earnings before interest, income taxes and non-controlling											
interest	\$	309.8	\$	79.6	\$	141.2	\$ (7.9) \$	522.7		

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16. Segment and Geographic Information (Continued)

	Year Ended December 31, 2009										
			Output Solutions		In	vestments/ Other	Elimination Adjustments	C	onsolidated Total		
Operating revenues	\$	1,106.0	\$	477.4	\$	12.0	\$	\$	1,595.4		
Intersegment operating revenues		9.2		4.9		47.4	(61.5)			
Out-of-pocket reimbursements		54.3		571.5		0.7	(4.0))	622.5		
Total revenues		1,169.5		1,053.8		60.1	(65.5)	2,217.9		
Costs and expenses		840.6		989.6		38.2	(55.2))	1,813.2		
Depreciation and amortization		80.3		41.5		11.2	(2.6))	130.4		
Income (loss) from operations		248.6		22.7		10.7	(7.7))	274.3		
Other expense, net		44.5		0.5		40.1			85.1		
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated affiliates		38.1				(0.8)			37.3		
Earnings before interest, income taxes and non-controlling											
interest	\$	331.2	\$	23.2	\$	50.0	\$ (7.7)	\$	396.7		

Earnings before interest, income taxes and non-controlling interest in the segment reporting information above less interest expense of \$46.5 million, \$46.1 million and \$42.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, is equal to the Company's income before income taxes and non-controlling interest on a consolidated basis for the corresponding year.

Information concerning the revenues of principal geographic areas is as follows (in millions):

	Year Ended December 31,										
		2011		2010		2009					
Revenues(1):											
U.S.	\$	1,942.3	\$	2,061.0	\$	2,032.9					
U.K.		269.0		133.8		75.9					
Canada		51.3		49.7		48.8					
Australia		78.2		45.7		34.2					
Others		47.9		38.3		26.1					
	\$	2,388.7	\$	2,328.5	\$	2,217.9					

Revenues are attributed to countries based on location of the client.

164

(1)

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

16. Segment and Geographic Information (Continued)

Information concerning total assets by reporting segment is as follows (in millions):

December 31,

	2011	2010
Financial Services	\$ 1,799.5	\$ 1,639.9
Output Solutions	476.9	457.6
Investments and Other	1,220.8	1,329.1
Elimination Adjustments	(68.6)	(87.2)
	\$ 3,428.6	\$ 3,339.4

Information concerning the long-lived assets of principal geographic areas is as follows (in millions):

December 31,

	2011	2010
Long-lived assets:		
U.S.	\$ 434.7	\$ 441.9
U.K.	91.8	97.3
Canada	23.2	14.9
Australia	7.4	8.2
Others	5.0	5.6
	\$ 562.1	\$ 567.9

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

(in millions, except per share amounts):

	Year En First Second Quarter Quarter		ded Decembe Third Quarter		er 31, 2011 Fourth Quarter		Total	
Operating revenues	\$	429.5	\$ 424.1	\$	433.1	\$	457.3	\$ 1,744.0
Out-of-pocket reimbursements		162.2	158.1		158.3		166.1	644.7
•								
Total revenues		591.7	582.2		591.4		623.4	2,388.7
Cost and expenses		492.3	477.6		496.5		530.6	1,997.0
Depreciation and amortization		30.1	31.3		33.7		36.5	131.6
Income from operations		69.3	73.3		61.2		56.3	260.1
Interest expense		(11.7)	(12.0)		(10.9)		(11.9)	(46.5)
Other income (expense), net		17.2	14.6		(4.5)		11.4	38.7
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates		8.4	7.2		1.7		4.4	21.7
Income before income taxes and non-controlling interest		83.2	83.1		47.5		60.2	274.0
Income taxes		30.1	28.7		14.0		23.0	95.8
Net income		53.1	54.4		33.5		37.2	178.2
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest		0.3	0.8		1.8		2.0	4.9
Net income attributable to DST Systems, Inc.	\$	53.4	\$ 55.2	\$	35.3	\$	39.2	\$ 183.1
Average common shares outstanding		46.4	46.5		45.8		44.1	45.7
Basic earnings per share	\$	1.15	\$ 1.19	\$	0.77	\$	0.89	\$ 4.01(1)
Average diluted shares outstanding		47.0	47.2		46.4		44.7	46.3
Diluted earnings per share	\$	1.14	\$ 1.17	\$	0.76	\$	0.88	\$ 3.95(1)
Cash dividends per share of common stock	\$	0.35	\$	\$	0.35	\$		\$ 0.70

(1) Earnings per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented. Accordingly, the accumulation of 2011 quarterly earnings per share may not equal the total computed for the year.

DST Systems, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

17. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) (Continued)

			Year Ended December Second Third Ouarter Ouarter		er 31, 2010 Fourth Quarter		Total		
Operating revenues	\$	409.4	\$	465.6	\$	413.7	\$	424.9	\$ 1,713.6
Out-of-pocket reimbursements		157.3		148.3		153.5		155.8	614.9
Total revenues		566.7		613.9		567.2		580.7	2,328.5
Cost and expenses		468.1		436.0		459.3		485.1	1,848.5
Depreciation and amortization		30.3		35.6		33.5		36.0	135.4
•									
Income from operations		68.3		142.3		74.4		59.6	344.6
Interest expense		(9.9)		(11.7)		(12.1)		(12.4)	(46.1)
Other income, net		54.4		4.0		9.4		73.9	141.7
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates		8.3		9.8		8.9		9.4	36.4
Income before income taxes and non-controlling interest		121.1		144.4		80.6		130.5	476.6
Income taxes		44.2		50.4		26.4		38.1	159.1
Net income		76.9		94.0		54.2		92.4	317.5
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest						0.1		0.9	1.0
Net income attributable to DST Systems, Inc.	\$	76.9	\$	94.0	\$	54.3	\$	93.3	\$ 318.5
• /									
Average common shares outstanding		48.3		46.7		46.6		46.2	46.9
e e	\$	1.59	\$	2.01	\$	1.17	\$	2.02	\$ 6.78(1)
<i>5</i> 1									
Average diluted shares outstanding		48.7		47.0		46.9		46.7	47.3
Diluted earnings per share	\$	1.58	\$	2.00	\$	1.16	\$	2.00	\$ 6.73(1)
Cash dividends per share of common stock	\$	0.30	\$		\$		\$	0.30	\$ 0.60
Basic earnings per share Average diluted shares outstanding Diluted earnings per share		1.59 48.7 1.58	\$	2.01		1.17	\$	2.02 46.7 2.00	6.78(1) 47.3 6.73(1)

(1)
Earnings per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented. Accordingly, the accumulation of 2010 quarterly earnings per share may not equal the total computed for the year.

Table of Contents

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures and Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As of the end of the fiscal year for which this annual report on Form 10-K is filed, the Company's Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's disclosure controls and procedures. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures (i) are effective for recording, processing, summarizing and reporting, within the time periods specified in the Securities and Exchange Commission's rules and forms, the information required to be disclosed by the Company in reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"), and (ii) include controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in such reports is accumulated and communicated to the Company's management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. There has been no change in the Company's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the last fiscal quarter of the fiscal year for which this annual report on Form 10-K is filed that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting.

Report of Management on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, the Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in *Internal Control Integrated Framework* issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the framework in *Internal Control Integrated Framework*, management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2011.

The effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears herein.

Item 9B. Other Information

None

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The Company has incorporated by reference certain information in response or partial response to the Items under this Part III of this Annual Report on Form 10-K pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of this Form 10-K and Rule 12b-23 under the Exchange Act. The Company's definitive proxy statement in connection with its annual meeting of stockholders scheduled for May 8, 2012 (the "Definitive Proxy Statement"), will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission no later than 120 days after December 31, 2011.

(a) Directors of the Company

The information set forth in response to Item 401 of Regulation S-K under the heading "The Board of Directors" in the Company's Definitive Proxy Statement is hereby incorporated herein by reference in partial response to this Item 10.

(b) Executive Officers of the Company

The information set forth in response to Item 401 of Regulation S-K under the heading "Executive Officers of the Company" in Part I of this Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference in partial response to this Item 10.

(c) Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act

The information set forth in response to Item 405 of Regulation S-K under the heading "Insider Disclosures" in the Company's Definitive Proxy Statement is hereby incorporated herein by reference in partial response to this Item 10.

(d) Code of Ethics

The Company has adopted Standards of Business Conduct (the "Standards") that apply to directors, officers (including, among others, the Company's principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions) and employees. The Company has posted its Standards on its Internet website at www.dstsystems.com. The Company will also post on this Internet website any amendments to, or waivers from, a provision of its Standards that apply to the Company's principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer, or persons performing similar functions as required by applicable rules and regulations.

(e) Audit Committee and Audit Committee Financial Expert

The information set forth in response to Item 407(d)(4) and (d)(5) of Regulation S-K under the headings "The Board of Directors and "Board Committee Matters and Reports" Audit Committee" in the Company's Definitive Proxy Statement is hereby incorporated herein by reference in partial response to this Item 10.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information set forth in response to Item 402 of Regulation S-K under the sections "Non-Employee Director Compensation," "Compensation Discussion and Analysis," "Named Officer Compensation," "Insider Disclosures," "Compensation Committee Report", and "Board Committee Matters and Reports Compensation Committee" in the Company's Definitive Proxy Statement is hereby incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 11.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information set forth in response to Item 403 of Regulation S-K under the heading "Beneficial Ownership" in the Company's Definitive Proxy Statement is hereby incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 12.

The Company has no knowledge of any arrangement the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a change of control of the Company.

The following table provides information as of December 31, 2011 about DST stock that may be issued under the DST Systems, Inc. 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2005 Plan") upon the exercise of options, warrants and rights, as well as other year-end information about our equity compensation plans.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Plan Category	A Number of securities to be issued upon exercise of options, warrants and rights outstanding as of December 31, 2011(#)	B Weighted average exercise price of outstanding options, warrants and rights shown in column A (\$)	C Number of securities remaining available for issuance as of December 31, 2011 under equity compensation plans (excluding securities reflected in column A)(#)		
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders	4,826,050(1)	\$ 31.77(1)(2)	5,162,767(3)		
DST Systems, Inc. 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP")	None	None	589,844(4)		
Equity compensation plans not approved by stockholders	None	None	None		

(1) The number shown does not include:

Restricted DST stock issued under the 2005 Plan. The number of shares of restricted stock outstanding under the 2005 Plan as of December 31, 2011, is 125,728.

Service awards of DST stock that may be earned under the 2005 Plan in recognition of years of service (five shares for five years of employment, ten shares for ten years, and so forth in five year increments). The number of service award shares earned under the 2005 Plan for anniversaries reached during the year ended December 31, 2011 is 16,450. The average grant price of shares granted as service awards during 2011 was \$49.0528.

Securities available under the DST Systems, Inc. 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESPP"). Information on the ESPP, which was approved by stockholders and has been suspended, is shown separately below in Note 4.

- (2)

 Column A includes securities that may be issued at a future date in connection with stock option grants and restricted stock units under the 2005 Plan.
- These are the shares available for issuance in connection with the granting of annual incentive awards, stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, stock awards, restricted stock units, deferred stock, dividend equivalents, anniversary service awards, substitute awards, or any other right, interest or option relating to shares of DST stock granted pursuant to either the provisions

of the 2005 Plan or of the 2005 Non-Employee Directors' Award Plan.

Table of Contents

(4)

The ESPP was suspended beginning for plan year 2006 and no shares have been issued for the 2006 through 2011 plan years. The suspension will continue until otherwise determined by the Committee. The number shown is the number available for issuance should the Committee lift the suspension.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

The information set forth in response to Item 404 and Item 407(a) of Regulation S-K under the headings "Insider Disclosures" and "The Board of Directors Independence and Accessibility" in the Company's Definitive Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 13.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information set forth in response to Item 9(e) of Schedule 14A under the heading "Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm" in the Company's Definitive Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference in response to this Item 14.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

(a) List of Documents filed as part of this Report

(1)

Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements and related notes, together with the report of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, appear in Part II Item 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Data of this Form 10-K.

The consolidated financial statements consist of the following:

- Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010;
- Consolidated Statement of Income for the three years ended December 31, 2011;
- 3. Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the three years ended December 31, 2011;
- Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the three years ended December 31, 2011.
- 5. Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
- (2) Consolidated Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable, are insignificant or the required information is shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(3) List of Exhibits

The Company has incorporated by reference herein certain exhibits as specified below pursuant to Rule 12b-32 under the Exchange Act.

Table of Contents

2. Plan of acquisition, reorganization, arrangement, liquidation or succession

- 2.1 Agreement of Limited Partnership for International Financial Data Services Limited Partnership, effective as of January 31, 2001, by and among the Company, State Street Corporation, and entities related to the Company and State Street Corporation, attached to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (Commission File No. 1-14036) as Exhibit 2.1, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 2.1.
- 2.2 Agreement dated as of December 23, 1992 by and among State Street Boston Corporation, DST Systems International B.V., and Clarke & Tilley Limited (currently, International Financial Data Services Limited), attached to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (Commission File No. 1-14036) as Exhibit 2.2, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 2.2. Portions of this agreement have been redacted pursuant to a request for confidential treatment filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
- 2.3 Share Transfer Restriction and Option Agreement dated as of December 23, 1992, by and among the Company, State Street Boston Corporation, and Clarke & Tilley Limited (currently, International Financial Data Services Limited), attached to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (Commission File No. 1-14036) as Exhibit 2.1, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 2.3.
- 2.4 The Share Purchase and Sale Agreement among Innovative Output Solutions Limited and various sellers, including but not limited to Mark Thomas Felstead, Susan Ann Felstead, and Andrew Young, of the issued share capital of dsicmm Group Limited, which is attached as Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2010 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 2.4. Portions of this agreement have been redacted pursuant to a granted request for confidential treatment filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
- 2.5 Merger Agreement, dated as of July 19, 2011, by and among DST Systems, Inc., Kettle Holdings, Inc., ALPS Holdings, Inc. and LM ALPS SR LLC, on behalf of the Company Stockholders and Participating Optionholders, which is attached as Exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 21, 2011 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 2.5.

3. Articles of Incorporation and by-laws

- 3.1.1 The Company's Amended Delaware Certificate of Incorporation, as restated, which is attached as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on September 1, 1995, as amended (Registration No. 33-96526) (the "IPO Registration Statement"), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 3.1.l.
- 3.1.2 The Company's Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation, dated May 9, 2000, which is attached as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated May 15, 2000 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 3.1.2.
- 3.1.3 The Company's Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation, dated May 11, 2004, which is attached as Exhibit 3.1.2 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated August 9, 2004 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 3.1.3.

Table of Contents

- 3.2 The Company's Amended and Restated Bylaws, dated as of May 10, 2010, which are attached as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 17, 2010 (Commission File No.1-14036), are hereby incorporated as Exhibit 3.2.
- 4. Instruments defining the rights of security holders, including indentures
 - 4.1 The Certificate of Designations, dated October 16, 1995, establishing the Series A Preferred Stock of the Company, which is attached as Exhibit 4.3 to the Company's IPO Registration Statement, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.1.
 - 4.2 The summary of the preferred stock purchase rights set forth in the Company's Registration Statement on Form 8-A, dated November 15, 1995, in connection with the listing of the preferred stock purchase rights on the New York Stock Exchange (the "Form 8-A") (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.2.
 - 4.3.1 Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated as of August 5, 2011 ("Rights Agreement"), between DST Systems, Inc. and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. as Rights Agent, which is attached as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2011 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.3.1.
 - 4.3.2 The Assignment, Acceptance and Consent, dated as of November 7, 2001, among the Company, State Street Bank and Trust Company, and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. (previously EquiServe Trust Company, N.A.), which is attached as Exhibit 4.3.4 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.3.2.
 - 4.4 The description of the Company's common stock, par value \$0.01 per share, set forth in the Company's Registration Statement on Form 8-A, dated October 30, 1995 (Commission File No. 1-14036), as amended by Form 8-A12B/A, Amendment No. 1, dated March 14, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.4.
 - 4.5 Paragraphs fourth, fifth, sixth, seventh, tenth, eleventh, and twelfth of Exhibit 3.1.1, as amended by Exhibits 3.1.2 and 3.1.3, are hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.5.
 - 4.6 Article I, Sections 1, 2, 3, and 11 of Article II, Article V, Article VIII, Article IX of Exhibit 3.2, are hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.6.
 - 4.7.1 The Form of Indenture between the Company and the Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as trustee, under which Series C debentures were issued ("Series C Indenture"), which is attached as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 1, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.7.1.
 - 4.7.2 Supplemental Indenture No. 1 to the Series C Indenture, which is attached as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 30, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.7.2.
 - 4.8 The Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 12, 2003, between the Company and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Banc of America Securities LLC, as representatives of the several initial purchasers in connection with the private offering of the debentures (the "2003 Registration Rights Agreement"), which is attached as Exhibit 4.5 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 13, 2003 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.8.

Table of Contents

- 4.9 The form of the global security for the Company's 4.125% Series C Convertible Senior Debentures due 2023 in the amount of \$190.4 million, which is attached as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 1, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.9.
- 4.10 The form of the global security for the Company's 4.125% Series C Convertible Senior Debentures due 2023 in the amount of \$66.6 million, which is attached as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 30, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.10.
- 4.11 The Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 31, 1995, between the Company and UMB Bank, N.A. ("UMB") as trustee of The Employee Stock Ownership Plan of DST Systems, Inc. (the "1995 Registration Rights Agreement"), which is attached as Exhibit 4.4 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.11.
- 4.12 The Notes Purchase Agreement, dated August 9, 2010, by and among the Company and the Purchasers named therein, and the forms of the Series A, Series B Notes, Series C Notes and Series D Notes, which are attached as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 11, 2010, are hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 4.12.

The Company agrees to furnish to the Commission a copy of any long-term debt agreements that do not exceed 10 percent of the total assets of the Company upon request.

9. Voting Trust Agreement

Not applicable.

10. Material Contracts

- 10.1 The Amended and Restated Joint Venture Agreement regarding Boston Financial Data Services, Inc., effective as of October 31, 2006, between the Company and State Street Corporation, which is attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2006 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.1. Portions of this agreement have been redacted pursuant to a granted request for confidential treatment filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
- 10.2 The Company's Executive Plan, effective as of October 31, 1995 and terminated effective December 31, 1995, which is attached as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995 (Commission File No. 1-14036), as amended effective September 30, 2007 as described in the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 4, 2007 (Commission File No. 1-14036), and as further amended effective January 1, 2009, as described in the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 7, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.2.*
- 10.3 The Company's Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, amended and restated as of January 1, 2009, which is attached as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 7, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.3.*

Table of Contents

- 10.4 The Company's Directors' Deferred Fee Plan, amended and restated as of January 1, 2009, which is attached as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 7, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.4.*
- 10.5 The Sixth Amendment to and Restatement of DST Systems, Inc. Trust Agreement to DST-Executive Plan, Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, and Incentive Deferred Cash Program, between the Company as Settlor and Marshall & Ilsley, dated August 3, 2011, which is attached as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2011 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.5.*
- 10.6 The Thirteenth Amendment to and Restatement of DST Systems, Inc. Trust Agreement to DST-Directors' Deferred Fees, between the Company as Settlor and Marshall & Ilsley Trust Company as Trustee, dated August 3, 2011, which is attached as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2011 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.6.*
- 10.7 The Thirteenth Amendment to and Restatement of DST Systems, Inc. Trust Agreement to DST-Employment Continuation Agreement, dated August 3, 2011, between the Company as Settlor and Marshall & Ilsley, which is 7 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2011 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.7.*
- 10.8 The Thirteenth Amendment to and Restatement of DST Systems, Inc. Trust Agreement to DST-Incentive Compensation, between the Company as Settlor and Marshall & Ilsley, dated August 3, 2011, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.8.*
- 10.9 The Employment Agreement between the Company and Thomas A. McDonnell, amended and restated as of December 31, 2008, which is attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 7, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.9.*
- 10.10 The Employment Agreement between the Company and Kenneth V. Hager, amended and restated as of December 31, 2008, which is attached as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 7, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.10.*
- 10.11 The Employment Agreement between the Company and Thomas R. Abraham, amended and restated as of December 31, 2008, which is attached as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 7, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.11.*
- 10.12 The Employment Agreement between the Company and Stephen C. Hooley, dated as of June 30, 2009, which is attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 2, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.12.*
- 10.13 The Company's 2005 Equity Incentive Plan, amended and restated as of February 24, 2012, which is attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 10.5, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.13.*
- 10.14.1 The Company's 2005 Non-Employee Directors' Award Plan, effective May 10, 2005, which is attached as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 12, 2005 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.14.1.*

Table of Contents

- 10.14.2 The First Amendment to the 2005 Non-Employee Directors' Award Plan, dated November 30, 2005, which is attached as Exhibit 10.17.2 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2005 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.14.2.*
- 10.15 The Form of Deferred Cash Award Agreement, which is attached as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.15.*
- 10.16 The Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (time vesting), which is attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 10.1, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.16.*
- 10.17 The Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (performance and time vesting), which is attached as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 21, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.17.*
- 10.18 The Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (performance vesting), which is attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 10.2, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.18.*
- 10.19 The Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (performance and time vesting), which is attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 4, 2010, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.19.*
- 10.20.1 The Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, dated as of February 23, 2010, between the Company and Steve J. Towle ("Towle RSU Agreement"), attached to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2010 (Commission File No. 1-14036) as Exhibit 10.2, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.20.1.*
- 10.20.2 The First Amendment, dated as of December 29, 2010, to the Towle RSU Agreement, attached to Exhibit 10.3, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.20.2.*
- 10.21.1 The Credit Agreement among the Company, Bank of America N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer, and other lenders, dated as of April 16, 2010 ("Syndicated Agreement"), which is attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on April 20, 2010 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.21.1.
- 10.21.2 The First Amendment, dated as of August 9, 2010, to the Syndicated Agreement, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 11, 2010 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.21.2.
- 10.21.3 The Second Amendment to the Syndicated Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2011, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 6, 2011 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.21.3.
- 10.21.4 The Third Amendment to the Syndicated Agreement, dated as of December 12, 2011, which amendment is attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 10.3, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.21.4.
- 10.22.1 The Receivables Purchase Agreement, among Fountain City Finance, LLC; Enterprise Funding Company LLC; Bank of America, National Association; the Company and certain Company subsidiaries, dated May 21, 2009 (the "Receivables Agreement"), which is attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 28, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.22.1.

Table of Contents

- 10.22.2 The First Amendment, dated as of June 30, 2009, to the Receivables Agreement, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.22.2.
- 10.22.3 The Second Amendment, dated as of December 31, 2009, to the Receivables Agreement, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2009 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.22.3.
- 10.22.4 The Third Amendment, dated as of March 30, 2010, to the Receivables Agreement, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2010 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.22.4.
- 10.22.5 The Fourth Amendment, dated as of May 20, 2010, to the Receivables Agreement, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2010 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.22.5.
- 10.22.6 The Fifth Amendment, dated as of May 19, 2011, to Receivables Agreement, which amendment is attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 25, 2011 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.22.6.
- 10.22.7 The Sixth Amendment, dated as of December 22, 2011, to Receivables Agreement, which amendment is attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 10.4, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.22.7.
- 10.23 The Credit Agreement by and among DST Realty, Inc., Westside Investment Park, L.L.C., DST Realty of California, Inc., DST Realty Connecticut, Inc. and a syndicate of financial institutions including but not limited to Bank of the West and Enterprise Bank and Trust, dated September 16, 2008, which is attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 22, 2008 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.23.
- 10.24 Term Letter Loan Agreement, dated as of October 28, 2011, between the Company and Bank of America, N.A., which is attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 2, 2011 (Commission File No. 1-14036), is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.24.
- 10.25 The Shareholders' Agreement in respect of Innovative Output Solutions Limited, dated July 30, 2010, attached as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 5, 2010, is hereby incorporated by reference as Exhibit 10.25. Portions of this agreement have been redacted pursuant to a granted request for confidential treatment filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
- 10.26 The Series C Indenture and Supplement No. 1 Thereto (see Exhibits 4.8.1 and 4.8.2).
- 10.27 The Rights Agreement. (See Exhibit 4.3.1)
- 10.28 The 2003 Registration Rights Agreement. (See Exhibit 4.9)
- 10.29 The 1995 Registration Rights Agreement. (See Exhibit 4.14)

Represents a management contract or a compensatory plan or arrangement.

11. Statement re computation of per share earnings

Not applicable.

12. Statements re computation of ratios

12.1 The Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges prepared pursuant to Item 601(b)(12) of Regulation S-K is attached to this Form 10-K as Exhibit 12.1.

13. Annual report to security holders, Form 10-Q or quarterly report to security holders

Not applicable.

14. Code of Ethics

Not Applicable.

16. Letter re change in certifying accountant

Not applicable.

18. Letter re change in accounting principles

Not applicable.

21. Subsidiaries of the Company

The list of the Company's significant subsidiaries prepared pursuant to Item 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K is attached hereto as Exhibit 21.

22. Published report regarding matters submitted to vote of security holders

Not applicable.

23. Consents of experts and counsel

The consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is attached hereto as Exhibit 23.

24. Power of attorney

Not applicable.

31. Rule 13a-14(a) Certifications

- 31.1 Certification of Thomas A. McDonnell, Chief Executive Officer of Registrant, is attached hereto as Exhibit 31.1.
- 31.2 Certification of Kenneth V. Hager, Chief Financial Officer of Registrant, is attached hereto as Exhibit 31.2.

Table of Contents

32. Section 1350 Certifications

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 of Thomas A. McDonnell, Chief Executive Officer of Registrant, and Kenneth V. Hager, Chief Financial Officer of Registrant, is attached hereto as Exhibit 32.

Exhibit 32 shall be deemed "furnished" and not "filed" for the purposes of or otherwise subject to the liabilities under Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and shall not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into the filings of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933.

99. Additional exhibits

Not applicable

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Company has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

	DST SY	DST SYSTEMS, INC.				
	Ву:	/s/ THOMAS A. MCDONNELL				
Dated: February 29, 2012	_	Thomas A. McDonnell Chief Executive Officer and Director				
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1 Company and in the capacities indicated on February 24, 2012.	934, this report	nas been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the				
/s/ A. EDWARD ALLINSON		/s/ THOMAS A. MCDONNELL				
A. Edward Allinson Director		Thomas A. McDonnell Chief Executive Officer and Director				
/s/ GEORGE L. ARGYROS		/s/ STEPHEN C. HOOLEY				
George L. Argyros Director		Stephen C. Hooley President and Chief Operating Officer				
/s/ LAWRENCE M. HIGBY		/s/ KENNETH V. HAGER				
Lawrence M. Higby Director		Kenneth V. Hager Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer (Principal Financial Officer)				
/s/ ROBERT T. JACKSON		/s/ GREGG WM. GIVENS				
Robert T. Jackson Director		Gregg Wm. Givens Vice President and Chief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)				
/s/ THOMAS A. MCCULLOUGH						
Thomas A. McCullough Director						
/s/ WILLIAM C. NELSON						
William C. Nelson Director						
/s/ TRAVIS E. REED						

Travis E. Reed

Director

/s/ M. JEANNINE STRANDJORD

M. Jeannine Strandjord

Director

DST Systems, Inc. Form 10-K Annual Report for the Period Ended December 31, 2011 Index to Exhibits

The following Exhibits are attached to and incorporated by reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. See Part IV above for a complete list of exhibits. The exhibits listed below are not included in the printed Form 10-K, but are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

- 10.1 The Form of Stock Option Award Agreement (time vesting)
- 10.2 The Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (performance vesting)
- 10.3 The Third Amendment to the Syndicated Agreement
- 10.4 The Sixth Amendment to the Receivables Agreement
- 10.5 The Amended and Restated 2005 Equity Incentive Plan
- 12.1 The Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
- 21.1 Subsidiaries of the Company
- 23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
- 31.1 Certification of Thomas A. McDonnell, Chief Executive Officer of Registrant.
- 31.2 Certification of Kenneth V. Hager, Chief Financial Officer of Registrant.
 - 32 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 of Thomas A. McDonnell, Chief Executive Officer of Registrant, and Kenneth V. Hager, Chief Financial Officer of Registrant.
- The following financial information from DST's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011, filed with the SEC on February 29, 2012, formatted in Extensible Business Reporting Language ("XBRL"): (i) the Consolidated Statement of Income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, (ii) the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2011 and 2010, (iii) the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, (iv) the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, and (v) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.